
City of Berwyn 
City Council Meeting 

April 26, 2011 



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
APRIL 26, 2011 

DEAR ATTENDEE .... . THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCn.. WELCOME YOU. PLEASE KEEP IN MIND THAT TInS IS A 
MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEl\.1BERS AS OPPOSED TO A PUBLIC HEARING WHERE ATTENDEES ARE 
ENCOURAGED TO PARTICIPATE. UNLESS INVlTED BY THE MAYOR TO SPEAK, YOU ARE REQUESmD NOT TO 
INTERRUPT. IF YOU ARE RECOGNIZED BY THE MAYOR, PLEASE PREFACE YOUR REMARKS BY STATING YOUR 
NAME AND ADDRESS FOR THE RECORD. THANK YOU. 

ROBERT J. LOVERO 
MAYOR 

ROLLCALL 
AGENDA 

THOMAS J. PA VLIK 
CITY CLERK 

(A) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - MOMENT OF SILENCE 
(B) OPEN FORUM - (TOPIC MUST NOT BE ON THE AGENDA) 
(C) PRESENTATION OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS MINUTES FOR APPROVAL 

1. REG 4/12/11-COW-4/12/11 

(D) BID OPENING - TABULATIONS 

(E) BERWYN DEVELOPMENT CORP.-BERWYN TOWNSHIPIHEALTH DISTRICT 
1. BDC-ORDINANCE -CONSIDERATION-HARLEM TIP DISTRICT 
2. BDC-LAND SWAP AGREE1vlENT WITH THE NBPD 

(F) REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 
1. PROC.-TEACHER APPRECIATION WEEK-MAY 2-7 
2. APPOINTMENT OF PART-TIME ADMINISTRATNE ASSISTANT 

(G) REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE CITY CLERK 
L RETIRElv1ENT OF DEPUTY CITY CLERK LOUISE SOMMESE 
2. APPOINTMENT OF DEPUTY CITY CLERK 

(H) COMMUNICATIONS FROM (ZONING) BOARD OF APPEALS 

(I) REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM ALDERMEN. COMMITTEES OTHER BOARDS 
AND COMMISSIONS 
1. PAUL-PIPER SCHOOL SPECIAL EVENT-STREET CLOSURE REQUEST 
2. BL&T AXATION COMM.-REFERRAL #I-3-3/16/11-HOLIDA Y LIGHT ORDINANCE 

(J) STAFF REPORTS 
1. DEFER-BPD UNIT COMMANDER-EVIDENCE STORAGE LOCKERS 
2. CITY A TTNY -SETTLE CASE #09M130 1958 
3. CITY ATTNY-ORD AMENDING CHAP 1478-HISTORIC PRESERVATION ORD 
4. CITY ADM-INSURANCE RENEWAL 
5. FIRE CHIEF-PERMISSION TO CONTACT F&P COMM TO HIRE 2 REPLACEMENT 

FIREFIGHTERSIPARAMEDICS & HIRE AN ADDITIONAL 12 FlREFIGHTERIPARAMEDICS 



6. FIRE CHIEF-PURCHASE OF REPLACEMENT FIRE DEPT VEHICLES 
7, FIRE CHIEFIDIR OF HOMELAND SECURITY/CITY A TTNY -CITY OF BERWYN 

COMPREHENSIVE EMERGENCY OPERATION PLAN 
8. FIRE CHIEF-RED CROSS HERO AWARD FOR GOLD SHIFT 3RD PLATOON 

& LT, 1. WOJNAROWSKI & FIREFIGHTER W, GLASER 
9, CITY ENGINEER-ROOSEVELT RD TIF ALLEY IMPROVEMENTS 
10, CDBG-RESOL AUTHORIZING APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF PRIVATE ACTIVITY 

BOND ALLOCATION 

(K) CONSENT AGENDA: AU..ITEMSONTHI!C'ONSI!N'T ACI!;HOA ARJi.C'ONSIDEREJHOBE((OOTlNEINNATtiREAND 
wru. 8E ENAC'mO IN (ltI1l MO'1'IOtf, THStB WIU. Ill! NO Sf.rAllA'ru DISC'\JSSIQN OF T111!S1l rt1!MS UNUSS A COUNCIL MI'.MBER SO 
REQUI!S'I'S..IN WIII(11 EVENT Tlfl! ITliM WILL BI! REMOVED !'ROM 1'IIU ('OMSI'm AGHNDA AND C'ONSIDI!lU!D AS THE FIRST 1'I1:M AI'I'liR 
APPROV At. OF TlfE C'ONSENT A(leiDA 

1. BUDGET CHAIR-PAYROUA/13/11-$1.000,OlO.58 
2. BUDGET CHAIR-PAY ABLES-4n6/11-$407.737.7S 
3, BOYAJIAN-HANDICAP SIGN-M. O'CONNELL-3206 LOMBARD-APPROVE 
4. LAURETO-HANDICAP SIGN-A. CIRILO-1217 HOME-APPROVE 
5. BLOCK PARTY-2200 GROVE-8/13lll 
6. SBEF-KELLY MILLER CIRCUS-9/8/11 

ITEMS SUBMITTED ON TIME 25 

In accon:lunce wilh Ihe ptOlli3ioll' of die Americans with disabilities Act, lillY individual who is in ilia need of 8 ~onable accommodotlon in order 10 panicipllte In or 
benefil from Dtle>ldlUlCC at a pliblic meeting or lIIe City of BerNyIl should C()CIl4ct Thorou 1. Pavlik. City Clerk at 70anS8·2660 8$ SOOll as pos.!ibte before the 
meeiing date, 



e Table of Contents 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Item(s) 

ROLLCALL 
A. Pledge of Allegiance -Moment of Silence 

B. Open Forum 
Topic must NOT be on the Agenda 

C. Presentation of Previous Meeting Minutes for Approval 

I. Minutes City Council- 411211 1 
2. Minutes Committee of Whole - 4112111 

D. Bid Opening - Tabulations 

E. Berwyn Development Coro - Berwyn Township/Health District 

Pages 

1- 5 
1- 4 

1. BDC -Ordinance-Consideration - Harlem TIF District 1- 18 
2. BDC-Land Swap Agreement with the North Berwyn Park Dist. 1- 17 

F. Reoorts and Communications from the Mayor 
1. Proc. - Teacher Appreciation Week - May 2-7 1- 1 
2. Appointment or Part-Time Administrative Assistant 1- 1 

G. Reports and Communications from the City Clerk 
1. Retirement of Deputy City Clerk Louise Sommese 1- 1 
2. Appointment of Deputy City Clerk ) - J 

H. Communications from (Zoning) Board of Appeals 

1. Reports and Communications from Aldermen. Committees. other Boards and Commissions 

I. Paul-Piper School Special Event - Street Closure Request 1- 1 
2. B-L-T Committee - Referral # 1-3 3/16111 - Holiday Light Ordinance 1- 1 

J. Staff Reports 

I. Defer- BPD Unit Commander-Evidence Storage Lockers 1- 3 
2. City Attorney-Settle Case #09M 1301958 1- I 
3. City Attorney-Ord Amending Chap 1478-Historic Preservation Ord 1- 33 
4. City Admin-Insurance Renewal 1- I 
5. Fire Chief-Permission to contact F&P Comm to Hire 2 Replacement Fire-

Fighter/Paramedics & Hire an Additional 12 Firefighter/Paramedics 1- 1 
6. Fire Chief-Purchase of Replacement Fire Dept Vehicles 1- 4 

April 26. 2011 



(Continued) TABLE OF CONTENTS 

7. Fire Chief/Oir of Homeland Security/City Attny-City of Berwyn 
Comprehensive Emergency Operntion Plan 1- 5 

8. Fire Chief-Red Cross Hero Award for Gold Shift 3rt! Platoon & 
Lt. J. Wojnarowski & Firefighter W. Glaser 1- 2 

9. City Engineer-Roosevelt Rd TIF Alley Improvements \- 5 
10. COBG-Resol Authorizing Application for Grant of Private Activity 

Bond Allocation ] - 26 

K. Consent Agenda 
1. Budget Chair-Payroll-4/131l1 - $1,000,010.58 
2. Budget Chair-Payables -4126/11 - $407,737.75 
3. Boyajian-Handicap Sign-m. O'Connell-3206 Lombard-Approve 
4. Laureto -Handicap Sign-A. Cirilo -1217 Home-Approve 
5. Block Party - 2200 Grove - 8/13111 
6. SBEF - Kelly Miller Circus - 9/8111 

April 26. 2UI I 

1- I 
1- 7 
1- 6 
1- 9 
1- 2 
1- I 



A 

• 

Pledge of Allegiance-Moment of Silence 

Open Forum 

(Topic Must Not Be on The Agenda) 



c. Presentation of Previous 
Meeting Minutes for Approval 



(\\ /\ v ROBERT l. LOVERO 
MAYOR 

THOMAS l. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

MINUTES 
BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 

APRIL 12, 2011 

1. The regular meeting of the Berwyn City Council was called to order by Mayor 
Lovero at 8:06.p.m. Upon the call of the roll, the following responded present: 
Chapman,Boyajian, Paul, Skryd, Santoy, Polashek, Avila, Laureto. 

2. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited and a moment of silence was observed for 
the deceased Helen Jamrlsko, wife of deceased retired Police Lieutenant John 
Jamrisko, and for the men and women in the armed forces and on the streets 
of Berwyn protecting our safety. 

3. The Open Forum portion of the meeting was announced. Alderman Santoy 
announced that Cuyler Park was chosen by Kaboom to redesign the park for 
children-Alderman Skryd reminded all of two events "Think Green" at the 
North Berwyn Park District, Berwyn Gardens Saturday, April 16, 2011 and also 
a Redistricting meeting in Cicero on Saturday April 16,2011 at 1:00 p.m. with 
representatives present-Alderman Chapman reminded all of the Monster Mini 
Golf Pub Craw on Saturday April 16, 2011 from 12 noon to 6: 00 p.m.-Alderman 
Boyajian announced Berwyn Park District, Earth Day, Clean up on Saturday, 
April 16, 2011, Heritage School at 9:00 a.m.-Alderman Laureto announced an 
8th Ward meeting for Thursday, April 28, 2011 at the 16th St. Fire Station at 
7:00 p.m. 

4. The minutes of the regular Berwyn City Council meeting, and the Committee of 
the Whole, of March 22, 2011 and the Special Committee of the Whole on March 
16, 2011 were submitted. Thereafter, Skryd, made a motion, seconded 
Chapman, to concur and approve as submitted. The motion carried by a voice 
vote. 

5. Skryd made a motion, seconded by Boyajian, to suspend the rules and bring 
forth item F-l. The motIon carried by a voice vote . Item F-1 is a Proclamation 
from the Mayor honoring buSinessman, Tom Benson. Thereafter, the Clerk 
read the Proclamation and the Mayor presented same to Mr. Benson with 
thanks and appreciation. Thereafter, Avila made a motion, seconded by Skryd, 
to concur and adopt the Proclamation as presented. The motion carried by a 
voice vote. 



Berwyn City Council 
April l2,2011 

3. The Berwyn Development CorporatIon submitted a TIF application for Luigi 
Guttuso, 6716-24 W. Cermak Road. Thereafter, Anthony Griffin of the Berwyn 
Development Corporation reviewed same. Thereafter, Chapman made a 
motion, seconded by Polashek, to concur and approve for payment In an 
amount not to exceed $60,000. The motion carried by a unanimous roll call 
vote. 

4. The Berwyn Development Corporation submitted a Resolution along wIth a 
request for the Route 66 Car Show and to close Ogden Avenue. Thereafter, 
Chapman made a motion, seconded by Boyajian, to concur and adopt the 
Resolution as presented and to authorize the corporate authorities to affix their 
signatures thereto and to submit same to IDOT for approval. The motion 
carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

5. The Berwyn Development Corporation submItted a communication regarding 
the Chicagoland Great American Mutt Show and requested to hold show and 
close streets. Thereafter, Paul made a motion, seconded by Skryd, to concur 
and approve the request and to notify PACE and all city departments regarding 
same. The motion carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

6. The Administration Committee submitted a report from a meeting held on 
March 21, 2011 regarding the Department of Information Technology Use and 
Security Policy and Employee Sign Off Sheet. Thereafter, Skryd made a 
motion, seconded by Avila, to concur and approve for Immediate 
implementation following review by the Legal Department. The motion carried 
by a voice vote. 

7. The Administration Committee submitted a report from a meeting held on 
March 21, 2011 regarding Policy against Discrimination and Harassment in the 
Workplace and Employee Sign Off Sheet. Thereafter, Skryd made a motion, 
seconded by Polashek, to concur and approve for immediate implementation 
following review by the Legal Department. The motIon carried by a voice vote. 

8. The Administration Committee submitted a report from a meeting held on 
March 21, 2011 regardIng the Ethics Policy and Employee Sign Off Sheet. 
Thereafter, Skryd made a motion, seconded by Chapman, to concur and 
approve for immediate implementation following review by the Legal 
Department. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

g. The Business LIcense and Taxation Committee submitted a report for a meeting 
held on March 22, 2011 regarding the Small Business Utilization Program with 
the recommendation that the Issue by studied further. Thereafter, Santoy made 
a motion, seconded by Avila, to accept the matter as informational. The motion 
carried by a voIce vote. 

2 



Berwyn City Council 
April 12, 2011 

10. The City Administrator submitted a communication regarding Insurance 
Renewal. Thereafter, Skryd made a motion, seconded by Boyajian, to concur 
and approve the renewal of Health Insurance through BlueCross BlueShleld, 
Dental through Aetna, and Life Insurance through Fort Dearborn. The motion 
carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

11. The City Attorney submitted a communication requesting the settlement of Case 
No. 2010WC012247 in the amount of $4,969.26. Thereafter, Chapman made a 
motion, seconded by Boyajian, to concur and approve for payment. The motion 
carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

12. The City Attorney submitted a communication requesting the settlement of Case 
No. 2010WC012003 In the amount of $4,969.26. Thereafter, Chapman made a 
motion, seconded by Boyajian, to concur and approve for payment. The motion 
carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

13. The City Attorney submitted a communication along with an ordinance entitled: 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 804 BY ADDING SECTION 804.31 
OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS, TO ESTABLISH AN OUTDOOR PATIO DINING 
LICENSE 
Thereafter, Skryd made a motion, seconded by Avila, to concur and adopt the 
ordinance as submitted and to authorize the corporate authorities to affix their 
signatures thereto. The motion carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

14. The Finance Director submitted a communication regarding Finance Department 
Positions. Thereafter, Chapman made a motion, seconded by Skryd, to concur 
in the request, waive the hiring freeze and post said positions. The motion 
carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

15. The Finance Director submitted a Resolution regarding the Prudential Stock 
Sale entitled: 
A Resolution of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois establishing 
an Investor Account with Pruco Securities, LLC 
Thereafter, Chapman made a motion, seconded by Polashek, to concur and 
adopt the Resolution as presented and to authorize the corporate authorities 
to affix their signatures thereto. The motion carried by a unanimous roll call 
vote. 

16. The Fire Chief submitted a communication regarding the Fire Pup Program 2011 
for the Fire Prevention program for school children kindergarten through 3rd 

grade. Thereafter, Boyajian made a motion, seconded by Avila, to concur and 
approve as submitted. The motion carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

3 



Belwyn City Council 
April 12,2011 

20. The Assistant Fire Chief submitted a communication regarding asbestos removal 
from 6619 16th Street and 1539 Clarence and demolition. Thereafter, Polashek 
made a motion, seconded by Avila, to concur. The motion carried by a voice 
vote. 

21. The Berwyn Main Street submitted a communication requesting permission to 
display rain barrels along the Cermak Road from April 18, 2011 through August 
2, 2011. Thereafter, Dario Solano, Executive Director of Berwyn Main Street 
reviewed same. Thereafter, Skryd made a motion, seconded by Avila, to concur 
in the request. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

22. The City Administrator submitted a communication regarding the Berwyn Public 
Library, Elevator replacement Engineering Service Contract. Thereafter, 
Chapman made a motion, seconded by Polashek, to concur and approve the 
contract with Engineer Ed Kalina P.E. of Fuhrmann Engineering Inc. to work as 
the City's project manager for the library elevator modification project. The 
motion carried by the following roll call: Yeas: Chapman, Boyajian, Paul, Skryd, 
Polashek, Laureto. Nays: Santoy, Avila. 

23. The City Administrator submitted a communication regarding the Berwyn Public 
Library, Elevator replacement Engineering Service Contract. Thereafter, 
Chapman made a motion, seconded by Laureto, to concur and grant permission 
to send out a Request for Proposal (RFP) to retain a design consultant who will 
prepare the contract documents for library elevator project; and waive the 
sealed bid process. The motion carried by the following roll call: Yeas: Chapman, 
Boyajian, Paul, Polashek, Laureto. Nays: Skryd, Santoy, Avila. 

24. The Berwyn Police Department, Unit Commander submitted a communIcation 
regarding Evidence Storage Lockers construction. Thereafter, Boyajian made a 
motion, seconded by Polashek, to concur with the recommendation of Clear 
View Construction for the project. The motion carried by a unanimous roll call 
vote. 

25. The Berwyn Police Department, Unit Commander submitted a communication 
regarding Blood Drying Chamber, Evidence Processing Room. Thereafter, 
Polashek made a motion, seconded by Avila, to concur with the recommendation 
of Air Clean Systems for the project. The motion carried by a unanimous roll call 
vote. 

26. The Berwyn Police Department, Unit Commander submitted a communication 
regarding Evidence Storage Lockers Companies. Thereafter, Boyajian made a 
motion, seconded by Skryd, to defer the matter for 2 weeks. The motion 
carried by a voice vote. 

4 



Berwyn City Council 
April 12,2011 

27. Consent Agenda, K-l through K-10 were submitted: 
K-1-8udget Chair, payroll for March 3D, 2011, $916,776.24 
K-2-Budget Chair, payables for April 12, 2011, $$2,318,118.28 
K-3-Polashek, handicap sign, C. Pillet, 1617 Scoville, Approve 
K-4-Polashek, handicap sign, C. Brown, 1832 Clarence, Approve 
K-5-Avila, handicap sign, J. Malecek, 2118 Clinton, Approve 
K-6-Laureto, handicap sign, R. Chirko, 1437 Clarence, Approve 
K-7-Licensing & Collections, business licenses issued March, 2011 
K-8-Building Director, building permits issued in March, 2011 
K-9-Salvation Army, Donut Days, June 3rd and 4th, 2011, Red Kettle Campaign 
November 18, 2011 through December 24, 2011. 
K-l0-American Cancer Society, Tag Days, April 16, 23, May 7, 14, and June 18, 
2011 
Thereafter, Avila made a motion, seconded by Polashek, to concur and approve 
by Omnibus Vote DeSignation. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

28. Alderman Boyajian announced a Ad Hoc on Hazardous Waste meeting, as 
previously called, for Wednesday, April 13,2011 at 5:30 p.m. 

29. Alderman Skryd requested to reschedule the previously called Administration 
Committee meeting to Monday, April 25, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. 

30. Alderman Laureto called for a Building, Zoning, and Planning Committee 
meeting for Monday, April 25, 2011 at 5:30 p.m. 

31. There being no further business to come before the meeting, same was, after a 
motion by Laureto, seconded by Avila, to adjourn at the hour of 8:44 p.m. The 
motion carried by a voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

as J. Pavlik, CMC 
Clerk 

5 



COMMITIEE OF THE WHOLE 
APRIL 12, 2011 

1. The Committee of the Whole was called to order by Mayor Lovero at 6:00 p.m. 
Upon the call of the roll, the following responded present: Boyajian, Paul, 
Skryd, Santoy, Polashek, Avila, Laureto. Absent: Chapman. Thereafter, Avila 
made a motion, seconded by Skryd, to excuse Alderman Chapman. The motion 
carried by a voice vote. 

2. 2011 Integrated Marketing Campaign-The Mayor recognized Anthony 
Griffin of the Berwyn Development Corporation who stated that deSign work 
has been completed along with random survey and recommendation for the 
2011 marketing campaign. Amy Crowther of the BDC presented a slide show 
presentation stating that this Is the 5th year of the Integrated marketing 
campaign and went over the billboards from year 2007 through 2010 
Billboard Campaigns: 

• 2007-1st year was focused on the convenient location of Berwyn, 
developed the Bulls Eye graphic, campaign tagged on Berwyn "At the
center of life in Chicago" 

• 2008 billboard focused on convenience, main tag focused on "living In 
Berwyn makes life easier". Beside large billboards, 80 Junior size 
billboards were also used to flood market throughout areas in Chicago 

• 2009-Convenient location + "Up & Coming" campaign-main tag "Berwyn 
Chicago's Best-Kept Secret" 

• 2010-Dual message campaign: "Rise & Shine in Berwyn" and "Berwyn, 
the Perfect Spot is just Around the Corner" 

• 2011-Billboard campaign-Evaluating Success of Campaigns-60% increase 
In favorable perception of Berwyn over the course of the campaign. The 
campaign showed positive perceptions about Berwyn's convenient 
location, its good dollar value, the quality of its homes, and attractiveness 
as a destination. 

Chapman present at 6:10 p.m. 
• Questions on numbers who responded to survey and locations, with 71 0/0 

responded to marketing survey, appeared favorable 
• 2011 campaign is still focusing on Berwyn as Opportunities and seiling 

convenience and potential for growth. 
• 4 different designs for the Year 2011: 

1. Berwyn Rising 
2. Opportunity Knocks 
3. Time to Try Berwyn 
4. Discover Why 

2011 Berwyn Billboards were scored as follOWS: 
• Scored each ad individually, according to multiple measures 

1 



COMMITIEE OF THE WHOLE 
APRil 12, 2011 

• Scored the ads compared to each other, according to multiple measures. 
• Scored the ads against each other based on weighted ranking. 
• Calculated a final score for each ad. 

Ms. Crowther stated that all were based on raw numbers and not percents, but 
all numbers are close. All scores were based on: 

• Individual Score 
• Comparative Score 
• Rank Score 
• Total Score 

Based on figures "Berwyn Rising" and "Berwyn Discover Why" were leaders to 
focus on with figures showing that "Berwyn Rising" came out with the leading 
ranking score overall. Based on Market research, the recommendation was to 
go wIth the "Berwyn Rising" 
Question were taken from Alderman: 

• Santoy-Where were signs placed and questioned If signs possibly could 
be place on CTA and possible be paId for with assisted program through 
the CTA. 

• Skryd questioned if we have any junior board this year? A) No, not this 
year, we are just focusing on larger boards because of budget 
restraints, and because junior billboard were not always In good location. 

• Paul questioned if committee considered other ad campaign other than 
Bull's Eye. Ms. Crowthers stated that 5 years would be the likely time 
frame for the same campaign logo and that billboards are only limited to 
the summer months. 

• Paul voiced concerns regarding billboards appearing in the same areas. 
Griffin stated that committee did not target neighborhoods, but prime 
real estate areas with the most traffic, but will review in the future based 
on consumer research. 

Consensus from aldermen on 2011 Billboard choice: 
Chapman-"Opportunlty Knocks", but will accept "Berwyn Rising" 
Boyajian, Paul, Skryd, Santoy,Polashek, Avila, and Laureto-"Berwyn 
Rising", 
Griffin stated that the next phase would be to go into production, secure 
the real estate in late May with selected locations and when secured will 
advise Council. 

3. Berwyn Health Insurance-Item J-I-The Mayor recognized Vincent Bertuca 
insurance broker for health insurance, who issued packets to aldermen for 
review prior to this meeting. Mr. Bertuca advised all that in February we 
started out with a 14.32% renewal expectation from Blue Cross/Blue Shield of 
I"lnois. Mr. Bertuca than Introduced individuals from BlueCross BlueShield and 
from Fort Dearborn Ufe Insurance. 
Bertuca reviewed 2011 Renewal Rate Cost Summary 

2 



COMMITIEE OF THE WHOLE 
APRIL 12, 2011 

• BCjBS-Health, and Vision -4.6% reduction in original renewal cost with a 
savings of approximately $267,000. 

• Aetna Dental-7.S% reduction from original rate of 16.2% with a cost 
saving of approximately $25,000. 

• Fort Dearborn Term Life & AD&D- A contract was negotiated with Fort 
Dearborn with an additional voluntary life Insurance policy added giving 
the City of Berwyn some of the lowest rates at .04 cents per 1000, with 
no participation level, with letters to be sent out via payroll checks 
Informing employees of availability of insurance with information on cost 
per age group. A bonus to this offer is that there Is no exception to pre 
existing conditions, with would get a guaranteed $100,000 of life 
Insurance at the rates provided, and would only be offered at open 
enrollment 
Questions from Aldermen: 
Avila-Is the Health Insurance cost within our budget. 
Recommend gOing with BCjBS for Health, with Dental from Aetna with a 
volunteer Life Insurance through Fort Dearborn offered to employees 
• The Mayor questioned If the policy Is being changed. Bertuca stated 

that we are adding a domestic partners provision to the policy with 
certain affidavits involved which will be provide and directed Council 
to amend the policy with no extra cost to the City I with Information 
provided by the Benefits Coordinator. 

Bertuca excused 6:35 p.m. 

4. Agenda Items-J-I0 8t J-11-8erwyn Public Ubrary Elevetors- The 
Mayor requested that two motions be made. The Mayor than recognized 
Mr. Kalina, Project Manager who stated that a State grant was awarded 
for $160,000 for full modification for the two Berwyn Public Library 
elevators. Mr. Kalina went on to explain that the elevators are 
approximately 35 years old and made recommendation for the eXisting 
system and presented State codes and explained how vital this grant In 
modifying these elevators. Mr. Kalina explained that two contractors were 
out estimating the cost of the project, one at $170,000 and the other at 
$175,000. Question was asked on the timellne of the project. Mr. Kalina 
stated that contractors are estimating for each elevator at two months 
each, bidding process, 2 month, and architect, 2 months, and advise 
proceeding as soon as possible so as not to lose grant monies. 
The Mayor stated that the first motion would be to approve the Project 
Manager and the second motion would be to retain a design consultant 
who would prepare contract documents, and to waive sealed bid process. 
Mr. Kalina stated that two firms were Invited that have worked for the 
City In the past, Inter Plan and Architects Plus and both have received 

3 



COMMITIEE OF THE WHOLE 
APRIL 12, 2011 

satisfactory or better reviews after work performed and firms are eager to 
work on this project. 
Question was posed on only inviting two as opposed to opening up to 
other finns. Mr. Kalina stated that these two firms have worked for the 
City in the past and therefore eliminate request for qualifications process 
which would save the City two months on scheduling, therefore, 
Invitation was only extended to these two finns. Question was asked on 
expiration date on the grant. Mr. Kalina stated that December 31, 2011, 
but if progress is shown, an extension is possible. Concerns on only two 
firms invited were voiced by Aldermen Avila and Santoyo 
It was suggested to either vote on 1st motion and defer 2nd motion until 
Kalina could check with Springfield on possible extension of grant if RFP's 
would go public. 
Alderman Chapman stated that she spoke extensively with Mr. Pabst and 
felt that she expressed approval In moving forward with two companies 
recommended. 

5. The Mayor asked for a motion to go into closed for pending litigation, land 
acquisItion, and real estate. Thereafter, Skryd made a motion, seconded 
by Polashek to close the Committee of the Whole at 6:55 p.m. The 
motion carried by a voice vote. 

6. Polashek made a motion, seconded by Santoy, to reopen the Committee 
of the Whole at 7: 56 p.m. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

. 7. Polashek made a motion, seconded by Santoy, to adjourn the 
Committee of the Whole at 7:56 p.m. The motion carried by a voice 
vote. 

Respe~tted' 

Tho as J. Pavlik, City Clerk 
/ By ~ouise Sommese, Deputy Clerk 

4 



D. Bid Openings Tabulations 



E. Berwyn Development Corp. -

Berwyn Township/Health District 



be wyn deve opment 
CORPORATION 

3322 S. Oak Park Avenue 

Second Floor 

Berwyn, IL 60402 

708.788.8100 

fax: 708.788.0966 

www.berwyn.net 

April 20, 2011 

MEMORANDUM 

To: City 0/ Berwyn Mayor Robert Lovero and tlte City Council 

Re: Ordinallce/or City Council Consideration/or Harlem TIF District 

The purposes of the attached ordinance are: 
• to set a date and time for a Public Hearing to allow public comment on the 

creation of the Harlem TIF District; 
• to notify all affected taxing jurisdictions and the Illinois Department of 

Commerce and Economic Opportunity concerning the City's intent to 
create the District; 

• to schedule a meeting of the Joint Review Board to allow affected taxing 
jurisdictions the opportunity to comment on the draft Redevelopment Plan 
and Project for the District; 

• to notify all residents within 750 feet of the proposed District's boundaries 
about the City's intent to create the District. 

Please note that the purposes listed above enable the City to comply with Illinois 
state statute regarding the creation of tax increment financing district in the state. 

Please contact me for additional information or concerns. 

Sincerely, 

Tim Angell, AICP 
Senior Project Manager 

CC: Mayor Robert 1. Lovero 
Brian Pabst - City Administrator 
Paul Zimmermann - BDC President 
Tony Griffin - BDC Executive Director 



ORDINANCE 11~_ 

AN ORDINANCE PROPOSING A REDEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PROJECT FOR, 
AND THE DESIGNATION OF, THE HARLEM TAX INCREMENT FINANCING 

REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA AND THE ADOPTION OF TAX INCREMENT 
FINANCING THEREFORE, CONVENING A JOINT REVIEW BOARD AND CALLING 

A PUBLIC HEARING IN CONNECTION THEREWITH. 

WHEREAS, the City of Berwyn (the "City") is a home rule unit of local government as 

is provided by Article VII, Section 6 of the Illinois Constitution of 1970, and as a home rule unit 

of local government the City may exercise any power and perfonn any function pertaining to its 

government and affairs; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act, as amended, 

(65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-1, el seq.) (the "Act"), the City is authorized to approve a redevelopment 

plan for and to designate a redevelopment project area and adopt tax increment fmancing 

therefore, and; 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council (collectively, the "Corporate Authorities") 

have heretofore caused a study to be conducted to determine the conditions in that part of the 

City legally described as set forth on Exhibit A hereto and generally described as real property 

located in the Cennak Road and Harlem Avenue corridors of the City, which consists of parcels 

in the vicinity ofCennak Road, between Harlem Avenue and Wesley Avenue, and in the vicinity 

of Harlem Avenue, between Cermak Road and 30th Street (the "Property"); and 

WHEREAS. the Corporate Authorities have determined that the Property would qualify 

as a "Redevelopment Project Area" as defined in the Act and that said Property on the whole has 

not been subject to growth and development through private enterprise and would not reasonably 

be anticipated to be developed without the adoption of a redevelopment plan and the use of tax 

increment financing as provided in the Act; and 



WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities have heretofore and it hereby is determined that 

it is advisable that the City afford itself of the provisions of the Act and by ordinance approve a 

redevelopment plan (<(Redevelopment Plan") and a redevelopment project ("Project") and 

designate said Property as legally described in Exhibit A as a redevelopment project area to be 

known as the "Harlem Tax Increment Financing Redevelopment Project Area" ("Redevelopment 

Project Area"), and also that the City by ordinance adopt tax increment financing in order to pay 

all or a portion of the eligible redevelopment project costs for the Project in the Redevelopment 

Project Area, as provided in the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the Act requires the City to conduct a public hearing prior to the adoption 

of ordinances approving the Redevelopment Plan and Project, designating the Redevelopment 

Project Area, and adopting tax increment financing, at which hearing any interested person or 

affected taxing district may file with the City Clerk written objections to and may be heard orally 

with respect to the proposed approval of the Redevelopment Plan and Project, designation of the 

Redevelopment Project Area, and adoption of tax increment financing therefore; and 

WHEREAS, the Act further requires that prior to holding a public hearing, the City shall 

convene a joint review board (the "Board") consisting of a representative selected by each 

conununity college district; local elementary school district and high school district or each local 

conununity unit school district; park district; library district; township; fire protection district; 

and county that has or will have the authority to directly levy taxes on the Property within the 

proposed Redevelopment Project Area at the time that the proposed Redevelopment Project Area 

is approved, a representative selected by the City, and a public member selected in accordance 

with the Act, to consider the subject matter of the public hearing; and 

WHEREAS, the TIF Act further requires that the time and place of such public hearing 

be fixed by ordinance or resolution adopted by the Corporate Authorities; and 



WHEREAS, the TIF Act further requires that not less than ten (10) days prior to 

adopting such ordinance or resolution fixing the time and place of a public hearing, the City must 

make available for public inspection a redevelopment plan or a separate report that provides in 

reasonable detail the basis for the proposed Redevelopment Project Area's qualifying as a 

"redevelopment project area" under the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the firm of Kane, McKenna & Associates, Inc., has conducted an eligibility 

report of the proposed Redevelopment Project Area and has prepared its report (the "Report") 

that said proposed area qualifies as a "redevelopment project area" as defined in the Act, which 

survey and findings have been presented to the Corporate Authorities and are now on file in the 

official files and records of the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Report and Redevelopment Plan has heretofore been on file and 

available for public inspection for at least ten (l0) days in the offices of the City Clerk as 

required under the TIF Act; and 

WHEREAS, the Act requires that notice of the public hearing be given by publication 

and mailing; and 

WHEREAS, the Act requires that the City shall provide notice of the availability of the 

Redevelopment Plan and eligibility report, including how to obtain such information, by mail 

within a reasonable time after the adoption of this Ordinance, to all residential addresses that, 

after a good faith effort, the City determines are located within 750 feet of the boundaries of the 

proposed Redevelopment Project Area; and 

WHEREAS, the Act also requires the City to provide notice to those organizations and 

residents that have registered with the City for that information in accordance with the 

registration guidelines by the City under Section 11-74.4-4.2 of the Act; and 



WHEREAS) implementation of the Redevelopment Plan may result in the displacement 

of residents from ten (10) or more inhabited residential units and the Redevelopment Project 

Area will include seventy-five (75) or more inhabited residential units; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of the Act) the Corporate Authorities 

have heretofore determined and do hereby detennine that it is advisable and in the best interests 

of the City and its residents to hold a public hearing and convene the Board to consider the 

proposed Redevelopment Plan and Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and the City Council of the 

City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1. That the foregoing recitals to this Ordinance are full, true and correct and 

adopted as findings of the Corporate Authorities and are incorporated herein by specific 

reference. 

Section 2. The approval of the Redevelopment Plan and Project, the designation of 

the Redevelopment Project Area, and the adoption of tax increment financing therefore are 

hereby proposed. 

Section 3. A public hearing shall be held by the President and Board of Trustees of 

the City of Berwyn, at 5:00 p.m. on the 28th day of June, 20 II, at the Berwyn City Hall, 6700 

W. 26th Street, Berwyn, Illinois 60402, for the purpose of hearing from any interested persons or 

affected taxing districts regarding the proposed approval of the Redevelopment Plan and Project, 

designation of the Redevelopment Project Area, and adoption of tax increment financing 

therefore. 

Section 4. Notice of public hearing, substantially in the form attached hereto as 

Exhibit B, shall be published at least twice, the publications to be not more than thirty (30) nor 



less than ten (l0) days prior to the public hearing, in a newspaper of general circulation within 

the taxing districts having property in the Redevelopment Project Area. In addition, notice shall 

be mailed by certified mail not less than ten (l0) days prior to the date set for the public hearing, 

addressed to the person or persons in whose name the general taxes for the last preceding year 

were paid on each lot, block, tract, or parcel of land lying within the Redevelopment Project 

Area. In the event taxes for the last preceding year were not paid, the notice shall also be sent to 

the persons last listed on the tax rolls within the preceding three years as the owners of such 

property. Each mailed notice shall include a summary or a copy of the proposed Redevelopment 

Plan. 

Section S. Notice shall also be given by certified mail to all taxing districts of which 

taxable property is included in the Redevelopment Project Area or the Redevelopment Plan and 

Project, as proposed, and to the Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity not 

less than forty-five (45) days prior to the public hearing, and such notice shall also include an 

invitation to each taxing district and the Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic 

Opportunity to submit written comments prior to the date of the public hearing to the City, to the 

attention of the City Clerk, 6700 26th Street, Berwyn Illinois 60402, concerning the subject 

matter of the public hearing. Each such mailed notice shall inel ude a copy of the proposed 

Redevelopment Plan and Project, the Eligibility Report, and the name of a person to contact for 

further information. 

Section 6. Notice of availability of the Redevelopment Plan and eligibility report, 

including how to obtain information, shall also be given by mail within a reasonable time after 

the adoption of this Ordinance to all residential addresses that, after a good faith effort. the City 

determines are located within 750 feet of the boundaries of the Redevelopment Project Area. 

The City Council hereby authorizes the City Attorney, Kane, McKenna and Associates, Inc., the 



Berwyn Development Corporation and/or designees of the same to take all acts necessary to 

provide any and all notices required pursuant to the Act. 

Section 7. Since January 21, 2011, a draft of the Redevelopment Plan and Project and 

Eligibility Report has been on file in the Office of the City Clerk at the Berwyn City Hall, 6700 

26th Street, Berwyn, Illinois 60402, and since has been available for public inspection. 

Section 8. The Board, as set forth in the Act, is hereby convened and the Board shall 

meet, review such documents, and issue such report as set forth in the Act. The first meeting of 

the Board shall be held at 10:00 a.m. on the 17th day of May, 20 It, at the City Hall, 2nd Floor 

Conference Room, 6700 26th Street, Berwyn, Illinois 60402, which will be at least fourteen (14) 

days but not more than twenty-eight (28) days after the mailing of notice by the City to the 

taxing districts as required by the Act. The public member shall be selected as provided for in 

the Act and the Board's chairperson shall be selected by a majority of the Board members 

present and voting. 

Section 9. The Board shall act in accordance with the Act. 

Section 10. That if any section, paragraph, or provision of this Ordinance shall be held 

to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, 

paragraph, or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this Ordinance. 

Section 11. That all ordinances, resolutions, motions or orders in conflict herewith 

shall be, and the same hereby are, repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 12. A full, true and complete copy of this Ordinance shall be published in 

pamphlet fonn or in a newspaper published and of general circulation within the City as 

provided by the Illinois Municipal Code, as amended. That this Ordinance shall be in full force 

and effect from and after its passage, approval and publication as provided by law. 



PASSED this __ day of _____ , 2011. 

A YES __ NAYS __ ABSENT __ 

APPROVED by me this __ day of ____ -', 2011. 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 



EXHIBIT A 

Proposed Harlem Avenue TIF District - Legal Description 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
THAT PART OF SECTIONS 19 AND 3D, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF THE THIRD 
PEINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, BEING DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 30; 
THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG THE WEST LINE Of SAID SECTION 30 TO A POINT ON THE 
WESTERLY EXTENSION OF THE NORTH LINE Of THE SOUTH 17 fEET OF LOT 28 IN BLOCK 9 OF 
KIRCHMAN AND JEDLAM'S WESTERN AGENCY AND LOAN CORPORATION SUBDIVISION, BEING 
A SUBDIVISION IN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 30; 
THENCE EASTERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY EXTENSION AND NORTH LINE AND THE 
EASTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO A POINT ON THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE 
NORTH-SOUTH ALLEY IN SAID BLOCK 9; 
THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 30TH STREET; 
THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE TO A POINT ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY 
LINE OF SAID 30TH STREET AND THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE NORTH-SOUTH ALLEY 
IN BLOCK 5 OF SAID KIRCHMAN AND JEDLAM'S WESTERN AGENCY AND LOAN CORPORATION 
SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 29TH STREET; 
THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE TO A POINT ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY 
LINE OF SAID 29TH STREET AND THE EAST RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE OF THE NORTH-SOUTH ALLEY 
IN BLOCK 4 OF SAID KIRCHMAN AND JEDLAM'S WESTERN AGENCY AND LOAN CORPORATION 
SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND ALONG THE EAST RIGHT
OF-WAY LINE OF THE NORTH-SOUTH AND NORTHEASTERLY-SOUTHWESTERLY ALLEY IN 
KOMAREK'S RIVERSIDE DRIVE SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION IN SAID SOUTHWEST 
QUARTER OF SECTION 3D, TO AN ANGLE POINT IN SAID NORTH-SOUTH AND NORTHEASTERL Y
SOUTHWESTERLY ALLEY; 
THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE Of SAID ALLEY TO A POINT ON THE 
SOUTHEASTERLY EXTENSION OF THE SOUTHWESTERLY LINE OF LOT 8 IN SAID KOMAREK'S 
RIVERSIDE DRIVE SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTHEASTERLY EXTENSION AND SOUTHWESTERLY 
LINE AND NORTHWESTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO A POINT ON THE NORTHWESTERLY 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE Of RIVERSIDE DRIVE; 
THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF·WAY LINE AND 
NORTH EASTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO A POINT ON THE NORTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY 
LINE OF THE ILLINOIS CENTRAL RAILROAD; 
THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO A POINT 
ON THE SOUTHWESTERLY EXTENSION OF THE SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE Of THE 
NORTHEASTERLY-SOUTHWESTERL Y ALLEY IN RIVERSIDE PARK SUBDIVISION, BEING A 
SUBDIVISION IN SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 30; 
THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTHWESTERLY EXTENSION AND SOUTHEASTERLY 
RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE TO A POINT ON THE EASTERLY EXTENSION OF THE SOUTH LINE Of THE 
HARLEM AND 26TH STREET SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION IN SAID SOUTHWEST 
QUARTER Of SECTION 30; 
THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID EASTERLY EXTENSION AND SOUTH LINE TO THE 
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 5 IN SAID HARLEM AND 26TH STREET SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG THE WEST LINE Of SAID LOT 5 AND THE NORTHERLY EXTENSION 
THEREOF TO A POINT ON THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 30; 
THENCE EASTERLY ALONG SAID NORTH LINE TO A POINT ON THE CENTERLINE Of RIVERSIDE 
DRIVE; 



THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID CENTERLINE TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF THE 
WEST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 30; 
THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID EAST LINE TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY EXTENSION OF 
THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE EAST-WEST ALLEY LYING NORTH OF AND ADJOINING 
THE NORTH LINE OF LOTS 23 AND 126 IN THE 22ND STREET LAND ASSOCIATION SUBDIVISION, 
BEING A SUBDIVISION IN SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 30; 
THENCE EASTERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY EXTENSION AND SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND 
EASTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO A POINT ON THE EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
CLINTON AVENUE AND THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE EAST-WEST ALLEY LYING 
NORTH OF AND ADJOINING LOTS 127 AND 197 IN SAID 22NO STREET LAND ASSOCIATION 
SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE EASTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND EASTERLY EXTENSION 
THEREOF TO A POINT ON THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KENILWORTH AVENUE AND THE 
SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE EAST-WEST ALLEY LYING NORTH OF AND ADJOINING 
LOTS 99 AND 52 IN OAK PARK AVENUE AND 22ND STREET SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION 
IN SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 30; 
THENCE EASTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND EASTERLY EXTENSION 
THEREOF TO A POINT ON THE CENTER LINE OF GROVE AVENUE; 
THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID CENTER LINE TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY EXTENSION 
OF THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH HALF OF LOT SO IN SAID OAK PARK AVENUE AND 22t-1) 
STREET SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE EASTERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY EXTENSION AND SOUTH LINE TO A POINT ON THE 
WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE NORTH-SOUTH ALLEY LYING EAST OF AND ADJOINING SAID 
LOT SO; . 
THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY 
EXTENSION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF LOT 22 IN SAID OAK PARK AVENUE AND 22ND STREET 
SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE EASTERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY EXTENSION AND SOUTH LINE AND EASTERLY 
EXTENSION THEREOF TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID 
SECTION 30; 
THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID WEST LINE TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY EXTENSION OF 
THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 23 IN BLOCK 1 IN KLIMA'S SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION IN SAID 
NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 30; 
THENCE EASTERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY EXTENSION AND NORTH LINE AND EASTERLY 
EXTENSION THEREOF TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE 
NORTHEASTERLY-SOUTHWESTERLY ALLEY IN SAID BLOCK 1; 
THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO THE SOUTH 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE EAST-WEST ALLEY IN SAID BLOCK 1; 
THENCE EASTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND EASTERLY EXTENSION 
THEREOF TO A POINT ON THE CENTER LINE OF WESLEY AVENUE; 
THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID CENTER LINE TO A POINT ON THE EASTERLY EXTENSION 
OF THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE EAST-WEST ALLEY LYING NORTH OF AND 
ADJOINING LOT "G" IN BERWYN MANOR SUBDIVISION; 
BEING A SUBDIVISION IN THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 19; 
THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID EASTERLY EXTENSION AND NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND 
WESTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF EUCLID 
AVENUE AND THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE EAST-WEST ALLEY LYING NORTH OF 
AND ADJOINING LOT "H" IN SAID BERWYN MANOR SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND WESTERLY EXTENSION 
THEREOF TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF OAK PARK AVENUE AND THE 
NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE EAST-WEST ALLEY LYING NORTH OF AND ADJOINING LOT 
UA" IN BERWYN GARDEN'S SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION IN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER 
OF SAID SECTION 19; 
THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND WESTE RL Y EXTENSION 
THEREOF TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF GROVE AVENUE AND THE NORTH 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE EAST-WEST ALLEY LYING NORTH OF AND ADJOINING LOT ~BR IN 
SAID BERWYN GARDEN'S SUBDIVISION; 



THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND WESTERLY EXTENSION 
THEREOf TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KENILWORTH AVENUE AND THE 
NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE EAST-WEST ALLEY LYING NORTH OF AND ADJOINING LOT 
"C" IN SAID BERWYN GARDENS SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND WESTERLY EXTENSION 
THEREOF TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CLINTON AVENUE AND THE 
NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE EAST-WEST ALLEY LYING NORTH Of AND ADJOINING LOT 
"D~ IN SAID BERWYN GARDENS SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND WESTERLY EXTENSION 
THEREOF TO APOINT ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF HOME AVENUE AND THE NORTH 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE EAST-WEST ALLEY LYING NORTH OF AND ADJOINING LOT "E" IN 
SAID BERWYN GARDENS SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND WESTERLY EXTENSION 
THEREOF TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE OF WENONAH AVENUE AND THE 
NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE EAST-WEST ALLEY LYING NORTH OF AND ADJOINING LOT 
"F" IN SAID BERWYN GARDENS SUBDIVISION; 
TH ENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAl D NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND WESTERLY EXTENSION 
THEREOF TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF WISCONSIN AVENUE AND THE 
NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE EAST-WEST ALLEY LYING NORTH OF AND ADJOINING LOT 
MG" IN SAID BERWYN GARDENS SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND WESTERLY EXTENSION 
THEREOF TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF MAPLE AVENUE AND THE NORTH 
RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE OF THE EAST-WEST ALLEY LYING NORTH OF AND ADJOINING LOT·W IN 
SAID BERWYN GARDENS SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE AND WESTERLY EXTENSION 
THEREOF TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 19; 
THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID WEST LINE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
EXCEPTING THEREFROM, LOTS 295, 296,351,352 AND 353 IN SAID BERWYN GARDENS 
SUBDIVISION; 
ALSO EXCEPTING, 
THAT PART OF LOT 1 IN THE CIRCUIT COURT PARTITION OF THE WEST HALf OF SAID 
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 30, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE 
INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CERMAK ROAD AND WITH THE WEST 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF HOME AVENUE; 
THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 37 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST ON AN ASSUMED BEARING 
ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 286.00 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 22 MINUTES WEST, A DISTANCE OF 5.0 FEET ALONG SAID SOUTH 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE; 
THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES, 37 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST, 321.70 FEET ALONG SAID 
SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE; 
THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 22 MINUTES 20 SECONDS WEST, 61.50 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING; 
THENCE CONTINUING SOUTH 00 DEGREES 22 MINUTES 20 SECONDS WEST, 161.00 fEET; 
THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 37 MIUNUTES 40 SECONDS WEST, 160.00 fEET; 
THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 22 MINUTES 20 SECONDS EAST, 161.00 FEET: 
THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 37 MINUTES 40 SECONDS EAST, 160.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING. 
ALSO EXCEPTING, 
THAT PART OF SAID LOT 1 IN THE CIRCUIT COURT PARTITION OF THE WEST HALf OF SAID 
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 3D, DESCRIED AS FOLLOWS: 
COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER; 
THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 38 MINUTES 08 SECONDS EAST, 243.02 fEET ALONG THE NORTH 
LINE OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER; 
THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 21 MINUTES 52 SECONDS WEST, 65.00 FEET TO THE SOUTH 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CERMAK ROAD, (DEDICATED AS PER DOCUMENT NO. 19198042, 
RECORDED JULY 28,1964) SAID POINT BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 
THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 14 MINUTES 16 SECONDS EAST, 91.26 FEET; 



THENCE SOUTH 61 DEGREES 14 MINUTES 31 SECONDS WEST, 67.86 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 06 SECONDS WEST, 59.37 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 57 DEGREES 39 MINUTES 48 SECONDS WEST, 87.41 FEET TO A POINT ON THE 
EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF HARLEM AVENUE; 
THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST, 107.00 FEET ALONG SAID EAST 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO A 65.00 FEET RADIUS CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY; THENCE 
NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE 102.51 FEET (THE CHORD BEARS NORTH 45 DEGREES 
10 MINUTES 56 SECONDS EAST TO A POINT ON SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CERMAK 
ROAD; 
THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 38 MINUTES 08 SECONDS EAST, 127.19 FEET ALONG SAID SOUTH 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 



EXHIBIT B 
Notice of Public Hearing 

HARLEM TAX INCREMENT FINANCING REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA 

CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

Notice is hereby given that on June 28, 2011 at 5:00 p.m. at the Berwyn City Hall, 6700 
W. 26th Street, BelWYn, Illinois 60402, a public hearing will be held to consider the 
approval of a redevelopment plan ("Redevelopment Plan") and project ("Project") for the 
designation of a redevelopment project area ("Redevelopment Project Area") to be 
known as the "Harlem Tax Increment Financing Redevelopment Project Area" and the 
adoption of tax increment financing therefore. The Redevelopment Project Area 
consists of the territory legally described in Exhibit I, attached hereto and made a part 
hereof. 

The Redevelopment Project Area is generally described as real property located 
in the Cermak Road and Harlem Avenue corridors of the City, which consists of parcels 
in the vicinity of Cermak Road, between Harlem Avenue and Wesley Avenue, and in the 
vicinity of Harlem Avenue, between Cermak Road and 30th Street. 

There will be considered at the public hearing the Redevelopment Plan and 
Project for the Redevelopment Project Area. The Redevelopment Plan as proposed is 
on file and available for public inspection at the office of the City Clerk, 6700 W. 26th 

Street, Berwyn, Illinois 60402. The proposed Redevelopment Plan and Project includes 
the acquisition and conveyance of land in the Redevelopment Project Area, demolition, 
clearance and related site preparation activities, the construction, acquisition and 
installation of certain public works and improvements, if any, including, but not limited 
to, streets, storm sewers, water mains, sanitary sewers, traffic signalization, curbs, 
gutters, landscaping and parking facilities and related costs and expenses, all as 
provided in the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act, as supplemented and 
amended. 

Prior to the date of the public hearing, each taxing district having property in the 
Redevelopment Project Area and the Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic 
Opportunity may submit written comments to the City, to the attention of the City Clerk, 
6700 W. 26th Street, Berwyn, Illinois 60402. 

There is hereby convened a joint review board to consider the proposed approval 
of the Redevelopment Plan and Project designation of the Redevelopment Project Area 
and adoption of tax increment financing therefore. The joint review board shall consist 
of a representative selected by each community college district; local elementary school 
district and high school district or each local community unit school district; park district; 
library district; township; fire protection district; and county that has authority to directly 
levy taxes on the property within the Redevelopment Project Area; a representative 
selected by the City; and a public member selected in accordance with the Act. The 



first meeting of said joint review board shall be held at 10:00 a.m. on the 17th day of 
May, 2011, at the Berwyn City Hall, 2nd Floor Conference Room, 6700 W. 26th Street, 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402. 

At the public hearing, all interested persons or affected taxing districts may file 
written objections with the City Clerk and may be heard orally with respect to any issues 
regarding the approval of the Redevelopment Plan and Project, the designation of the 
Redevelopment Project Area, and the adoption of tax increment financing therefore. 
The hearing may be adjourned by the Mayor and City Council without further notice 
other than a motion to be entered upon the minutes of the hearing fixing the time and 
place of the subsequent hearing. 

Thomas Pavlik 
City Clerk 
City of Berwyn 



EXHIBIT "1" (to EXHIBIT "Btl) 
PROPOSED HARLEM AVENUE REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
THAT PART OF SECTIONS 19 AND 30, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF THE THIRD 
PEINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN COOK COUN1Y, ILLINOIS, BEING DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 30; 
THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 30 TO A POINT ON THE 
WESTERLY EXTENSION OF THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTH 17 FEET OF LOT 28 IN BLOCK 9 OF 
KIRCHMAN AND JED LAM'S WESTERN AGENCY AND LOAN CORPORATION SUBDIVISION, BEING 
A SUBDIVISION IN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 30; 
THENCE EASTERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY EXTENSION AND NORTH LINE AND THE 
EASTERL Y EXTENSION THEREOF TO A POINT ON THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE 
NORTH-SOUTH ALLEY IN SAID BLOCK 9; 
THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TOA POINT ON THE SOUTH 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 30TH STREET; 
THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE TO A POINT ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY 
LINE OF SAID 30TH STREET AND THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE NORTH-SOUTH ALLEY 
IN BLOCK 5 OF SAID KIRCHMAN AND JEDLAM'S WESTERN AGENCY AND LOAN CORPORATION 
SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 29TH STREET; . 
THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE TO A POINT ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY 
LINE OF SAID 29TH STREET AND THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE NORTH-SOUTH ALLEY 
IN BLOCK 4 OF SAID KIRCHMAN AND JEDLAM'S WESTERN AGENCY AND LOAN CORPORATION 
SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND ALONG THE EAST RIGHT
OF-WAY LINE OF THE NORTH-SOUTH AND NORTHEASTERL Y-SOUTHWESTERL Y ALLEY IN 
KOMAREK'S RIVERSIDE DRIVE SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION IN SAID SOUTHWEST 
QUARTER OF SECTION 3D, TO AN ANGLE POINT IN SAID NORTH-SOUTH AND NORTHEASTERLY· 
SOUTHWESTERLY ALLEY; 
THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID ALLEY TO A POINT ON THE 
SOUTHEASTERLY EXTENSION OF THE SOUTHWESTERLY LINE OF LOT 8 IN SAID KOMAREK'S 
RIVERSIDE DRIVE SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTHEASTERLY EXTENSION AND SOUTHWESTERLY 
LINE AND NORTHWESTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO A POINT ON THE NORTHWESTERLY 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF RIVERSIDE DRIVE; 
THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND 
NORTHEASTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO A POINT ON THE NORTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY 
LINE OF THE ILLINOIS CENTRAL RAILROAD; 
THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO A POINT 
ON THE SOUTHWESTERLY EXTENSION OF THE SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT -OF-WAY LINE OF THE 
NORTHEASTERLY-SOUTHWESTERLY ALLEY IN RIVERSIDE PARK SUBDIVISION, BEING A 
SUBDIVISION IN SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 30; 
THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTHWESTERLY EXTENSION AND SOUTHEASTERLY 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO A POINT ON THE EASTERLY EXTENSION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF THE 
HARLEM AND 26TH STREET SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION IN SAID SOUTHWEST 
QUARTER OF SECTION 30; 
THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID EASTERLY EXTENSION AND SOUTH LINE TO THE 
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 5 IN SAID HARLEM AND 26TH STREET SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 5 AND THE NORTHERLY EXTENSION 
THEREOF TO A POINT ON THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 30; 
THENCE EASTERLY ALONG SAID NORTH LINE TO A POINT ON THE CENTERLINE OF RIVERSIDE 
DRIVE; 



THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID CENTERLINE TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE Of THE 
WEST HALf Of THE NORTHWEST QUARTER Of SAID SECTION 30; 
THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID EAST LINE TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY EXTENSION Of 
THE SOUTH RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE Of THE EAST-WEST ALLEY LYING NORTH Of AND ADJOINING 
THE NORTH LINE Of LOTS 23 AND 126 IN THE 22ND STREET LAND ASSOCIATION SUBDIVlSION, 
BEING A SUBDIVISION IN SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER Of SECTION 30; 
THENCE EASTERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY EXTENSION AND SOUTH RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE AND 
EASTERLY EXTENSION THEREOf TO A POINT ON THE EASTERLY RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE Of 
CLINTON AVENUE AND THE SOUTH RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE Of THE EAST-WEST ALLEY LYING 
NORTH Of AND ADJOINING LOTS 127 AND 1971N SAID 22NO STREET LAND ASSOCIATION 
SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE EASTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE AND EASTERLY EXTENSION 
THEREOf TO A POINT ON THE EAST RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE Of KENILWORTH AVENUE AND THE 
SOUTH RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE Of THE EAST-WEST ALLEY LYING NORTH Of AND ADJOINING 
LOTS 99 AND 52 IN OAK PARK AVENUE AND 22ND STREET SUBDIVlSION, BEING A SUBDIVISION 
IN SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER Of SECTION 30; 
THENCE EASTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE AND EASTERLY EXTENSION 
THEREOf TO A POINT ON THE CENTER LINE Of GROVE AVENUE; 
THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID CENTER LINE TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY EXTENSION 
Of THE SOUTH LINE Of THE NORTH HALf Of LOT 50 IN SAID OAK PARK AVENUE AND 22ND 
STREET SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE EASTERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY EXTENSION AND SOUTH LINE TO A POINT ON THE 
WEST RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE Of THE NORTH-SOUTH ALLEY LYING EAST Of AND ADJOIN ING SAID 
LOT 50; 
THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY 
EXTENSION Of THE SOUTH LINE Of LOT 22 IN SAID OAK PARK AVENUE AND 22NO STREET 
SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE EASTERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY EXTENSION AND SOUTH LINE AND EASTERLY 
EXTENSION THEREOf TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE Of THE NORTHEAST QUARTER Of SAID 
SECTION 30; 
THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID WEST LINE TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY EXTENSION Of 
THE NORTH LINE Of LOT 23 IN BLOCK 1 IN KLIMA'S SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION IN SAID 
NORTHEAST QUARTER Of SECTION 30; 
THENCE EASTERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY EXTENSION AND NORTH LINE AND EASTERLY 
EXTENSION THEREOf TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE Of THE 
NORTHEASTERL Y-SOUTHWESTERL Y ALLEY IN SAID BLOCK 1; 
THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE TO THE SOUTH 
RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE Of THE EAST-WEST ALLEY IN SAID BLOCK 1; 
THENCE EASTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE AND EASTERLY EXTENSION 
THEREOf TO A POINT ON THE CENTER LINE Of WESLEY AVENUE; 
THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID CENTER LINE TO A POINT ON THE EASTERLY EXTENSION 
Of THE NORTH RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE Of THE EAST-WEST ALLEY LYING NORTH Of AND 
ADJOINING LOT MG" IN BERWYN MANOR SUBDIVISION; 
BEING A SUBDIVISION IN THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER Of SAID SECTION 19; 
THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID EASTERLY EXTENSION AND NORTH RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE AND 
WESTERLY EXTENSION THEREOf TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE Of EUCLID 
AVENUE AND THE NORTH RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE Of THE EAST-WEST ALLEY LYING NORTH Of 
AND ADJOINING LOT ~W IN SAID BERWYN MANOR SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE AND WESTERLY EXTENSION 
THEREOf TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE OF OAK PARK AVENUE AND THE 
NORTH RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE Of THE EAST-WEST ALLEY LYING NORTH Of AND ADJOINING LOT 
"An IN BERWYN GARDEN'S SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION IN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER 
Of SAID SECTION 19; 
THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE AND WESTERLY EXTENSION 
THEREOf TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE Of GROVE AVENUE AND THE NORTH 



RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE EAST-WEST ALLEY LYING NORTH OF AND ADJOINING LOT ~B~ IN 
SAID BERWYN GARDEN'S SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND WESTERLY EXTENSION 
THEREOF TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KENILWORTH AVENUE AND THE 
NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE EAST-WEST ALLEY LYING NORTH Of AND ADJOINING LOT 
"C· IN SAID BERWYN GARDENS SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE WESTERL Y ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND WESTERLY EXTENSION 
THEREOf TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CLINTON AVENUE AND THE 
NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE Of THE EAST-WEST ALLEY LYING NORTH OF AND ADJOINING LOT 
"Dft IN SAID BERWYN GARDENS SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND WESTERLY EXTENSION 
THEREOf TO APOINT ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF HOME AVENUE AND THE NORTH 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE EAST-WEST ALLEY LYING NORTH OF AND ADJOINING LOT "E" IN 
SAID BERWYN GARDENS SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND WESTERLY EXTENSION 
THEREOF TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF WENONAH AVENUE AND THE 
NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE EAST-WEST ALLEY LYING NORTH OF AND ADJOINING LOT 
MFO IN SAID BERWYN GARDENS SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND WESTERLY EXTENSION 
THEREOF TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE Of WISCONSIN AVENUE AND THE 
NORTH RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE Of THE EAST-WEST ALLEY LYING NORTH Of AND ADJOINING LOT 
"G" IN SAID BERWYN GARDENS SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND WESTERLY EXTENSION 
THEREOF TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE Of MAPLE AVENUE AND THE NORTH 
RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE Of THE EAST-WEST ALLEY LYING NORTH Of AND ADJOINING LOT UH" IN 
SAID BERWYN GARDENS SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND WESTERLY EXTENSION 
THEREOf TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 19; 
THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID WEST LINE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
EXCEPTING THEREFROM, LOTS 295,296,351,352 AND 353 IN SAID BERWYN GARDENS 
SUBDIVISION; 
ALSO EXCEPTING, 
THAT PART OF LOT 1 IN THE CIRCUIT COURT PARTITION OF THE WEST HALf OF SAID 
NORTHWEST QUARTER Of SECTION 30, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE 
INTERSECTION Of THE SOUTH RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE OF CERMAK ROAD AND WITH THE WEST 
RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE OF HOME AVENUE; 
THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 37 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST ON AN ASSUMED BEARING 
ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE 286.00 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 22 MINUTES WEST, A DISTANCE Of 5.0 fEET ALONG SAID SOUTH 
RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE; 
THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES, 37 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST, 321.70 FEET ALONG SAID 
SOUTH RIGHT-Of-WAY LINE; 
THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 22 MINUTES 20 SECONDS WEST, 61.50 fEET TO THE POINT Of 
BEGINNING; 
THENCE CONTINUING SOUTH 00 DEGREES 22 MINUTES 20 SECONDS WEST, 161 .00 fEET; 
THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 37 MIUNUTES 40 SECONDS WEST, 160.00 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 22 MINUTES 20 SECONDS EAST, 161.00 fEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 37 MINUTES 40 SECONDS EAST, 160.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING. 
ALSO EXCEPTING, 
THAT PART OF SAID LOT 1 IN THE CIRCUIT COURT PARTITION OF THE WEST HALF OF SAID 
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 30, DESCRIED AS fOLLOWS: 
COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER Of SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER; 
THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 38 MINUTES 08 SECONDS EAST, 243.02 FEET ALONG THE NORTH 
LINE OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER; 



THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 21 MINUTES 52 SECONDS WEST, 65.00 FEET TO THE SOUTH 
RIGHT·OF-WAY LINE OF CERMAK ROAD, (DEDICATED AS PER DOCUMENT NO. 19198042, 
RECORDED JULY 28,1964) SAID POINT BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 
THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 14 MINUTES 16 SECONDS EAST, 91.26 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 61 DEGREES 14 MINUTES 31 SECONDS WEST, 67.86 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 06 SECONDS WEST, 59.37 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 57 DEGREES 39 MINUTES 48 SECONDS WEST, 87.41 FEET TO A POINT ON THE 
EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF HARLEM AVENUE; 
THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST, 107.00 FEET ALONG SAID EAST 
RIGHT-OF·WAY LINE TO A 65.00 FEET RADIUS CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY; THENCE 
NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE 102.51 FEET (THE CHORD BEARS NORTH 45 DEGREES 
10 MINUTES 56 SECONDS EAST TO A POINT ON SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CERMAK 
ROAD; 
THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 38 MINUTES 08 SECONDS EAST, 127.19 FEET ALONG SAID SOUTH 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 



~ (] r; P I, n f\ TID ~,I 

3322 S. Oak Park Avenue 
Second Floor 
Berwyn,lL 60402 

708.788.8100 

fax: 708.788.0%6 

www.berwyn.net 

April 26, 2011 

Mayor Robert J. Lonro 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 
Berwyn City Hall 
6700 West 26111 Street 
Berwyn, n. 60402 

Re: Land Swap Agreement with tbe North Berwyn Parks District 

Dear Mayor and City Council, 

Please see the attached land swap agreement between the City of Berwyn and the 
North Berwyn Parks District. The agreement was drafted by special legal counsel 
for the City and drafted to achieve benefits for both parties. 

Res~CtfullY submitted for your consideration, 

J/tt:;;" 
Andiony ~ Griffin 



REAL ESTATE EXCHANGE AqREEMENT 

THIS REAL ESTATE EXCHANGE AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") is made 
and entered into as of the __ day of .2011 (the "Effective Date"), by 
and between THE NORTH BERWYN PARK DISTRICT, a park district organized under 
the laws of the State of Illinois, (the "District") and THE CITY OF BERWYN, a 
municipal corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Illinois, (the "City"). 
The District, together with the City. for convenience purposes only may be referred to 
herein as the "Parties" and each individually as a "Party." 

RECITALS 

A. The District is the owner of apprQxil1l}ltety +/-0.92 acres of real property 

(with all rights, interests and appurtenances th~reto) loc , d in the City of Berwyn, 
Illinois, legally described in Exhibit A-l depicted in "Ibh'bit A-2 (the "District 

Property"). 

B. 

C. 
equivalent values. 

hereunder. 

. BE INSER~J acres of real 

.rtapce$' thereto) located ~ the City of 

- and depicted in Group Exhibit 

F. leves that the transactions contemplated hereunder are in the 

best interests of the heal ,safety and welfare of its constituency and that this Agreement 

is consistent with the goals and objectives of each Party in promoting the general public 

welfare. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the exchange ofTen and No/lOO United 

States Dollars ($10.00), the mutual covenants contained herein and other good and 

valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 

the Parties hereby agree as follows : 

1 



1. Agreement to Convey. At the Closing (as defined below) the District shall 
convey the District Property to the City, and the City shall convey the City Property to 
the District. In addition to other consideration set forth below, each transfer contemplated 
herein is to be made in consideration and as a contingent obligation of the other. 

2. Closing and Closing Conditions. 

a. The closing of the exchange of the City Property and the District Property 
contemplated by this Agreement, unless otherwise terminated, shall occur no later than 
fourteen (14) calendar days after the satisfaction of the Inspection Period (as defined 
below) or such earlier date as may be agreed to by the Parties in writing (the "Closing"). 
In the event the Closing does not occur prior to [TO BE INSERTED] each Party shall 
have the right to terminate this Agreement by delivering: to the non-tenninating Party a 
written notice of its intent to terminate. ' 

b. The Closing shall occur through a "standard form "Closwg Escrow" established 
and maintained at the offices of the Titl~ Company (as defined below) (the "Escrow 
Agreement"). The Escrow Agreement shall contain any special provisions required by 
this Agreement or the transactiQn .. contemplatoo hel'CW)der. In the event of a conflict 
between the terms of this A~nt ~d the I!scnfw Agreement, the terms of this 
Agreement shall in all instances govern and ·CQntrol. 

3. 

~. Ip addition to other closing oriditrons specifically enumerated in this 
Agreement, the following.shalttle dditional g>n.ditions precedent for the Closing: 

. i. This A~reem~t·· not being previously terminated pursuant to its 
terms an~ ·conditions; 

ii. The , etion Period having been expired, terminated or waived; 

111. Eact} Party's representations and warranties being accurate, correct 
and true as if specifically remade at the Closing. 

b. Each Party has the right to waive its conditions precedent tmder this 
Agreement. 

4. Closing Deliveries; Closing Costs and Expenses; Post-Closing Costs. 

2 



a. District's Closing Deliveries. At or prior to the Closing the District shall 
deliver to the City and/or the Title Company, as applicable, the following documents 
and items: 

1. A special warranty deed (the "District Deed") conveying the 
District Property to the City subject only to the Permitted 
Exceptions (as hereinafter defined) or such other exceptions as 
expressly agreed to herein; 

11. A Certificate of Non.Foreign Status of the District, as required by 
Section 1445 of the Internal Rev.ehu Code (and any amendment 
thereto). which certifies that the District is not a foreign transferor 
and which is in a form and s b~t~ reasonably satisfactory to the 
City; 

111. 

IV. a personal "Gap" 

v. 

vi. Such proof of the District's authority and authorization to enter 
into this transaction as may be required by the Title Company, 
whi~ ay include certified copies of any and all legislation 
pass and certified by the District's Board of Commissioners 
pefrtlitting the District to undertake the transaction contemplated 
herein; 

vii . Possession (and use, as applicable) of the District Property, free of 
parties in possession (except as specifically set forth herein or as 
otherwise mutually agreed to by a written agreement of the 
Parties), in the same condition as of the Effective Date (excepting 
normal wear and tear and environmental remediation); 

3 



Vl1l. A standard form Bill of Sale, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 
C, executed by the District and conveying all personal property 
located on the District Property to the City in an "as is," "where is" 
and "with all faults" condition; and 

IX. Originals of all items necessary for the City to enter, exit, secure 
and use the District Property including, without limitation, keys, 
key cards, alarm codes and garage door openers necessary for the 
City to enter and exit the District Property. 

b. City's Closing Deliveries. At or prior to the Ol~ing the City shall deliver to 

the District andlor the Title Company, as applicable. ·the following documents and 
items: 

1. A special warranty deed (the "City Deed") conveying the City 
Property to the Disfric subject only to tb,e Pennitted Exceptions 
(as hereinafter de '" }. or such other ex~pt.ions as expressly 
agreed to herein; 

11. 

iii. 

iv. An of Title and a personal "Gap" 

v. 'F.ive <85 original closing statements prepared by the City in a 
ma.rnler which reflects the terms and conditions of this Agreement, 
as applicable, and that is otherwise in a form reasonably acceptable 
to the District; 

vi . Such proof of the City's authority and authorization to enter into 
this transaction as may be required by the Title Company, which 
may include certified copies of any and a\l legislation passed and 
certified by the City's Corporate Authorities permitting the City to 
undertake the transaction contemplated herein; 

4 



Vll. Possession (and use, as applicable) of the City Property, free of 
parties in possession (except as specifically set forth herein or as 
otherwise mutually agreed to by a written agreement of the 
Parties), in the same condition as of the Effective Date (excepting 
normal wear and tear and environmental remediation); 

Vlll. A standard form Bill of Sale. in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 
C, executed by the City and conveying all personal property 
located on the City Property to the District in an "as is," "where is" 
and "with all faults" condition; and 

IX. Originals of all items necess~ 'or the District to enter, exit, 
secure and use the City P opc;rt,J jncluding, without limitation, 
keys, key cards. alarm cod ~d'-g age door openers necessary 
for the District to ent·er..-and;'exit the CIty operty. 

~==~~~~~¥~=~tI¥'=ens~es. The Parties shall share equally all 
Escrow. Each Party shall individually be 
. ts and expenses for the property it is 

1 

00 inlfg the.... T.i~le Commitment. the Title Policy and the Survey 
(wiili'~l such terms defined below); 

st 0 record any instruments to consummate the transaction 
mptated hereunder; 

111. Any costs or expenses imposed by governmental bodies regarding 
the transfer of real estate, if imposed on this transaction; 

iv. All taxes, service fees and utility expenses incurred by the then 
cunent property owner prior to the Closing; 

IV. All legal and other professional fees incurred in consummating this 
transaction. 

5 



e. Post·Closing Real Estate Tax; Acknowledgement. Each Party 
acknowledges that the property it is transferring to the other Party is exempt from 

taxes imposed under the Cook County Real Property Taxation Ordinance. 

S. Title Insurance; Survey; Approval of Title and Survey. 

a. Title Corrunitment. Within fifteen (15) calendar days after the Effective 
Date, the then current owner of the property being exchanged (to wit: the District for the 

District Property and the City for the City Property) shall deliver to the other Party a 
commitment for an ALTA 2006 Owner's Title Insurance Policy issued by the Title 
Company evidencing the ownership in the applicable Rr perty in the then current owner 
of the property (the "Title Commitment"). Each Titlj;: Commitment shall be issued to the 
Parties in an amount agreed to by the Parties is , writing. but in no event less than Ten 
Thousand and No/IOO United States Dollars ($'IO, 0.00) (the "Insurable Amount"). The 
Title Commitment shall be subject to: (i) the five (5) general e"ceptions; (ii) general real 
estate taxes (if applicable); (iii) matters 'ated by, through ' under the successor 
owner of the property in question (to wit: th City for the Distri8l Property and the 
District for the City Property); (iv-} covenants, ndiiions and ma~ters -Qf record on the 
property; and (v) all the items lisled~n the Title C mitment, induding title exceptions 
pertaining to liens, taxes or encumbrances 0 a ,?efinite, or, ascertainable amount that the 
then current owner of the property sfi~l remove from the Title Commitment on or prior 
to the Closing througij 8· pay~ent of. oney or bY-· contesting the encumbrance in 
question. 

b. Title Policy. ~or to the Clbsing, the Title Company shall prepare a 
standarq· fo~ -ATLA_ 2006 Owner's Policy Of fitle Insurance insuring the good and 
marketable title to each P{operty in the InsurabJe Amount and containing a standard fonn 
endorsem t for "extended cove~e,~' and all other endorsements requested by the Party 
taking title-to the property in uestion <the ''Title Policy"), The Parties agree to direct the 
Title Company to deliver ea<rh Title Policy at the Closing. The Title Policy delivered at 
the Closing will Show the qty as the titleholder of the District Property and the District 
as the titleholder of the 6 ity property. 

c. Survey. Within fifteen (15) calendar days after the Effective Date, the then 
current owner of the property being exchanged shall deliver to the other Party a standard 

form ALTA survey prepared by a mutually acceptable land surveyor licensed in the State 
of Illinois (the "Survey"). The Survey shall minimally contain the following: (i) the 
number of net usable square feet contained in the surveyed property; (ii) all easements, 
roadways, streets, highways, alleys, wetlands, flood plains, rights of way and other such 
items of material impact to any future use of the property being surveyed; (iii) all 

exceptions enumerated on Schedule B of the Title Commitment for the property being 
surveyed; and (iv) a certification of the Survey to the benefit of the Party taking title to 

6 



the property being surveyed, The Survey shall also contain any commercially reasonable 
items requested in writing by the Party taking title to the property in question, 

d, Title and Survey Approval. Each Party shall have a period of ten (10) 
calendar days following the later receipt of (i) the Title Commitment or (ii) the Survey to 
review sllch documents and deliver to the other (and the Title Company) a notice of 
objections that Party may have to anything contained in, set forth in or disclosed by the 
document in question ("Unpennitted Exceptions"), Any item not objected to pursuant to 
the terms of this Section shall be considered accepted and thereafter deemed a "Permitted 
Exception," The Party receiving notice of an Unpermitted Exception may, within ten 
(l0) calendar days after receipt of said notice, elect t,o eliminate or satisfy the 
Unpermitted Exception(s) to the satisfaction of the er Party. If the recipient of the 
objection is unable or unwilling to correct any Un~tted Exception within the ten (10) 
calendar day period, that Party shall be deemed t have elected not to make such cure, in 
which event the Objecting Party shall have til 'ght, at its e'~tion and as its sale and 
exclusive remedy, prior to the expiration;tt itional ten (i' ) ca!endM day period, to: 
(a) waive any and all Unpermitted Exceptio and accept title to \.tqe p,foperty in question 
subject to such Unpermitted Exceptions in 'ch event,such Un~rtrutted Exceptions 
shall be deemed "Permitted Exceptions" or (b) rminate"' this Agree~~ In the event 
that the objecting Party has o t 'ved the itted Exceptions prior to the 
expiration of the objection and ' set fortfi ve, the objecting Party shall be 
deemed to have elected to terminate s ent. Iri event that the objecting Party 
elects or is deemed to have-tenninat this A~ nt, th this Agreement shall be null 
and void, and neither1>~y to shall a e apy f\lrther obligafions or liability under this 
Agreement, exce as ( pecifi 1 set fo 

6. nification' Insurance. For a period of 

7 



representatives enter, the property being inspected, the inspecting Party agrees to deliver 
evidence of liability insurance reasonably acceptable to then current owner of the 
property. 

7. Representations and Warranties. Each Party represents and warrants to the 
other as follows: 

a. It has the power and authority to carry out its obligations under this 
Agreement, and that all requisite governmental action necessary to 
authorize it to enter into this Agreement and to carry out its obligations 
under this Agreement has been, or on or b fO"e the Closing will have been 

b. 

taken; 

Revenue Code of 
thereunder; 

cHon 1445 of the Internal 
. e Income Tax Regulations 

c. It is not a person or entity d cribed by Section 1 oNn Executive Order 

d. 

(No. 13,224) Blgcking Prope~ .~ ohibiting ~actions With 
Persons Who Co. t. , eaten to" it, or Support Terrorism, 66 Fed. 
Reg. 49,079 (Septe~r.2St 001), an'd d s not engage in any dealings or 
transactions. and is nQt'oth ' LSC. associated, with any of those persons or 

or.any part tber:eof, 'or encumbrances that would limit, prohibit or in 
..... " ', 

any way govern the City's' Intended Use of the property it will 

receive und81i the terms of this Agreement other than the Permitted 

~ceptions and other than this Agreement; 

e. It used the tm?perty being conveyed in the normal course of its business 
and maintQ!ped it in the same condition as of the Effective Date (excepting 
any alterations to the property that occurred due to inspections occurring 
during the mspection Period); 

f. It has no actual knowledge of the presence of any "Hazardous Substance" 
as defined in Exhibit 0 on the property it intends to transfer; 

g. It has not used a real estate agent or broker in connection with this 
transaction and has not engaged a property manager regarding its property. 

8 



8. CondemnatioD. In the event that between the Effective Date and the Closing any 
condemnation or eminent domain proceedings are initiated that might result in the taking 
of any part of the City Property or the District Property, the acquiring Party shall have the 
right to terminate this Agreement, in which event the rights and obligations of the Parties 
under this Agreement shall cease with the exception of those specifically exempted 
therefrom pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement. 

9. Default. 

a. Any of the following will constitute an act of default hereunder by 
the Party that is the then current owner of the City Property or the District Property, as 
applicable: 

\. failure of the City to "li~ 'the City Deed or failure of the 
District to deliver the District Deed or ~y Gi' the required and material 
documentation at the Closing; 

II. 

Ill. 

or under this Agreement 0 
performed befo~~e Closing. 

b. 

or rna rial breach of any 
representations and warranties may be 

are required to be 

ii. mate(j misrepresentation or material breach of any 
~tation or W anty (~ such representations and warranties may be 

by' an amendatory notice); or 

iii. faIlure to perfonn any of its material obligations hereunder. 

10. Remedies. 

a. In the event that the then cu~ent owner of the City Property or the District 
Property, as applicable. fails to comply with any of its obligations to be 
performed hereunder, on or prior to the Closing, then the acquiring Party 
shall have available to it any remedies in law or equity. Except as set forth 
above, in no event shall the current owner of the City Property or the 
District Property, as applicable, be liable to the acquiring Party for any 
third party damages including, without limitation, any loss or damage 
suffered by the acquiring Party in connection with any agreement or 

9 



understanding with any third party with respect to the use, lease or 
purchase of the property being acquired. 

b. In the event that the acquiring Party fails to comply with any of the 
obligations to be performed by it hereunder, on or prior to the Closing, and 
the then current owner of the City Property or the District Property, as 
applicable, is not otherwise in breach or default of its obligations or 
conditions precedent/Closing contingencies hereunder, the Inspection 
Period has expired or been waived and this Agreement has not been 
terminated. the then current owner shall have the right to exercise any 
remedies available to it in law or equity. 

11. Notices. Any notice, termination, w~'ver request, demand or . other 
communication provided for by this Agreement shan ~ ~ v,{riting and shall be deemed to 
have been duly received upon: (A) actua~ receipt"-if person81~ delivered and the sender 
received written confirmation of personal deliVery; {B) receipt as indicated by the written 
or electronic verification of delivery w delivered by overnight courier; (C) upon 
rec~ipt, or refusal, as th~ .case may. be, a~"!he sender e~sts notice with th~ U.S. Post 
OffIce when sent by certIfIed or regIstered mail, return celpt requested. NotIce shall be 
sent to the addresses set forth bel~ Or to such 'oth\r address as either Party may specify 
in writing. 

To the City: 

With a «opy to: 
'-

Ber I;>evelopme t orporation 
3322 S. Oak Park Avenue 
Berwyn, 60402 I 

Attention: ExeCutive Director 
Facsimile: 708-188-0966 

and 

Del GaIda Law Group, LLC 
1441 S. Harlem Avenue 
Berwyn, TIlinois 60402 
Attention: James M. Vasselli 
Facsimile: 708-222-7001 

To the District: 

10 



North Berwyn Park District 
1619 Wesley Avenue 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402 
Attention : ______ _ 
Facsimile: - - -----

With a copy to: 

Attention: ______ _ 
Facsimile: -------

The parties, by notice given hereunder, m~y deSignate any further or different 
address to which subsequent notices, certif~ p[ovals, consents or other 
communications shall be sent. 

12. 

13. 

ovenants Runnin With Land. The term 
tive Date after the later of approval by 

all of the obligations of the Parties hereto 

13.02 Amendment. This Agreement and any exhibits attached hereto may be 
amended only by the mutual consent of the'Parties and by the adoption of an ordinance or 
resolution of the City and the District approving said amendment, as provided by law and 
by the execution of said amendment by the Parties or their successors in interest. 

13.03 No Other Agreements. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, 
this Agreement supersedes all prior agreements, negotiations and discussions relative to 
the subject matter hereof, and, together with the exhibits, represents the full integration of 
the agreement of the Parties. The Parties acknowledge and agree that some Exhibits will 
be supplemented and modified and agree to integrate such mutually acceptable 

11 



modifications and amendments in good faith into this Agreement. The Exhibits attached 
hereto shall be controlling documents where a conflict arises and are hereby incorporated 
herein by this reference. 

13 .04 Consent. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, whenever the 
consent or approval of either Party is required, sllch consent or approval shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. 

13.05 Conflict of InterestlLimitation of Liability. No member, official or 
employee of the City or the District shall have any personal interest, direct or indirect, in 
this Agreement; nor shall any such member, official or employee participate in any 
decision relating to this Agreement which affects his personal interests or the interests of 
any corporation, partnership, or association in W 'Iro he is directly or indirectly 
interested. No member, official, employee or agent o( the City or the District shall be 
personally liable to the other or any successor .llfJl].terest iIi ,~e event of any Default or 
breach of this Agreement. 

13.06 Mutual Assistance. The ~i s agree to take suCh ,actions., including the 
execution and delivery of such documents,' truments •. petitions ' and certifications, as 
may be necessary or appropriate to carry out . e t ttn§: provisions ~d intent of this 
Agreement. 

f' ." IS. A roVal' olice Power. Any approvals 
made by the City with regard to this sactiori ~e for the purposes of this Agreement 
only and do not affec o~-,~~n.stj tute ap~als r ~/ired for bujJding penn its or approvals 
required pursuant SPy other dinance\cO( tile ,eity, nQr does any approval by the City 
pursuant to. this Agfee~~~t co~ti~te app~vaI ?f the qua1ity, structural soundness or the 
safety of eIther the Disti'lct Prbpe~ or the, City Property to be transferred hereunder, 
except as .sp7eCifically set forth erein. Nothing herein waives the right of the City to 
exerci.~e any police. \yer ction nonn!illy attributed to a municipality. All approvals 
hereurtd ~ are by the City and SUbject to the advice and consent of its consultants, 
contractOrs. accountants:' adv' sors ana attorneys. Consideration of or cons ent to a request 
of the D IS 'Gt does not mean approval but shall require the City's good faith 
consideration Of th.e same. 

13.08 Rel11ldies Cufufrative. The remedies of a Party hereunder are cumulative 
and the exercise of any • ~ more of the remedies provided for herein shall not be 
construed as a waiver o(,a y of the other remedies of such Party unless specifically so 
provided herein. 

13.09 Disclaimer. Nothing contained in this Agreement, or any act of the City, 
shall be deemed or construed by any of the Parties, or by third persons, to create any 
relationship of third party beneficiary, or of principal or agent, or of limited or general 
partnership, or of joint venture, or of any association or relationship involving the City. 

13.10 Governing Law; Limitation of Liability; Limitation of Funds Available. 
The provisions of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of minois. 

12 



Nothing in this Agreement shall waive any governmental immunity protections available 
to the City. 

13.11 Paragraph: Headings. The paragraph headings and references are for the 
convenience of the Parties and are not intended to limit. vary, define or expand the terms 
and provisions contained in this Agreement and shall not be used to interpret or construe 
the tenns and provisions of this Agreement. 

13.12 CounterpartslFacsimile and Electronic Transmission. This Agreement 
may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and 
all of which, when taken together. shall constitute a single agreement. A signature 
affixed to this Agreement and transmitted by facsimile or electronic mail sha1l have the 
same effect as an original signature 

13 .15 eed. None of the prov isions of this 
Agreement are intended to erge ~ shall ' ey be merged, by reason of any deed 
transfeFFmg title to ally, portiqn of any propetty . i'ng transferred hereunder, and said deed 
shall not h'e deemed to affect or jrnpair the provisions and covenants of this Agreement. 

13.16, R.eimburseOO ' t. Ariy reimbursement to be made heretmder shall be made 
no later thard hirty (30) days aIter the eimbursing Party receives a written request for the 
same from the '~atty Ito be nrimbursed. The written request shall contain commercially 
reasonable support4lg invoices nd other supporting information/documentation. 

13 .17 Days. All da~ except where specifically set forth herein, shall be read as 
calendar days. fu the event that a deadline set forth herein falls on a Saturday, Sunday or 
an Illinois or nationally recognized holiday, the deadline shall be extended to the 
following Business Day. 

[signature page to follow) 

13 



THIS AGREEMENT is made and delivered as of the date fIrst above written. 

ATTEST: ______________ _ 

By: 

By: 

NORTH BERWYN PARK DISTRICT, a 
park district organized under the laws of the 
State of Illinois: 

By: __________________ ___ 

Its: --------------------

,RWYN, an Illinois municipal 

By: -'---"''--.......-____________ _ 
Hon. Rooert J. Lavero, Mayor 

14 



EXHIBIT A·1 

15 



EXIDBIT A·2 

16 



GROUP EXHffiIT B-1 

17 



GROUP EXInBIT B-2 

18 



EXHIBITC 

19 



EXlllBITD 

20 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

RESOLUTION 
NUl\1BER ___ _ 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER AND EXCHANGE OF CERTAIN 
REAL PROPERTY WITH THE NORTH BERWYN PARK DISTRICT 

AND THE EXECUTION OF A CERTAIN AGREEMENT 

Robert J. Lovero, Mayor 
Thomas J. Pavlik, City Clerk 

Nona Chapman 
Jeffrey Boyajian 
Margaret Paul 
Michele Skryd 
Cesar Santoy 

Theodore Polashek 
Rafael A vila 

Nora Laureto 
Aldermen 

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the Mayor and City Clerk of the City of Benry n on April 27, 20] 1. 



RESOLUTION No. ___ _ 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER AND EXCHANGE OF CERTAIN 
REAL PROPERTY WITH THE NORTH BERWYN PARK DISTRICT 

AND THE EXECUTION OF A CERTAIN AGREEMENT 

WHEREAS, the City of Berwyn (the "City") is a home rule unit of local government as is 

provided by Article vn, Section 6(a) of the Illinois Constitution (1970) and, as such. may exercise 

various powers and perform numerous functions pertaining to its government and affairs in any 

manner not otherwise prohibited by law; and 

WHEREAS, the North Berwyn Park District ("District") is the owner of approximately 0.92 

acres of real property (with all rights, interests and appurtenances thereto) located in the City, which 

property is legally described that certain Real Estate Exchange Agreement (the "Agreement"), 

attached hereto and incorporated herein, (the "District Property"); and 

WHEREAS, the City is the owner of certain real property, legally described in the 

Agreement, (the "City Property"); and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council desire to convey the City Property to the District, 

in exchange for which the District will convey the District Property to the City (collectively, the 

"Conveyances"); and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council has determined that it is necessary and 

convenient for the City to use, occupy and improve the District Property for the public purpose of 

promoting redevelopment and revitalization of properties located within the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City's use, occupancy and improvements of the District Property will 

promote the health, safety and welfare of the City and its inhabitants by, among other things, 

encouraging development. enhancing the local tax base and increasing employment opportunities; 

and 



WHEREAS, previously, in accordance with the Local Govemment Property Transfer Act 

(50 ILCS 605/0.01, et seq.) (the "Act"), the City adopted an ordinance requesting and consenting to 

the Disu'ict's conveyance of the District Property to the City; and 

WHEREAS, the District has adopted, or will adopt, the legislation required by the Act in 

furtherance of the exchange of real property set forth herein; and 

WHEREAS, the Agreement sets forth the terms and conditions that will govern the 

Conveyances; and 

WHEREAS, based upon the foregoing. the Mayor and the City Council have determined that 

it is necessary and in the best interests of the City and its residents to enter into the Agreement, 

thereby authorizing the Conveyances, and to take all necessary actions to accomplish the same; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois, by and through its home rule powers, as follows: 

Sectioll 1. The statements set forth in the preamble to this Resolution are found to be true 

and correct and are incorporated into this Resolution as if set forth in full. 

Secfion 2. The City Council hereby finds and determines that it is necessary and in the 

best interests of the City to enter into the Agreement and authorize the Conveyances. 

Section 3. The City's legal counsel is hereby authorized to negotiate and undertake any 

and all actions on the part of the City to effectuate the transaction contemplated by this Resolution. 

Section 4. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the Agreement and all documents 

required to complete the City's acquisition of the District Property, the City's transfer of the City 

property and to carry out the objectives set forth in this Resolution. The City Clerk is hereby 

authorized and directed to attest to and countersign any such documents, as required. 



Section 5. All prior actions of the City's officials, employees and agents with respect to 

the subject matter of this Resolution are hereby expressly ratified. 

Section 6. The provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be severable, and 

should any provision of this Resolution be determined to be in conflict with any law, statute or 

regulation by a court of competent jurisdiction, said provision shall be excluded and deemed 

inoperative, unenforceable and as though. not provided for herein, and all other provisions shall 

remain unaffected, unimpaired, valid and in full force and effect. 

Section 7. All ordinances, resolutions, rules and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict 

herewith are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby superseded. 

Section 8. TItis Resolution shall be immediately in full force nnd effect after passage, 

approval and publication. A full, true and complete copy of this Resolution shall be published in 

pamphlet form as provided by the lllinois Municipal Code, as amended. 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank. I 



ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, lllinois on this 26 111 

day of April 2011, pursuant to a roll call vote. as follows: 

YES 

Chapman 

Boyajian 

Paul 

Skryd 

Santoy 

Polashek 

Avila 

Laureto 

(Mayor Levero) 

TOTAL 

APPROVED this 26th day of April 2011. 

ATTEST: 

Thomas J. Pavlik 
CITY CLERK 

NO ABSENT 

Robert J. Levero 
MAYOR 

PRESENT 



EXlDBIT A 
Agreement 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

ORDINANCE 
NUMBER _ __ _ 

AN ORDINANCE REQUESTING THE CONVEYANCE OF CERTAIN PROPERTY 
FROM THE NORTH BERWYN PARK DISTRICT 

Robert J. Lovero, Mayor 
Thomas J. Pavlik, City Clerk 

Nona Chapman 
Jeffrey Boyajian 
Margaret Paul 
Michele Skryd 
Cesar Santoy 

Theodore Polashek 
Rafael Avila 

Nora Laureto 
Aldermen 

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the Mayor and City Clerk of the City of Berwyn on April 27, 2011. 



ORDINANCE No. ___ _ 

AN ORDINANCE REQUESTING THE CONVEYANCE OF CERTAIN PROPERTY 
FROM THE NORTH BERWYN PARK DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, the City of Berwyn (the "City") is a home rule unit of local government as is 

provided by Article VII, Section 6(a) of the Illinois Constitution (1970) and, as such, may exercise 

various powers and perform numerous functions pertaining to its government and affairs in any 

manner not otherwise prohibited by law; and 

WHEREAS, the North Berwyn Park District ("District") is the owner of approximately 0.92 

acres of real property (with all rights, interests and appurtenances thereto) located in the City, which 

property is legally described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein. (the "District 

Property"); and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council has determined that it is necessary and 

convenient for the City to use, occupy and improve the District Property for the public purpose of 

promoting redevelopment and revitalization of properties located within the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City's use, occupancy and improvements of the District Property will 

promote the health, safety and welfare of the City and its inhabitants by, among other things, 

encouraging development, enhancing the local tax base and increasing employment opportunities; 

and 

WHEREAS. the Mayor and City Council desire that the Board of Park Commissioners of the 

North Berwyn Park District convey the District Property to the City, pursuant to the authority 

conferred by the Local Government Property Transfer Act, 50 lLCS 605/0.01, et seq., for the City's 

use, occupancy and improvement. as set forth herein; and 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Berwyn, Cook County. Illinois, by and through its home rule powers, as follows: 

Section 1. The statements set forth in the preamble to this Ordinance are found to be true 

and correct and are incorporated into this Ordinance as if set forth in full. 

Section 2. The City Council hereby fmds and determines that it is necessary and 

convenient for the City to use, occupy and improve the District Property for the public purpose of 

promoting redevelopment and revitalization of properties located within the City and the City hereby 

requests and consents to the transfer of the District Property to the City on such terms and conditions 

as are mutually agreed upon by the Board of Park Commissioners of the District and the Mayor and 

City Council of the City. 

Section 3. The City's legal counsel is hereby authorized to negotiate and undertake any 

and all actions on the part of the City to effectuate the transaction contemplated by this Ordinance. 

Section 4. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute any and all documents required to 

complete the City'S acquisition of the District Property and to carry out the objectives set forth in this 

Ordinance. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and countersign any such 

documents, as required. 

Section 5. All prior actions of the City's officials, employees and agents with respect to 

the subject matter of this Ordinance are hereby expressly ratified. 

Section 6. The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be severable, and 

should any provision of this Ordinance be determined to be in conflict with any law, statute or 

regulation by a court of competent jurisdiction, said provision shall be excluded and deemed 

inoperative, unenforceable and as though not provided for herein, and all other provisions shall 

remain unaffected, unimpaired, valid and in full force and effect. 



Section 7. All ordinances, resolutions. rules and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict 

herewith are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby superseded. 

Section 8. This Ordinance shall be immediately in full force and effect after passage, 

approval and publication. A full, true and complete copy of this Ordinance shall be published in 

pamphlet fonn as provided by the Illinois Municipal Code, as amended. 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.] 



ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, lllinois on this 261h 

day of April 2011, pursuant to a roll call vote, as follows: 

YES 

Chapman 

Boyajian 

Paul 

Skryd 

Santoy 

Polashek 

Avila 

Laurete 

(Mayor Lovero) 

TOTAL 

APPROVED this 261h day of April 2011. 

ATTEST: 

Thomas 1. Pavlik 
CITY CLERK 

NO ABSENT 

Robert J, Lovere 
MAYOR 

PRESENT 



EXHIBIT A 
Legal Description of District Property 



F. Reports and Communications 

From The Mayor 



The City of Berwyn 

( \ 
J 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

PROCLAMATION 
Teacher Appreciation Week 

Robert]. Lovero 
Mayor 

WHEREAS, teachers open children's minds to the magic of ideas, knowledge and dreams; and 

WHEREAS, teachers keep American democracy alive by laying the foundation for good citizenship; and 

WHEREAS, teachers fill many roles, as listeners, explorers, role models, motivators and mentors; and 

WHEREAS, a strong, effective system of free public school education for all children and youth is 
essential to our democratic system of government; and 

WHEREAS, the United States bas made considerable progress in the social, technological, and scientific 
fields due to our systems offree and universal public education; and 

WHEREAS, much of this progress can be attributed to the qual,ified and dedicated teachers entrusted with 
the educational development of oW' children to their full potential; and 

WHEREAS, teachers should be accorded high pubUc esteem, reflecting the value tlte community places on 
public education; and 

WHEREAS, PT As on every level nationwide are keenJy aware of the importance and impact of teachers on 
children; and 

WHEREAS, it is appropriate that teachers be recognized for this dedication and commitment to educating 
their students; and 

WHEREAS, teachers continue to ini1uence us long after our schools days are only memories. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Mayor Robert J. Lovero, Members of the Berwyn City Council and the 
Residents of Berwyn hereby proclaim May 2-7,2011 as Teachers Appreciation Week, and urge all citizens 
to pay tribute to our public school teachers this 261h day of April, 2010. 

Dated this 26 th 



A Century of Progress with Pride 

April 26,2011 

Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Re: Appointment of Part-time Administrative Assistant 

Council Members: 

Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

The appointment of Ms. Jynette Ayala to the position of Deputy City Clerk has created a vacancy in the 
Mayor's office. 

I am respectfully requesting your concurrence in my appointment of Ms. Kelly Cimaglia to the position of Part
time Administrative Assistant to the City Attorney. 

Ms. Cimaglia will work part-time or thirty-two (32) hours per week, with an annual salary of twenty thousand 
($20,000.00) and no/lOO dollars, including benefits. She win be assigned for the majority of her time to the 
Law Department. as well as assisting in the Mayor's office. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Robert 1. 
Mayor 

6700 West 261h Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402.0701 Telephone: (708) 788.2660 Fax: (708) 788-2567 www.bcrwyn.il.gov 



G. Reports and Communication From 
The City Clerk 



he City of Berwyn 

/ 

Thomas J. Pavlik 
City Clerk 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26'· street Berwyn, illlnols 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2860 Fax: (708) 788-26715 

www.berwyn-Il.gov 

April 21, 2011 

To: Mayor and Members of City Council 

From: Tom Pavlik, City Clerk 

Re: Retirement of Deputy City Clerk Louise Sommese 

Ladies and Gentlemen, 

Regrettably, I have received notice from Ms. Louise Sommese regarding her retirement as of 
April 30,2011. Please join me in thanking Ms. Sommese for her 26 years of service to the City 
of Berwyn, where she faithfully served the citizens and will continue to serve the community as 
a member and Treasurer of the Berwyn Public Library Board. On behalf of the City of Berwyn, 
I thank her once again and wish her a retirement filled with health, happiness and continued 
success in all her future endeavors. 



The City of Berwyn Thomas J. Pavlik 
City Clerk 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

April 21,20] 1 

Berwyn. Dllnols 60402·0'701 Telephone: (708) 788·2860 Fax: (708) 788·28715 
www.berwyn-II.goy 

To: Mayor and Members of City Council 

From: Tom Pavlik, City Clerk 

Re: Appointment of Deputy City Clerk 

Ladies and Gentlemen, 

With the retirement of Deputy Clerk Ms. Sommese, I respectfuJly ask for your concurrence in 
my appointment of Jynette Ayala to the position of Deputy City Clerk/Secretary to City 
Council. I believe Ms. Ayala will be a valuable asset to the Clerk's office through her years of 
experience and working knowledge of the City, which will make for a smooth transition and 
allow my office maintain its service to the citizens of Berwyn at the highest level possible. In 
addition, her appointment will result in a cost savings from the budgeted line item for this 
position. I thank you in advance for your consideration of this matter. 

Since ely, 

~--:r/'~MC 



H. Communications From (Zoning) 

Board of Appeals 



I. Reports and Communications From 
Aldermen, Committees other Boards 

and Commissions 



The City of Berwyn Margaret Paul 
3rt! Ward Alderman 

, 6'700 West 26"' Street Berwyn, Dllnols 80402-0'701 Telephone: (708) 749-6403 Fax: ('708) '788-267~ 

Mayor Robert J. Lovero, and 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 

April 21 , 2011 

www.berwyn-ll.gov 

Re: Piper School Special Event Street Closure Request 

Dear Mayor and Members of the City CounciL 

Piper School's Parent-Teacher Association annually hosts a Piper School Block Party. Students, 
parents, faculty and neighbors living in the vicinity of Piper School are invited to attend. This year the 
PTA Block Party will be held on Friday May 20, 2011 on the school grounds located at 2435 S. 
Kenilworth Avenue. The event is always well attended by the grade school students. 

For the safety of the children and other participants, ] am requesting your concurrence to have 
Kenilworth Avenue closed to traffic from Riverside Drive to 25th Street on May 20, 2011. The closure 
would last from 3:30 p.m. in the afternoon until the conclusion of the block party and following clean 
up of the area. The street would re-open by 7:30 p.m. 

The party will begin shortly following school dismissal. The street closure will also allow children to 
bike and skate in the street 

] ask the cooperation of the Public Works department to provide barricades for the street closure as 
well as the alley on Kenilworth south of Riverside Drive. Refuse and recycling containers, if any on 
hand, would also be of benefit for the event. 

I know I can speak on behalf of Principal Fontanetta and the Pi per PTA and invite all to attend the 
event. ] also invite the Berwyn Police Department and Berwyn Fire Department to attend. The students 
always enjoy the opportunity to meet our First Responders. Fire Trucks and other equipment would be 
a welcome attraction for the event. 

Piper School will notify residents living on the 2400 block of Kenilworth about the street closure and 
invite them to attend the party. 

Thank you for your consideration of this request. 

Sincerely, 

Margaret Paul 



Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26" Street Berwyn, illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2675 

www.berwyn-il.gov 

Cesar San toy 
5th Ward Alderman 

Date: April 12.2011 

Mayor Robert J. Levero 
And Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Ameetingofilie, ________ ~B~u~s~in~e~s~s~L~ic~e~n~s~e~&~T~ax~a~u~'o~n~ ______ __ was held 

On Tuesday, April 12.2011 at 5:00 p.m. Berwyn City Hall 

Those in attendance were: Alderman Santoy (Chair), Aldennen Avila (Member) 

The matter discussed was referral item_I"--3,,,--_ dated March 16.2011 in regards to 
Holiday Light Ordinance 

It is the recommendation of the committee that the fine be set as follows: 
1. Warning for the first offense and a 30 day period to comoly 
2. A $50 fine for subsequent violations 
3. Refer to legal for final drafting 

Voting Aye: Santoy, A vila 

Voting Nay: ___ ---"'-O ______ _ 

Adjourned: 5: 10 p.m. 

Cesar San toy-Chairman 
Rafael Avila-Member 
Michele Skryd-Member 



The City of Berwyn 

/~ 
Nora Laureto 
8th Ward Alderman 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 Weill 2(i"'Slrllut Iiorwyn, Illinois G0402'0701 'rll[cphonc: (70S) 71!l -G~OH 

www.ocrwyn·il.lluv 

March 16,2011 

Mayor Robert Lovero 
Members of the City Council 
6700 W. 261h St. 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

RE: Holiday Light Removal Ordinance 

Dear Mayor and Member of the City Council: 

Holiday lights left up long after the Holiday's are over not only send u message that people do not care 
about the neighborhood, but are also a potentia1fire hazard. Outdoor light sets are not made for 
prolonged exposure to the elements and should be taken down as soon as the season is over. lfleft lip 
and used again the nexl season ti1(.:y could cause a fire. Many suburbs have ordinances limiting 
outdoor seasonal displays. I believe that 60 days before and after a holiday would be faif to the 
residents of Berwyn. The city can extend the deadline in cold weather or severe winter storms as we 
had this past year. Therefore, it would be my motion to send this communication to the Business, 
License and Taxing committee for further review to determine the finc for non-compliance and to the 
legal department for drafting of the ordinance. 

Sincerely, 

~~re~ 
Alderman 8,h Ward 
City of Berwyn 



J. Staff Reports 



CITY OF BERWYN 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING (Date) 04/26/11 

Deferred Communication 

Agenda Item J-1 is a Deferred Comm unication from C C Meeting dated 04/12111 #26 

FROM BPD-UNIT COMMANDER 

Re: EVIDENCE STORAGE LOCKERS 

Template -.xls 



ITEM#4-

Member Motion 

CHAPMAN / 
BOYAJIAN V 

PAUL 
SKRYD 
SANTOY 
POLASHEK 
AVILA 
LAURETO 
LOVERO 

MOTION TO: 

Appove as submitted 
AccepJ as Info 
AdJorn 
Adopt 
Approved as Amended 
A~roved for Payment 
A£Proved as Submitted 
Bring Forward 
Carried 
Concur 
Defeated 
Defer 
Defer / Refer 
Deny 
Germane 
Grant Permission 
Recess 
Aefer 
Study & Report 
Sus~end the Aules 
Withdraw 

Roll Callrrally Sheet 
City of Berwyn 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Second 'tjea Nay No Vote 

/ 

L 
./ 

I 

REFER TO: 

BDC 
Building Dept. 
Collector 
Finance 
Fire Dept. 
City Administrator 
Law Dept. 
Mayor 
Pollee Dept. 

/ Public Works Dept 
/ Committees & Boards 

I Administration Comm. 
BldglZon/Plan Comm. 
Budget Comm. 
Comm. Of Whole 
Business License & Taxation 
Fire & Police Comm. 
LIbrary 
Parking & TraffiC 
Public Works Comm. 
Recreation Comm. 
Traffic Engineer 
Zon. Bd. Appeals 

DATE: April 12, 2Q11 

TIME: 8: 00 p.m. 

Present Absent Excused Abstain 

TO: COMMENTS: 

r--

\---V\ 
J)' r 

A/ V 
'Y 
t 



.. * 
To: 
From: 
Subject: 

(jjerwyn 
Po£ice (})epartment 

ITEM NO 0 ~ ~.h------
DATE~pR-i-t-lott-
DI SPOS!TI 0 »1'---/0_0_ ; 

6401 W 3)SI Str-ee~-lt~VII-:;AJ 

Berwyn, illinois 60402 
(708) 795-5600 FAX('708)749-0492°- __ 0_-

~ ___ ____ 0 __ - _ 0_ 0_ , __ 0_ 

Mayor Lovero and Members of City Council 
Unit Commander Joseph Santangelo, Detective Bureau 
Evidence Storage Lockers 

The Berwyn Police Department is in Phase 2 of updating evidence 
technologies within the Police Department and is seeking Council approval for updating 
the current Evidence Lockers. There are security risks inherited in the initial construction 
of the Police Department that need to be updated in order to streamline the chain of 
custody of evidence and provide better security. 

The current evidence Lockers use a key for entry into the lockers allowing 
the officers to drop the key through a security hole after securing the evidence within the 
lockers. This created accountability issues, as keys have gone missing in the past. 

The current lockers are not appropriately sized and cannot house evidence 
the size of shotguns, rifles or equivalent evidence. 

The current lockers do not have any type of refrigerant capabilities which is 
essential in preserving evidence that can expire without proper temperature control. 

Extensive research was done for the purpose of properly securing evidence 
and concluded that a keyless entry system is necessary to lock down the chain of custody 
and maximizing security of the evidence. Once Officers place evidence within the lockers, 
Officers are required to push a security button assigned to the locker. Once pushed does 
not allow any unauthorized personnel to access the evidence. The only authorized entry 
would be that of the Detective in Charge of Evidence. 

Extensive research eliminated all but three companies that provide Evidence 
Storage Lockers: All Storage Products, Sentinel and Bradford Systems. Only Bradford 
Systems met the requirements sought by the Berwyn Police Department and the have 
installed evidence storage cabinets in the past at the Berwyn Police Department. 

$21,025.00 Bradford Systems. The cost includes delivery, installation and warranty 

Respectfully, 

Unit Commander Joseph Santangelo 



The c:y 
~erwyn Anthony T. Bertuca 

City Attorney 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
West 28" Street Berwyn, Dllnola 604.02-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2860 Fax: (708) 788-21S67 

_.berwyn-U.gov 

April 26, 20 II 

Thomas 1. Pavlik 

City Clerk 

City of Berwyn 

6700 W. 26th Street 

Berwyn, Illinois 60402 

Re: 09M130 1958 

Dear Mr. Pavlik: 

Please put this item on the April 26,2011 agenda authorizing the settlement of the above 

referenced matter for the total of $7,500.00, based upon City Council authority granted in 

Executive Session. 

Very truly yours, 

~~~ 
City Attorney 



The City of Berwyn 

y J 
A Century of Progress with Pride 

April 26, 2011 

Honorable Mayor, Robert 1. Lovero 

And Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Anthony T. Bertuca 
City Attorney 

Re: Ordinance Which Amends Chapter 1478: The Historic Preservation Ordinance of The Codified 

Ordinances of The City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois. 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

The attached Ordinance is being submitted for your consideration. This amended Berwyn Historic 

Preservation Ordinance was drafted by 1amie S. Franklin of the Franklin Law Firm LLC. 

This Ordinance was reviewed and approved by our Law Department, The Illinois Historic Preservation 

Agency, and the Berwyn Historic Preservation Commission. 

The Law Department, as well as the Mayor's Office, is requesting your concurrence in the approval of 

this Ordinance. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

~/~ 
Anthony T. Bertuca 
City Attorney 

6700 West 26'· Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402.0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788.2567 www.berwyn.il.gov 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
THE CITY OF BERWYN, ILLINOIS 

ORDINANCE 
NUlVIBER __ _ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 1478: THE mSTORIC 
PRESERVATION ORDINANCE OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF 

THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

ROBERT J. LOVERO, Mayor 
THOMAS J. PAVLIK, City Clerk 

NONA N. CHAPMAN 
JEFFREY G. BOYAJIAN 

MARGARET PAUL 
MICHELE D. SKRYD 
CESAR A. SANTOY 

THEODORE J. POLASHEK 
RAFAEL A VILA 

NORALAURETO 
Alder-men 

Published in pamphlet form by authority or the Mayor and CIty Clerk or the City of Berwyn. DUnols on 4.27.11 



AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 1478: THE mSTORlC 
PRESERV ATION ORDINANCE OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF 

THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

WHEREAS, it is hereby found that the preservation of the City of Berwyn's historic 

structures and housing stock is key to preserving the City's historic and architectural heritage for 

future generations. 

WHEREAS, it is hereby found that the effectuation of this goal will conserve and 

improve the values of the properties designated historic and all properties within the City'S 

boundaries. 

WHEREAS, it is hereby found that an ordinance governing the preservation of the City'S 

historic structures and housing stock is necessary to effectuate this goal. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City 

of Berwyn. County of Cook, State of I1linois, pursuant to its Home Rule Powers as set forth in 

Article VII. Section 6 of the Dlinois Constitution (1970), as amended, as follows: 

Section 1: Portions of Section 1478 are herby amended to read as follows (with proposed 

additions underlined and proposed deletions strickeR): 

2 



Berwyn. llls Code of Ordinances 

PART FOURTEEN: BUll.J)ING AND HOUSING CODE 

TITLE SIX: MISCELLANEOUS BUILDING REGULATIONS 

CHAPTER 1478: mSTORIC PRESERVATION 

Section 2 

1478.01 Purpose 

1478.02 Historic Preservation Commission establishment; composition; duties 

1478.03 Definitions 

147g.(;)4 ReeognitioR of existing ltistorie Diatrietis 

147g.(;)€) Loeal aeeignatieB: ef a Historic Distriet 

1478.~Criteria for designation of historic landmarks and interior historic 
landmarks 

14 78.~N omination and preliminary determination of eligibility for 
designation as a historic landmark or interior historic landmark 

1478.08 ~Designation hearing 

14 78.W--~Designation of historic landmarks and interior historic landmarks 

1478.08 Recognition of existing Historic Districts 

1478.09 Local designation of a Historic District 

1478.10 Work requiring the issuance of a certificate of appropriateness or a 
certificate of economic hardship 

1478.11 Zoning and subdivision actions affecting any nominated, eligible or 
designated historic landmarks or designated Historic Districts 

1478.12 Acquisition or use of public property 

1478.13 Review criteria for certificate of appropriateness and certificate of 
advisory review 

3 



1478.14 Procedures for certificate of appropriateness 

1478.15 Procedures for certificate of economic hardships 

1478.16 Appeals 

1478.17 Reserved 

1478.18 Prevention of demolition by neglect 

1478.19 Hazardous structures and public nuisances 

1478.20 Handicapped accessibility provisions 

1478.21 Judicial review offinal decision 

1478.99 Penalty 

§ 1478.01 PURPOSE. 

The purpose of this chapter is to promote the economic, educational, cultural and 
general welfare of the city by: 

(A) Providing a municipal process to identify, preserve, protect and enhance 
the distinctive historic and architectural heritage of the city representing elements 
of the city's cultural, social, economic, political and architectural history; 

(B) Conserving and improving the value of properties designated as historic 
landmarks or located within Historic Districts; 

(C) Enhancing the attractiveness of the city to homeowners, visitors, tourists 
and shoppers and, thereby, supporting business, commerce and industry in the city 
and providing economic benefits to the city; 

(D) Fostering civic pride in the accomplishments of the past as manifested in 
properties, structures, improvements and areas of historical and architectural 
significance within the city; 

(E) Fostering and encouraging the preservation, restoration and rehabilitation 
of properties, structures, improvements and areas and, thereby, preventing 
deterioration, dilapidation and blight; and 

(F) Establishing a Historic Preservation Commission. 

4 



COrd. 06-50, passed 11-28-2006; Ord. 11-04, passed 1-25-2011) 

§ 1478.02 mSTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION ESTABLISHMENT; 
COMPOSITION; DUTIES. 

CA) There is hereby established in and for the city a commission to be known 
as the Berwyn Historic Preservation Commission. 

CB) The Commission shall consist of seven members, including a Chairperson, 
to be appointed by the Mayor with the consent of the City Council. Appointment 
shall be on a staggered basis for tenns of three years, beginning on Aprill, except 
that all initial appointments made after the enactment of this chapter will be for 
such period, not to exceed three years, as is necessary to cause the terms of no more 
than three members and no fewer than two members to expire in any given year. 
Members may be re- appointed at any time. 

ee) l.Lt least fhTeAlI members of the Commission shall have demonstrated 
expertise in at least one of the discipline§. of history, architectural history, art 
history, architecture, architectural history, historic architecture. engineering, 
planning, law, real estate, historic preservation or ~related field. "Demonstrated 
expertise" must include at least one of the following; 

(1) A graduate degree in one of the enumerated disciplines; or 

(2) A bachelor's degree in one of the enumerated discipline plus at least 
two years of full-time exoerience in research. writing, teaching. management. or 
other demonstrable professional activity within an academic institution, historical 
organization or agency. museum, goyernment agency, or private corporation; or 

(2) At least five years of full-time employment experience in one of the 
enumerated disciplines; or 

(3) At least two years in a leadership role in a local. state or national 
preservation organization. museum, historical society, arts organization. or related 
organization, 
1~ eiti~ea witfiout demoRstFateEl ef:JleFtise shall have a Jlriority '>'lith regBl'8 to the 
appoiRt.meBt of members to the t\vo remainiflg slots OB the CommissioR, eJfeept that. 
all COf.B:1B:issioaeF9 shall 8ave a demonstrated inteFest, eom~etenee OF knO"Nledge ia 
histone presepvatieB. 

CD) The Commission shall have the following duties: 

5 



(1) To conduct an ongoing survey and inventory for the purpose of 
identifying those historic landmarks within the city that exemplify the 
architectural, social, cultural, economic and political history of the city. state or 
nation; 

(2) To receive or make nominations for the designation of historic 
landmarks and Historic Districts; to review and recommend designation criteria to 
the City Council; to hold public hearings; and to recommend to the City Council 
those designations; 

(3) To recommend to the City Council the adoption of specific guidelines. 
based upon the Secretary of the Interior's Standards, to be used in the application of 
the city's Historic Preservation Ordinance to the alteration, construction, relocation, 
removal or demolition of the historic landmarks or of properties andlor 
improvements within Historic Districts; 

(4) Upon referral from the Director of Buildings, assist the review of permit 
applications for alteration, construction, relocation, removal or demolition affecting 
historic landmarks, and properties andlor improvements in Historic Districts and to 
request the presentation of the drawings (floor plans, elevations and details), 
specifications and other information as may be necessary to review those 
applications; 

(5) To approve, modify or deny applications for certificates of 
appropriateness and certificates of economic hardship for historic landmarks, in 
accordance with these Codified Ordinances, and to respond to appeals of the 
decision to the City Council; 

(6) Upon referral from the Director of Buildings, assist in the review of 
proposed zoning amendments, applications for special use permits including 
planned use developments. subdivisions and applications for zoning variances that 
affect nominated, proposed or designated historic landmarks and Historic Districts, 
and may present evidence at public hearing in support or opposition or make 
recommendations thereon to the Zoning Board of Appeals and City Council; 

(7) To recommend to the City Council the adoption of an appropriate 
system of historically and architecturally compatible streetscape elements, 
including but not limited to paving materials, curbs, sidewalks, streetlights, street 
and Historic District signage, and to make recommendations for the design and 
implementation of the streetscape elements; 

(8) To advise the City Council, all city departments, any commission or 
other agency on matters affecting nominated, proposed or designated historic 
landmarks or Historic Districts; 

6 



(9) To provide general guidance to interested parties on technical and 
financial aspects of historic preservation and to indicate to the parties that they 
may only rely upon independent professional advice and consultation as a basis for 
final decision with regard to these matters; 

(10) To advise and assist interested parties on procedures for inclusion in 
the National and State Registers of Historic Places; 

(11) To nominate properties and/or structures, improvements or areas to 
the National Register of Historic Places; 

(12) To encourage the library to maintain preservation-related documents 
and to keep the materials available for public use; 

(13) To inform and educate the citizens of the city concerning the historic 
and architectural heritage of the city; 

(14) To call upon assigned city staff members as well as other expert 
volunteers for technical advice and assistance; 

(15) To request the City Council to retain the specialists or consultants and 
to request the City Council to appoint the citizen advisory committees as may be 
required from time to time; 

(16) To investigate, review and recommend to the City Council the 
acceptance of any gifts of property, transferred to the city, or property leased, or 
owned by the city for the purpose of preserving or enhancing the historically 
significant aspect of properties, improvements or areas; 

(17) To recommend and assist in the application for funds on behalf of the 
city from federal, state and private sources with the City Council's prior approval, to 
further the goals of historic preservation herein set forth; 

(18) To confer recognition, from time to time, as appropriate, upon owners 
of historic landmarks or property or structures wi thin Historic Districts by means of 
award certificates, plaques or markers; 

(19) To assume whatever responsibilities and duties may be delegated to it 
by the City Council with regard to the certified local government provisions of the 
National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, being 16 U.S.C. § 470, as amended; 

7 



(20) To perform, in a timely and thorough manner, all of the duties 
delegated to the Commission under the Historic Preservation Ordinance set forth in 
the city code; and 

(21) To recommend to the Council adoption of the Commission's Rules and 
procedures or amendments thereto. 

(Ord. 06-50, passed 11-28-2006; Ord. 11-04, passed 1-25-2011) 

§ 1478.03 DEFINITIONS. 

For the purposes of this chapter, the following words and phrases shall have the 
meanings ascribed to them herein below; and words and phrases used in the context 
of this chapter but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in 
the city code, other than adopted by reference therein. All other words and phrases 
used in the context of this chapter shall have the commonly understood meanings 
normally ascribed to them. 

ALTERATION. Any act or process that changes one or more of the exterior 
architectural features of property which has been designated as a historic 
landmark, or in a Historic District under this chapter, or any interior architectural 
feature of any structure when the interior has been specifically designated as an 
interior historic landmark. 

BUILDING PERMIT. Anypennit required by the Department of Buildings of 
the city. 

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS. A certificate issued by the 
Commission indicating its approval of plans for the alteration, or construction, or 
relocation of a historic landmark, or the removal or of demolition of a historic 
landmark or a building, structure or improvement within a Historic District. 

CERTIFICATE OF ECONOMIC HARDSHIP. A certificate issued by the 
Commission, after denying a certificate of appropriateness, which authorizes the 
performance of alterations, construction or relocation with regard to historic 
landmarks, or the removal or demolition of a historic landmark or a building, 
structure or improvement within a Historic District when the historic landmarks, or 
properties within a Historic District, cannot be put to a reasonably beneficial use or 
the owner cannot obtain a reasonable economic return thereon without the proposed 
alteration, construction, relocation, removal or demolition. 

COMMISSION. The Berwyn Historic Preservation Commission. 

8 



COMMISSION STAFF. An employee of the city assigned by the Mayor as staff 
to the Commission. 

CONSTRUCTION. Any act or process which requires a building permit, 
including the act of adding to a structure by an addition, or the erection of a new 
principal or accessory structure on a lot or property. 

DAY. A calendar day, except where otherwise specified herein. 

DEMOLITION. Any act or process which destroys in part or in whole a 
landmark or site within a Historic District. 

ELIGIBLE HISTORIC LANDMARK. Any property and/or improvement 
nominated for designation as a historic landmark which has been determined by the 
Commission, after notice and an opportunity to be heard for the owner(s), 
nominators and other interested parties in accordance with § 1478.07 herein, to be 
eligible for designation by resolution and recommendation of the Commission to the 
City Council, but which has not yet been so designated by the City Council. 

EXTERIOR ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES. The architectural character and 
general composition of the exterior of a structure or improvement, including the 
kind and texture of all the building materials and the type, design and character of 
all architectural details, including but not limited to windows, walls, roofs, doors, 
light fixtures, fences, signs and appurtenant elements. 

HISTORIC DISTRICT. An area with geographically definable boundaries, 
possessing a significant concentration, linkage or continuity of properties and/or 
improvements united by past events or aesthetically by plan or physical 
development that has been designated as Berwyn HISTORIC DISTRICT pursuant 
to city ordinance. A district may include properties and/or improvements which are 
individually designated as historic landmarks under this chapter and may also 
contain other properties and/or improvements which, while not of the individual 
historical and/or architectural value to be designated historic landmarks, 
nevertheless contribute to the overall special character or value of the landmark or 
landmarks located within the District. 

HISTORIC LANDMARK Any property and/or improvement which has special 
character or significant historical, cultural, architectural, archeological, community 
or aesthetic value as part of the heritage of the city, the state or the United States 
which has been designated as a Berwyn HISTORIC LANDMARK pursuant to this 
chapter and shall include all designated interior historic landmarks. 

IMPROVEMENT. Any visible building feature constituting a physical addition 
or any part of the addition to a property, including any building, structure, fixture, 

9 



bridge, work or art, place, parking facility, fence, gate, wall, landscaping or paving. 

INTERIOR ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES. The architectural character and 
general composition of the interior of a structure, including the room design and 
configuration, color and texture of materials, and the type, pattern and character of 
all architectural details and elements, including but not limited to staircases, doors, 
hardware, molding, trim, plaster work, light fixtures and wall coverings. 

INTERIOR HISTORIC LANDMARK. An interior, or part thereof, which is 
normally open or accessible to the public and which as a significant historical or 
aesthetic interest or value as part of the development, heritage or cultural 
characteristics of the city, state or United States and which has been designated as 
an interior landmark pursuant to the provisions of this chapter. 

NOMINATED HISTORIC LANDMARK. A property and/or improvement 
nominated by an interested party for consideration by the Commission for 
designation as a historic landmark prior to determination by the Commission that it 
is eligible for historic landmark designation. 

NON-CONTRIBUTING RESOURCE. A property and/or improvement located 
within a Historic District that does not represent significant historical 
characteristics, which qualify that District as a Historic District under this chapter. 

OWNER. Owner of record as determined by the office of the Cook County 
Recorder of Deeds, except where otherwise specified herein. 

PROPERTY. Land and improvements identified as a separate lot for purposes of 
the zoning regulations of the city. 

PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS. Work earned out by the city for public use or 
service, including but not limited to the installation, major repair or improvements 
to the street, curbs and gutters, alleys, sidewalks, public utilizes, streetlights, signs, 
banners and traffic signals. 

RELOCATION. Any repositioning of an improvement on the same property 
upon which it was originally located. 

REMOVAL. Any moving of an improvement from the property upon which it 
was originally located. 

REPAIR. Minor work, which does not require a building permit and which does 
not affect the architectural feature of an improvement. 

10 



REVIEW. The process of examining the plans and documents prepared by an 
owner of property and/or an improvement designated as a historic landmark which 
describe proposed work on the landmark, which will lead to the decision to grant or 
deny a certificate of appropriateness or a certificate of economic hardship. 

REVIEW SUBCOMMITTEE. Subcommittee of no less than three members of 
the Commission, of · .... b.ieh ofte melBaa' Bces Boot fJoaaess the demoRstf'ated eX}geptiae 
reE):tllPed undeF § 1478.02(C} ofthia eode fa}' at least ihte membeF8 efte.e filII 
Co'ffifB::iesioR, appointed by the Chairperson to review documents for certificates of 
advisory review which shall be issued by the Commission, based upon the 
Subcommittee's review of the documents and recommendations to the owner. 
Section 1478.14(C) of this chapter authorizes the Commission to recommend and 
City Council to adopt amended rules and regulations which would expand 
Subcommittee and/or Commission staff authority to minimal types of construction 
and alteration work requiring a certificate of appropriateness. 

SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR'S STANDARDS. The Secretary of the 
Interior's Standards for Guidelines for Rehabilitating Historic Buildings, revised 
1990, U.S. Department of the Interior, National Park Service, Preservation 
Assistance Division, Washington, D.C. 

SITE. The location of an event, activity, building, structure or improvement. 

STRUCTURE. Anything constructed or erected the use of which requires 
permanent or semi-permanent location on or in the ground. 

WORK. Any construction, alteration, repair, relocation, removal or demolition of 
an improvement. 

(Ord. 06-50, passed 11-28-2006; Ord. 11-04, passed 1-25-2011) 

[Sections on Recomition of Existing Historic Districts and Local 
Desimation of Historic District are moved to § 1478.08 and 09 below] 

§ 1478.00--04 CRITERIA FOR DESIGNATION OF mSTORIC LANDMARKS 
AND INTERIOR mSTORlC LANDMARKS. 

(A) The Commission, in determining whether to recommend for designation, 
and the City Council, in determining whether to approve designation erof 
particular sites, structures or improvements as historic landmarks, shall consider 
the following criteria: 

Historical Andlor Cultural Importance 

11 



(1) Significance as an example of the architectural, cultural, economic, 
historic or social development or heritage of the city, the state or the United States". 
"Significance" means the relative imoortance of the property when viewed in the 
oroperty's architectural. cultural, economic. historic or social context. 

(2) Location as a site of a historic event, with a significant effect on the 
city, the state or the United States. "Significant" means the relative importance of 
the effect of the event on the city. the state or the United States. 

(3) Identification with a person or persons who significantly contributed to 
the architectural, cultural, economic, historic or social heritage, or other aspect of 
the city, the state or the United States ... 

(4) Existence in the National Register of Historic Places ... 

(5) Embodiment of those distinguishing characteristics of significant 
architectural type, or style, or engineering specimen. "Significant" means the 
relative importance of the architectural type. or style. or engineering specimen. 

(6) Identification as the work of a builder, designer, architect, craftsperson, 
engineer or landscape architect who individual work is significant in the 
development of the city, the state or the United States. "Significant" means the 
relative importance of the builder. designer, architect, craftsperson. engineer or 
landscape architect. 

(7) Contains design elements, detail, material or craftsmanship that make 
the property or building structurally or architecturally innovative, rare or unique ... 

(8) Representation of an architectural, cultural, economic, historic or social 
theme, style or period, expressed in distinctive areas, districts, places, buildings or 
structures that mayor may not be contiguous ... 

(B) Any site, stFuetufe OF imf)FEWemcst that-meets aBe 8f'mope of tfte above 
eriteria shall have suffieiCftt integri~ sf loeation, desiga, material &na 
'It'8f'kmaH:shif) to make it woFthy of ppesef¥ation Of' FcstoFation. 

(B) Principles for Evaluating the Historical and/or Cultural Importance of 
Proposed Historic Landmarks by the Commission 

Thc Commission. in evaluating all properties for designation as historic landmarks 
pursuant to any of the criteria above. should apply and be guided by the Secretary 
of the Interior's Standards and Guidelines for Archeology and Historic Preservation. 
effective September 29, 1983 and revised from time to time thereafter. which are 
prepared under the authority of sections 101(f) (g). and (h)' and section 110 of the 

12 



National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended. including. but not limited 
to. the followin g principles; 

(1) Evaluation requires adequately developed historic contexts. 
including sufficient information about the appearance. condition and associative 
values of the property to be evaluated in order to classify it as to property type: 
compare its features or characteristics with those expected for its property type: and 
define the physical extent of the property and accurately locate the property. 

(2) Evaluation must distinguish between facts and analysis. and 
must include identification and descriotion of pertinent historical contexts: 
description of the property and its significance in the historical context: and 
analysis of the integrity of the prooerty relative to that needed to represent the 
context. 

(3) Where the Commission deems it necessary and feasible. 
Commissioners should consult with other individuals experienced in applying the 
relevant criteria: for example. the State Historic Preservation Officer. 

( 4) Evaluation should not be undertaken using documentation that 
may be out of date. Prior to proceeding with evaluation the current condition of the 
property should be determined and previous analyses evaluated in light of any new 
information. 

(5) If the Commission determines that it does not have all the 
information it needs to conduct an adequate evaluation. it may undertake its own 
research in order to supplement the nomination to the extent necessary, In cases in 
which needed information is not obtainable. for example. where historical records 
have been destroyed. the Commission should acknowledge what information was 
not obtainable and how that missing information may affect the reliability of the 
evaluation, 

(C) Integrity 

(1) In order for the Commission to nominate any site. structure or 
improvement that meets one or more of the above criteria as a historic landmark. 
the Commission must additionally determine that it has sufficient integrity of 
location. design, material and workmanship to make it worthy of preservation or 
restoration. 

(2) "Integrity" means the authenticity of a property's historic 
identity, evidenced by the survival of physical characteristics that existed during 
the property's historic period. 

13 



(3) The integrity of the property in its current condition, rather 
than its likely condition after a proposed treatment. should be evaluated. Factors 
such as structural problems. deterioration. or abandonment should be considered in 
the evaluation only if they have affected the integrity of the significant features or 
characteristics of the property. 

(GID All properties must be designated by ordinance upon the approval of the 
City Council in ordered to be deemed local historic landmarks. 

(Ord. 06-50, passed 11-28-2006) 

§ 1478.~NOMINATION AND PRELIMINARY DETERlWNATION OF 
ELIGIBILITY FOR DESIGNATION AS A HISTORIC LANDMARK OR 
INTERIOR mSTORIC LANDMARK. 

(A) Submission of nominations. Historic landmark and interior historic 
landmark nominations may be submitted to the Commission by any person, group 
of persons or association, including any member of the Commission, on a 
nomination form provided by the Commission. The nomination form shall include or 
be accompanied by the following: 

(1) The name and address of the owner of the property proposed for 
designation, including the names of the beneficial owners of the property held in a 
land trust, where possible; 

(2) The legal description and common street address of the property 
proposed for designation; 

(3) An indication of whether or not the owner is in favor of the proposed 
designation and whether the owner is the nominating party; 

(4) A written statement IDllY-describing the property and setting forth 
reasons in support of the proposed designation; 

(5) Photographs of the property or selected properties; 

(6) Other information as may be required by the Commission; and 

(7) Fee of $500 waived if submitted by the Commission or at the 
Commission~!s discretion. 

(B) Commission action. 

14 



(1) The Commission shall, upon receipt of a properly completed nomination, 
immediately notify the office of the City Clerk and City Code Administration 
Department of the Commission's receipt of the nomination and shall deliver copies 
of same to the City Clerk's office and Code Administration as soon thereafter as is 
possible and shall make a preliminary determination of eligibility within 15 days of 
the receipt of the nomination, or by the Commission's next regularly scheduled 
meeting, whichever occurs later. A determination by the Commission of preliminary 
eligibility must be based upon or finding(s) by the Commission that there is a 
likelihood that a nominated historic landmark will meet one or more of the criteria 
for designation set forth in § 1478.Ge-04 of this chapter. 

(2) If a majority of the Commission members determines that there is not 1\ 
likelihood that the nominated historic landmark may meet at least one of the 
criteria for designation, it shall enter a formal denial of the nomination and so 
notify the party making the nomination, in writing. A denial shall be the final 
administrative decision. The Commission may not reconsider the preliminary 
eligibility of a historic landmark for at least one year following the submission of 
the original nomination and then only upon further evidence of qualification. The 
Commission may waive the one-year period if the Commission deems that such 
action is warranted due to new circumstances or new evidence of eligibility. 

__ ---->..::(3o..L) __ lf a preliminary determination is made that there is a likelihood that 
the nominated historic landmark may meet one or more criteria, the Commission 
shall schedule ~designation hearing(s) to be held within 45 days of the preliminary 
determination and shall send the owner of record written notice of same no less 
than 15 days in advance of a hearing by regular and certified mail or via some other 
delivery service that documents receipt, properly addressed to the owner of record 
as shown in the records of the Recorder of Deeds or Registrar of Titles, whichever is 
appropriate, and with sufficient postage affixed thereto. If the nominating party is 
the owner of record, the Commission shall schedule the designation hearing to take 
place at its next regularly scheduled meeting. Failure to receive notice shall not 
invalidate the proceedings of the Commission. 

(Ord. 06-50, passed 11-28-2006; Ord. 11-04, passed 1-25-2011) 

§ 1478.~6 DESIGNATION HEARING. 

(A) Following a preliminary determination by the Commission that there is g 
likelihood that a proposed historic landmark may be eligible for designation, the 
Commission shall conduct hearing(s) and shall notify the party making the 
nomination and the owner(s) of record of the proposed historic landmark by regular 
mail, as well as the adjoining property owners, no less than 15 days prior to the 
date of the hearing. All other parties affected by the proposed historic landmark will 
be notified by public notice- posted at City Hall and on the City of Berwyn's website 

15 



as to the date, time, place and purpose of the public hearing(s). The Commission's 
notice to the owners of records of the proposed historic landmark shall also include 
a copy of the nominating petition, any supporting documentation submitted 
therewith and a form for use by the owner entitled the "Owner(s) of Record 
Statement of Position" form indicating the owner's support for or opposition to the 
proposed designation and a brief statement of the reasons therefor. The form shall 
provide a return address for the Commission and shall direct the owner to return 
the completed form to the Commission no less than seven days prior to the 
scheduled hearing. The form shall further indicate that the owner's failure to 
respond shall be presumed by the Commission to indicate the owner's support for 
the proposed designation. The owner may rebut this presumption by appearing at 
the hearing and testifying in opposition to the proposed designation. The 
Commission shall make every reasonable effort to contact personally or by 
telephone owner(s) of record who have not returned an executed owner(s) form to 
explain the designation process and to encourage the return of the signed form. 

(B) At the hearing the Commission shall take testimony and receive evidence 
from the nominators, owner(s) of records, and any other interested parties who wish 
to be heard and/or present evidence on the application of the criteria for 
designation, set forth herein above in § 1478.0004, to the proposed historic 
landmark. The Commission shall hear testimony and receive evidence in accordance 
with the procedural rules as the Commission may, from time to time, propose and 
the City Council may from time to time adopt for the purpose of governing the 
conduct of the hearings before the Commission. The procedural rules set forth in 
Exhibit B attached to Ordinance 06-50 and incorporated herein by reference, are 
hereby adopted as the rules of procedure governing the conduct of hearings before 
the Commission which rules shall be subject to amendment by action of the 
Commission and the City Council as set forth above. 

(Ord. 06-50, passed 11-28-2006; Ord. 11-04, passed 1-25-2011) 

§ 1478.99-07 DESIGNATION OF mSTORIC LANDMARKS AND INTERIOR 
mSTORIC LANDMARKS. 

(A) Within 45 days following completion of the public hearing(s), the 
Commission shall determine, based on the criteria and evaluation guidelines set 
forth hereinabove in § 1478.00Q.i. whether to recommend designation of a historical 
landmark to the City Council and shall deliver to the nominator, the City Council, 
the City Clerk, the Code Enforcement Department and to the owner(s) of records, a 
resolution and report recommending designation if a determination has been made 
by the Commission. The resolution shall require an affirmative vote of a majority of 
the full Commission to recommend designation to the City Council. The resolution 
shall be accompanied by a written report summarizing the evidence presented at 
the hearing, setting forth findings of fact based thereon, and explaining the basis for 

16 



the Commission's recommendation. A decision by the Commission not to 
recommend designation is final and will terminate the designation process. The 
Commission shall give a reason for denial. The Commission shall notify the owner 
and nominators of its decision not to recommend designation within 45 days of the 
completion of the public hearing. 

(B) Within ~days after receiving the resolution and report containing the 
recommendation for designation from the Commission, the City Council shall take a 
vote to either designate the historic landmark or reject the nomination by simple 
majority vote of the full Council. In making this determination, the City Council 
shall apply the designation standards set forth in § 147B.Q&.04 above and shall give 
due consideration to the record of the public hearing(s), and findings and 
recommendations of the Commission set forth in the Commission's resolution and 
report and may take public testimony with regard to same. Upon a majority vote of 
the City Council to approve designation, the City Council shall enact an ordinance 
designating the historic landmark, which ordinance shall provide that the newly 
designa.ted historic landmark shall be subject to the provisions of § 1478.H- of these 
Codified Ordinances. 

(C) If the City Council does not take a vote to either designate the historic 
landmark or reject the nomination within 60 davs after receiving the resolution, 
then the nomination will be deemed to have expired and will be considered denied. 

(D) For any nomination that is deemed to have expired and is thus 
considered denied pursuant to Section CC) above. either the nominating party or the 
Commission mav renew the nomination within 30 days by presenting a renewed 
resolution to City Council as provided for in Section CA) above. The nominating 
party and/or the Commission may present up to three consecutive renewed 
resolutions to City Council for the same nomination. After that number. a new 
nomination must be prepared. subject to the terms of § 1478.05(B)C2) above. 

(<;E) Upon designation of a historic landmark by the City Council, the 
Commission shall provide written notification by regular mail to the owner{s) of 
record of the designated historic landmark which notifications shall include a 
certified copy of the ordinance designating same. The city shall file with the 
Recorder of Deeds or Registrar of Title of the county, whichever is appropriate, a 
certified copy of the designation ordinance for each historic landmark designated. A 
copy of the designation ordinance shall be sent to the City Code Administration 
Department, the City Clerk's office and the Department of Community 
Development. 

(QF) Designations may be amended or rescinded by the same procedure and 
according to the same criteria. set forth herein for an original designation. 

17 



(Ord. 06-50, passed 11-28-2006; Ord. 11-04, passed 1-25-2011) 

§ 1478.084 RECOGNITION OF EXISTING HISTORIC DISTRICTS. 

Those districts designated as LaVergne Historic District and North Berwyn 
Historic District by ordinance 95-21 of the City of Berwyn adopted June 13, 1995,..-aa 
OFaift8:Bee Sa 21 are hereby recognized and reaffirmed as honor IDe aesigaetca 
Historic District§ within the city. These districts aPe ftSftSfaFy Histarie Distriets 
anly and must be designated under the provisions of § 1478.06tl3:is eaaptef' to be 
considered Historic Districts under this chapter. 

(Ord. 06-50, passed 11-28-2006; Ord. 11-04, passed 1-25-2011) 

§ 1478.0~~ LOCAL DESIGNATION OF A mSTORIC DISTRICT. 

(A) Criteria for Historic District designation. 

(1) In addition NsmmetiBBs ol3:all be maae to the criteria and evaluation 
procedures set forth in § 1478.04 above. Hiatarie PFesCf'\retiaft Cemmisaiaa aft e 
foFH'J: pFeviaee by the CaHl:FB::is&iaft. A filing fee may be Feq-WFea. the following 
additional criteria shall be utilized by the Berwyn Historical Commission in 
detennining whether to designate a Localthe eesigaetisfl sf Historic 
District,Dismeta. 

(a) The Historic District contains one or more landmarks along with 
other buildings, places or areas within its definable geographic boundaries which, 
while not of historic significance to be designated as landmarks, nevertheless 
contribute to the overall visual characteristics of the landmark or landmarks 
located in the Districts; 

(b) A significant number of structures meeting any of the standards of § 
1478.041478.06 under landmark designation criteria; 

(c) Establishing a sense of time and place unique to the city; 

(d) Exemplifying or reflecting the cultural, social, economic, political or 
architectural history of the nation, the state or the ~eity; aad/sF 

00 (e) A preliminary determination as to whether a district aF an wee 
meets one or more of the foregoing criteria shall be made within 60 days of the filing 
of a nomination with the Commission. 

(B) Historic District designation procedure. 

18 



(1) Petition. 

(a) Any person, group of persons or association, including but not limited 
to the Historical Commission, may present to the Commission a petition requesting 
that a defined geographic area be designated as a Historic District. Nom.inations~ 
City eleJ."lr saail supply, upaft pe€I1:lest, ~fte apf)lieetieft foPmB. Completea forMs shall 
be made to the Historic Preservation Commission on a form provided by the 
Commission. A filing fee of $500 is required. but is waived if submitted byto tAe 
City elem, vlhieh shan farv.'are Mice to the Commission or at the Commission's 
discretion.f& its eOBsiaepatioB. 

(b) The petition shall contain the signatures of no less than 51% of the 
property owners in the defined geographic area:t or, if leaseholders, with a five-year 
or longer leasehold interest, are signatories to the petition, then the petition shall 
contain no less than 51 % of the property owners andlor leaseholders. 

(2) Denial. If a majority of the Commission members determines that there 
is not likelihood. that the nominated Historic District may meet at least one of the 
criteria for designation, it shall enter a fonnal denial of the nomination and so 
notify the party making the nomination, in writing. A denial shall be the final 
administrative decision. The Commission may not reconsider the preliminary 
eligibility of a Historic District for at least one year following the submission of the 
original nomination and then only upon further evidence of qualification. The 
Commission may waive the one-year period if the Commission deems that such 
action is warranted due to new circumstances of new evidence of eligibility. 

(3) Preliminary determination. If a preliminary determination is made 
that there is a likelihood that the nominated Historic District may meet one or more 
criteria, the Commission shall schedule designation hearing(s) to be held within 45 
days of the preliminary determination and shall send the applicant or nominator of 
record a written notice of same no less than 15 days in advance of the hearing by 
regular and certified mail or via another delivery service that documents receipt. 
Failure to receive notice shall not invalidate the proceedings of the Commission. A 
public notice shall be posted at City Hall and on the City of Berwyn's website. The 
notice shall state the date, time, place and purpose of the public hearing along with 
the location of the proposed district and a statement summarizing how the proposed 
district meets the criteria set fuM in division (A) abo-va uneeP eri:teria for historic 
designation. 

(a{) Designation hearing. At the hearing the Commission shall take 
testimony and receive evidence from the nominators, owner(s) of record, and any 
other interested parties who wish to be heard andlor present evidence on the 
application of the criteria for designation, set forth herein above in division (A) 
above, to the proposed Historic District. The Commission shall hear testimony and 
receive evidence in accordance with the procedural rules as the Commission may, 

19 



from time to time propose and the City Council may from time to time adopt for the 
purpose of governing the conduct of such hearings before the Commission. The 
procedural rules set forth in Exhibit B attached to Ordinance 06~50 and 
incorporated herein by reference, are hereby adopted as the rules of procedure 
governing the conduct of hearings before the Commission, which rules shall be 
subject to amendment by action of the Commission and the City Council as set forth 
above. 

(4.5.) Designation of a Historic District. Procedures for the designation of a 
Historic District will follow procedures established in § 1478.G9-07 changing 
references of landmarks to districts. Criteria in divioioB: U\) of this seeti6fl 
supersedes Fefef'enee to § 1478.09. 

(Ord. 06-50, passed 11-28-2006; Ord. 11-04, passed 1-25-2011) 

§ 1478.10 WORK REQUIRING THE ISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE OF 
APPROPRIATENESS OR A CERTIFICATE OF ECONOlIDC HARDSHIP. 

(A) No building permit, demolition permit, or any other work requiring the 
issuance of a building or demolition permit or the authorization of an alteration by 
the Building Department regarding property in any designated historic district, 
and/or any eligible or designated historic landmark shall commence prior to such 
issuance or authorization in accordance with this section. 

(B) Public works projects within designated historic districts or affecting 
eligible or designated historic landmarks shall require consultation with the 
Commission at the next regularly scheduled Commission meeting following the 
authorization of the public works project. In emergency situations as established by 
the city definition and ordinance, or where time constraints otherwise require the 
immediate commencements of such projects, work may commence prior to the 
consultation with the Commission. 

(Ord. 06-50, passed 11-28-2006; Ord. 11-04, passed 1-25-2011) 

§ 1478.11 ZONING AND SUBDIVISION ACTIONS AFFECTING ANY 
NOMINATED, ELIGmLE OR DESIGNATED mSTORIC LANDMARKS OR 
DESIGNATED mSTORIC DISTRICTS. 

(A) The Building Director shall notify the Commission, within three working 
days of submission to the Department, of all applications for zoning amendments, 
variances, special use permits, subdivision or planned unit developments affecting 
property in any designated historic district, and any eligible or designated historic 
landmarks. 

20 



(B) In furtherance of its duties as set forth in § 1478.02 of these Codified 
Ordinances, the Commission shall evaluate the anticipated effect of the action 
requested in the application on the designated historic district or nominated, 
eligible or designated historic landmarkCs) and shall consider the long-term 
compatibility of the proposed action with the character of the affected historic 
resources and the effect of any proposed zoning action on the long range 
preservation of these resources. In its review, the Commission shall also consider 
the criteria specified in § 1478.13 of this chapter. 

(C) In no event shall the provisions of this section preclude the necessity of 
obtaining a certificate of appropriateness or a certificate of economic hardship when 
required under § 1478.14 OF § 1478.U; of these Codified Ordinances. 

(D) In the case of the alteration, demolition or removal of an eligible historic 
landmark, the building or demolition permit shall be issued or the alteration 
authorized upon the denial of designation of historic landmark status by the City 
Council; provided, however, that if the site, building, structure or improvement 
which has been denied landmark status is located within a designated Historic 
District, then the issuance of a building or demolition permit shall also be 
contingent upon satisfying the requirements set forth herein for property located 
within a designated Historic District ... t 

(E) In the case of a demolition or removal of an eligible or designated historic 
landmark or any site, building, structure or improvement located within a 
de signa ted Historic District, or listed in the National Register of Historic Places 
which is wholly or partially financed by the city or by one or more federal, state or 
city funding sources which are dispersed through or administered by the city, the 
demolition permit shall be issued upon the authorization of a permit by formal 
resolution of the City Council as being necessary to protect the public health, safety 
or welfare; or 

(F) In the case of the a) alteration or removal of an eligible or designated 
historic landmark; b) the alteration, demolition or removal of a site, building, 
structure or improvement located in a designated Historic District or listed in the 
National Register of Historic Places which is wholly or partially funded by the city 
or by one or more federal, state or city funding sources which are dispersed through 
or administered by the city; c) or the removal or demolition of any building, 
structure or improvement located within a designated Historic District for which 
demolition has not been authorized under § 1478.10(A) above, the building or 
demolition permit shall be issued or the alteration shall be authorized upon the 
issuance of a certificate of appropriateness in accordance with § 1478.14 set forth 
hereinbelow or a certificate of economic hardship in accordance with § 1478.15 set 
forth herein below. 

21 



(Ord. 06-50, passed 11-28-2006; Ord. 11-04, passed 1-25-2011) 

§ 1478.12 ACQUISITION OR USE OF PUBLIC PROPERTY. 

(A) The City Clerk's Office shall advise the Commission, in a timely manner, of 
all proposed or pending acquisitions, sales or changes in the use by the city or by 
any other public agency, including any other unit of local government, when known 
to the city of any property designated as a historic landmark, or located in a 
Historic District. The Commission shall advise the City Council, other appropriate 
public agency or other unit of local government, as to the effects of the actions on 
the special historic architectural, community or aesthetic interest or value of the 
properties to the city. 

(B) The Commission shall request that other public agencies serving the 
community agree to advise the Commission of pending acquisitions, sales or 
changes by the agencies in use of property designated as a historic landmark, or 
located in a Historic District, in order that the Commission may advise the agencies 
as to the impact of actions on the historic, architectural, community or aesthetic 
interest or value of the properties to the city. The Commission shall take 
appropriate steps to notify all public agencies which own or may acquire property in 
the city about the existence and character of designated historic landmarks and 
Historic Districts, and the Commission shall provide a current record of the 
landmarks and districts to the public agencies for their maintenance. 

(Ord. 06-50, passed 11-28-2006) 

§ 1478.13 REVIEW CRITERIA FOR CERTIFICATE OF 
APPROPRIATENESS AND CERTIFICATE OF ADVISORY REVIEW. 

(A) Guidelines for construction, alteration and relocation work. In making a 
determination to issue or deny a certificate of appropriateness for construction, 
alteration or relocation work affecting an eligible or designated historic landmark, 
or a determination to conduct an advisory review and either approve or make 
recommendations with regard to construction or relocation work on property located 
in a designated Historic District, either the Commission or the City Council, when 
considering an appeal, shall consider the effect of the proposed construction, 
alteration or relocation on the architectural features and on the historic, aesthetic 
or architectural value, characteristics and significance of the eligible or designated 
historic landmark or designated Historic District. 

(B) Determination. In making a determination whether to issue a certificate 
of appropriateness or a certificate of advisory review, the Commission or the City 
Council when considering an appeal, shall follow the Secretary of the Interior's 
Standards, revised 1990, as amended hCf'eia, and other criteria and guidelines as 

22 



the Commission may recommend, and which the City Council may adopt, for use by 
the Commission or the City Council when considering an appeal. The criteria shall 
include but are not limited to the following: 

(1) A property shall be used for its historic purpose or be placed in a new 
use that requires minimal change to the defining characteristics of the building and 
its site and environment; 

(2) The significant original qualities and/or historic character of a property 
shall be retained and preserved. The removal or alteration of historic or distinctive 
architectural materials or features and spaces that characterize a property shall be 
avoided; 

(3) Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place 
and use. Changes that create a false sense of historical development, such as adding 
conjectural features or architectural elements from other buildings, shall not be 
undertaken; 

(4) Most properties change over time; those changes that have acquired 
historic significance in their own right shall be retained and preserved; 

(5) Distinctive features, finishes and construction techniques or examples of 
craftsmanship that characterizes a historic property shall be preserved; 

(6) Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced. 
Where the severity of deterioration requires replacement of distinctive features, the 
new feature shall match the old in design, inherent and not renewable color, texture 
and other visual qualities and materials. Materials where possible replacement of 
missing features shall be substantiated by documentary, physical or pictorial 
evidence; 

(7) Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause 
damage to historic materials shall not be used. The surface cleaning of structures, if 
appropriate, shall be undertaken using the gentlest means possible; 

(8) Significant archaeological resources affected by a project shall be 
protected and preserved. If the resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures 
shall be undertaken; 

(9) The historic and architectural integrity of the property and its 
environment shall be protected by making the new work compatible with the 
existing structures, surrounding structures, streetscape or the character of the 
Historic District, whenever one or more of these elements is affected by the work, 
with respect to the following design criteria: 

23 



(a) The height of the alteration, addition or construction; 

(b) Proportions between the width and heights of structure's front 
facade; 

(c) The proportions and relationships between doors and windows; 

Cd) Relationship of building masses and the open space around them; 

(e) The design of the roof shapes, forms and materials; 

(f) Landscaping and appurtenances, which should also be sensitive to 
the individual structure, its occupants and their needs; 

(g) The scale of the proposed structure; 

(h) Dominant horizontal or vertical directional expression of front 
elevation or additional elevation; and 

(i) Architectural style, design, details and materials, including textures 
and patterns but not necessarily color. 

(10) New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be 
undertaken in a manner that if removed in the future, the essential form and 
integrity of the historic property and its environment would be unimpaired. 

(C) Guidelines for removal or demolition of historic landmarks, or buildings, 
structures or improvements located within a Historic District. Guidelines to be used 
by the Commission, or by the City Council when considering an appeal, in making a 
determination of appropriateness of the removal or demolition of a landmark or a 
building, structure or improvement in a Historic District shall include but not be 
limited to the guidelines set forth in division (A) hereinabove. Certificates of 
appropriateness for the removal or demolition of a building, structure or 
improvement in a Historic District shall be granted by the referenced criteria, if the 
proposal is for the removal or demolition of a noncontributing resource. 

Card. 06-50, passed 11-28-2006; Ord. 11-04, passed 1-25-2011) 

§ 1478.14 PROCEDURES FOR CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS. 

(A) Preapplication. Any owner of a historic landmark may, at any time, 
request the Commission to make a preliminary review of proposed work in order to 
determine whether the proposed work will meet the criteria set forth herein. The 

24 



Commission may, on a basis of documents and other materials presented, make a 
preliminary finding of acceptability, which may then be used by the Commission to 
expedite the processing of a certificate of appropriateness after the owner has 
applied for a building permit and/or a certificate of appropriateness. The 
Commission will issue the certificate of appropriateness only if the work described 
on the penuit documents submitted by the owner to obtain the permit is found to be 
substantially the same as that which was preapproved. If, during the preapplication 
review, the Commission finds that the proposed work does not meet the criteria, the 
Commission may advise the owner on possible ways to meet the criteria. 

(B) Application. Any application for a building permit and/or Certificate of 
Appropriateness for construction, alteration or relocation affecting an eligible or 
historical landmark or the removal of a building, structure or improvement from a 
property within a designated Historic District, and any application for a demolition 
permit for the demolition of an eligible or designated historic landmark or for the 
demolition of a building, structure or improvement in a designated Historic District 
shall be sent by the City Clerk, within three working days of receipt, to the 
Commission. At the time of receipt of the application(s), the City Clerk shall issue to 
the applicant a historic preservation guidelines pamphlet prepared by or made 
available by the Commission, which summarizes the preservation requirements and 
preservation assistance available in the city with regard to the historic landmarks 
and Historic Districts. The Building Director shall not issue a building permit or 
shall not authorize the issuance of a permit or any alternations until a certificate of 
appropriateness or certificate of economic hardship has been issued. 

(C) Subcommittee and Commission staff review and issuance of certificate of 
appropriateness. 

(1) The Commission may propose and the City Council may adopt rules, 
procedures and criteria under which a Subcommittee of the Commission and/or 
Commission staff may approve applications for certificates of appropriateness when 
the proposed work involves: 

(a) Restoration to original conditions; 

(b) No changes in materials; 

(c) Changes not visible from the street; or 

(d) Other types of activities determined by the Commission to have 
limited effect on the historic, architectural or aesthetic qualities or landmarks or 
districts. 

25 



(2) The rules, procedures and criteria, if adopted, shall provide that the 
Subcommittee or Commission staff shall act within five working days from receipt 
of the application by the Commission to review, approve and issue a certificate of 
appropriateness, or to refer the application to the full Commission for its 
consideration. 

(D) Commission review. If rules, procedures and criteria are adopted providing 
for Subcommittee and/or staff issuance of certificates of appropriateness under 
certain limited circumstances, applications which would not meet the criteria for 
Subcommittee or staff review under division (C) herein, shall be referred to the 
Commission by the Subcommittee or Commission staff, or applications which have 
been denied a certificate of appropriateness by Subcommittee or Commission staff 
shall be referred to the Commission. Except as otherwise provided for in rules and 
procedures adopted in accordance with division (C) herein, all applications for 
certificates of appropriateness shall be referred directly to the full Commission for 
review. The Commission shall review the completed application and supporting 
information within 30 days of receiving same, either from a subcommittee or 
directly from the City Clerk. The applicant shall be notified, in writing, of the date, 
time and place of the meeting at which Commission review on the proposed work 
shall take place. The applicant shall be requested to submit the plans; drawings, 
photographs or other information the Commission may request to complete its 
review. Requested information shall not delay the meeting. The notice shall be sent 
no less than five days before the meeting at which the proposed work is to be 
reviewed. The applicant may waive the requirement for this five-day advance 
notice, in writing. A special meeting of the Commission may be called if the 
application is received more than 15 days before the Commission's next scheduled 
meeting. A final vote, as to approval or denial, shall be made within 45 days of the 
receipt of a complete application. 

(E) Acceptance of proposed work and issuance of certificate of appropriateness. 
If, upon review, a majority of the Commission finds the proposed work is in 
accordance with the applicable criteria set forth in § 1478.13 herein and the 
purposes of this chapter, it may issue a certificate of appropriateness. The 
resolution issuing a certificate of appropriateness shall be sent to the applicant, the 
City Clerk, and the Building Department within five working days after the 
decision. A certificate of appropriateness shall expire one year after the date of 
issuance. Any change in the proposed work after issuance of a certificate of 
appropriateness shall require inspection by Historic Preservation staff to detennine 
whether the work is still in substantial compliance with the certificate of 
appropriateness. If staff determines that the change in work is not in substantial 
compliance with the certificate of appropriateness, then the owner must submit a 
revised application to the Commission for review. 

(F) Failure to issue a certificate of appropriateness. 

26 



(1) If the Commission finds that the proposed work does not meet the 
established criteria and, therefore, will adversely affect or destroy any significant 
historic, aesthetic or architectural feature or value of an eligible or designated 
historic landmark, or is inappropriate or inconsistent with the spirit and purposes 
of the chapter, it shall not take action on the application and shall so advise the 
applicant, the City Clerk and the Building Department, in writing, within five 
working days of the determination not to act on the application and shall further 
indicate to the applicant at that time that the applicant may submit an amended 
application for expedited review or may request a public hearing. 

(2) Within the same five-working-day time frame, the Commission shall 
send a letter to the applicant explaining any changes recommended by the 
Commission before an amended application may be considered. The letter will 
address the appropriate review criteria and other points deemed pertinent by the 
Commission. The applicant may either amend the application or resubmit same for 
expedited review, or the applicant may request a public hearing on the application. 
lfthe applicant submits an amended application and it is determined to conform to 
Commission recommendations, a certificate of appropriateness may be issued by a 
majority of a quorum of the Commission. 

(G) Public hearing following denial of a certificate of appropriateness. Within 
15 days of notice to the applicant to file an amended application or request a public 
hearing, the applicant may request that the Commission hold a public hearing 
where additional evidence and testimony may be heard regarding the application 
for a certificate of appropriateness. The Commission shall hold a public hearing 
within 45 days of receipt of the written request. 

(1) Notice of the date, time, place and purpose of the public hearing shall be 
sent by regular and certified mail to the applicant (see § 1478.08 to notify adjacent 
parties) and the notice shall also be published in a newspaper of general circulation 
in the city. The notice shall be sent and published not less than 15 days nor more 
than 30 days prior to the date of the hearing. The notice shall include the time and 
place of the hearing, a general description of the contents of the request to be heard, 
and the address or location of the property to which the request applies. 

(2) At the public hearing, the Commission shall take testimony presented 
by the applicant and any other interested parties concerning the effect of the 
proposed alteration, construction, relocation, removal or demolition upon an eligible 
or designated historic landmark, or the effect of the proposed removal or demolition 
of any structure, building or improvement with a Historic District upon the district, 
and shall conduct the hearings in a manner consistent with the Rules of Procedure 
for Hearings Before the Historic Preservation Commission adopted herein and 
made a part hereof and as may be amended from time to time, by action of the 

27 



Commission and the City Council. The hearing may be continued to a date certain, 
with the concurrence of the applicant. 

(3) Within 15 days following the completion of the public hearing, the 
Commission shall issue or deny the certificate of appropriateness. Notice of the 
Commission's decision will be sent to the applicant and owner, the City Clerk and 
the Building Director within five working days of rendering the decision. 
Notification procedures outline under § 1478.08 of this chapter will apply. 

(H) Appeal to the City Council. Upon denial of the application for a certificate 
of appropriateness by the Commission, the applicant may appeal the denial to the 
City Councilor may request a certificate of economic hardship. 

(Ord. 06-50, passed 11-28-2006) 

§ 1478.15 PROCEDURES FOR CERTIFICATE OF ECONOMIC 
HARDSHIPS. 

(A) Application. Following denial of a certificate of appropriateness by the 
Commission or by the City Council on appeal, the owner or designated 
representative may apply for a certificate of economic hardship by submitting to the 
Commission a completed application for a certificate of economic hardship, which 
form shall be available in the City Hall and in particular, at the office of the City 
Clerk, the Building Department and/or the City Commission staff. 

(B) Public hearing process. 

(1) The Commission shall hold a public hearing within 45 days of receipt of 
a completed application for a certificate of economic hardship. Notice of the public 
hearing shall be sent by regular and certified mail to the applicant (see § 1478.08 to 
notify adjacent parties). Notice also shall be published in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the city. The notice shall be sent not less than 15 days nor more than 
30 days prior to the date of the hearing. The notice shall include the time and place 
of the hearing, a general description of the contents of the request to be heard and 
the address or location of the property to which the request applies. 

(2) At the public hearing, the Commission shall take testimony presented 
by the owner(s) and any other interested parties concerning the effect of the 
proposed alteration, construction, relocation, removal or demolition upon the 
eligible or designated historic landmark or designated Historic District based upon 
the criteria consistent with the Rules of Procedure for Hearing Before the Historic 
Preservation Commission, as adopted herein and made a part hereof and as may be 
amended, from time to time, by action of the Commission and the City Council. The 

28 



hearing may be continued to a date certain. A record shall be kept of all 
proceedings. 

(C) Factors. In determining where a certificate of economic hardship should be 
issued, the factors to be considered by the Commission and the City Council on the 
issue of economic hardship shall include but are not limited to the following: 

(1) A substantial decrease in the fair market value of the property as a 
result of the denial of the certificate of appropriateness; 

(2) A substantial decrease in the pre-tax or after-tax return to owners of 
record or other investors in the property as a resul t of the denial of the certificate of 
appropriateness; 

(3) The cost of the proposed construction, alteration, relocation or 
demolition, and an estimate of any additional cost that would be incurred to comply 
with the recommendations of the Commission for changes necessary for the 
issuance of a certificate of appropriateness; 

(4) The structural soundness of any structures on the property and their 
suitability for rehabilitation; and 

(5) The economic feasibility of rehabilitation or reuse of the existing 
structure or improvement on the property in the case of a proposed demolition. 

(D) Evidence. The Commission may solicit expert testimony. The applicant 
may be required to submit evidence at the hearing to support any of the factors, 
including those listed above, which the applicant believes to have contributed to the 
economic hardship, which the applicant alleges he or she would suffer if the 
applicant were not granted a certificate of appropriateness. 

(1) Specific information and documentation, which should be presented by 
the applicant as competent evidence at the hearing may include but not be limited 
to the following: 

(a) The amount paid for the property, the date of purchase and the 
party from whom purchased (including description of the relationship, if any, 
between the owner and the person from whom the property was purchased); 

(b) The assessed value of the land and improvements thereon according 
to the two most recent assessments; 

(c) Real estate taxes for the previous two years; 

29 



(d) Annual debt service, if any, for the previous two years; 

(e) All appraisals obtained within the previous two years by the owner or 
applicant in connection with his or her purchase, financing or ownership of the 
property; 

(f) Any listing of the property for sale or rent, price asked and offers 
received, if any; 

(g) Any consideration by the owner as to profitable adaptive uses for the 
property; 

(h) If the property is income-producing, the annual gross income from 
the property for the previous two years, itemized operating and maintenance 
expenses for the previous two years, and annual cash flow, if any, during the same 
period; 

(i) Executed construction agreements or proposals; 

(j) Engineering or architect reports on the structural integrity of the 
building or structure upon which work is being proposed; and 

(k) Any other information including the income tax bracket of the owner, 
applicant or principal investors in the property, reasonably necessary for a 
determination as to whether the property can be reasonably used or yield a 
reasonable return to present or future owners. 

(2) In the event that any of the required information is not reasonably 
available to the applicant and cannot be obtained by the applicant, the applicant 
shall provide to the Commission a statement of the information which cannot be 
obtained and describe the reasons why the information cannot be obtained. 

(E) Issuance or denial of certificate of economic hardship. 

(1) lfthe Commission finds that the owner and/or applicant has not 
established that the owner and/or applicant will suffer a demonstrable economic 
hardship as a result of the denial of a certificate of appropriateness, then the 
Commission shall deny the application for certificate of economic hardship. 

(2) If the Commission makes an initial determination that the applicant 
has presented a case which may establish that without approval of the proposed 
work all reasonable use of, or return from, a designated historic landmark will be 
denied a property owner, but the Commission finds that reasonable alternatives 
may exist which should be addressed by the applicant, then the application shall be 

30 



delayed for a period of no more than 30 days of this period, the Commission shall 
investigate plans and make recommendations to the owner and the City Council 
which are intended to provide for reasonable use of, or return from the property, or 
to otherwise preserve the subject property. During the second 30 days of this period, 
the applicant will investigate the proposal of the Commission and prove the 
Commission with written response thereto. 

(3) If, at the end of this 60-day period, after reviewing its initial finding and 
its subsequent proposals and the applicant's response thereto, the Commission finds 
that without approval of the proposed work the property cannot be put to any 
reasonable use or the owner cannot obtain a reasonable economic hardship 
approving the proposed work. If the Commission finds otherwise, it shall deny the 
application for a certificate of economic hardship. Within 15 days following the 
completion of the public hearing and within 15 days of the 60-day delay period 
provided for in this division, if applicable, the Commission shall render its decision 
on the certificate of economic hardship by adopting a resolution which shall set 
forth the findings of fact and decision of the Commission either granting or denying 
the certificate of hardship. 

(4) An executed copy of the resolution shall be sent to the applicant and 
property owner, the City Clerk and the Building Department within five working 
days after the decision. 

(Ord. 06-50, passed 11-28-2006) 

§ 1478.16 APPEALS. 

(A) Within 15 days of receipt of a final denial of a certificate of appropriateness 
or a certificate of economic hardship, the applicant and/or his or her representative 
may appeal the Commission's decision to the City Council. The City Council, within 
45 days of the applicant filing his or her appeal, shall affirm, reverse or modify the 
decision of the Commission after due consideration of the facts contained in the 
records, which the Commission shall submit to the City Council within ten working 
days of the filing of the appeal. The City Council may receive comments on the 
contents of the record, but shall not consider any new matters that were not 
presented during the Commission hearings. 

(B) The City Council shall, in writing, and within ten days of its decision, 
advise the applicants and the Commission of its final decision and shall direct the 
City Council to advise all affected departments of the city government. 

(C) The failure of the City Council to affirm, modify or reverse the decision of 
the Commission within 45 days of the applicant filing his or her appeal shall be 
considered as an affirmance by the City Council of the decision of the Commission 

31 



and a denial of the appeal, and the Commission shall so notify the applicant and the 
affected departments of the city government. 

(D) The decision of the City Council will be the final administrative decision of 
the city. 

(Ord. 06-50, passed 11-28-2006) 

§ 1478.17 RESERVED. 

§ 1478.18 PREVENTION OF DEMOLITION BY NEGLECT. 

The Commission, on its own initiative, may file a petition with the Building 
Department requesting that the Department proceed under the public safety and 
housing ordinance to require correction of defects or repairs to eligible or designated 
historic landmarks or building, structures or improvements in designated Historic 
Districts so that the landmarks, buildings, structures or improvements shall be 
preserved and protected in accordance with the purposes of this chapter and the 
public safety and housing ordinance. 

(Ord. 06-50, passed 11-28-2006) 

§ 1478.19 HAZARDOUS STRUCTURES AND PUBLIC NUISANCES. 

(A) This chapter shall not prohibit the demolition of any structure, which 
poses an immediate hazard to human health and safety. When an eligible or 
designated historic landmark or building, structure or improvement in a designated 
Historic District requires immediate demolition due to its imminent threat to 
human health and safety, and conditions have been reviewed by a licensed architect 
or structural engineer and an authorized city official, pursuant to ordinance, who 
have made the determination that the landmark, building, structure or 
improvement should be demolished immediately, then nothing in this chapter shall 
prohibit the demolition of such landmark, building, structure or improvement. The 
city official ordering the demolition shall, prior to causing the demolition, attempt 
notification of a designated member of the Commission of the imminent threat 
posed by the landmarks, building, structure or improvement if the notice may be 
given without jeopardizing human health and safety. The Chairperson of the 
Commission shall designate three members of the Commission, any of whom shall 
be authorized to receive notice of emergency demolition as provided in this section. 

(B) If the city has, pursuant to official action, declared a building, structure or 
improvement that is an eligible or designated landmark or is located in a 
designated Historic District as a public nuisance and has authorized its demolition, 
the City Clerk or his or her designee shall have a copy of the declaration of public 

32 



nuisance delivered to the chairperson of the Commission, who shall place the 
matter on the agenda of the next meeting of the Commission. The Commission shall 
be authorized to review the building, structure or improvement and determine if the 
owner or some other person can commence rehabilitation of it immediately. The 
Commission shall ensure that whoever will rehabilitate the building, structure or 
improvement, shall have either public or private financing, or both, to make sure 
that the building, structure or improvement is promptly rehabilitated in accordance 
with the criteria set forth in this chapter. If the Commission is unable to secure the 
rehabilitation plans of the building, structure or improvement within 90 days of the 
date that the city obtains judicial authorization to demolish it, whichever is later, 
then the city may proceed with the demolition of the building, structure or 
improvement. 

(C) An owner of a building, structure or improvement eligible or designated as 
a landmark or located within a Historic District shall not be authorized to demolish 
the building, structure or improvement without filing an application for certificate 
of appropriateness, except when an authorized city official, pursuant to ordinance, 
has made the determination that the building, structure or improvement poses an 
imminent threat to human health and safety and should be demolished 
immediately, under the guidelines of division (A) herein. 

(D) If the city has declared an eligible or designated landmark or a building, 
stnlcture or improvement in a designated Historic District to be a public nuisance 
and, after the declaration, the owner of the building, structure or improvement files 
an application for a certificate of appropriateness so the building, structure or 
improvement may be rehabilitated, the Commission may exercise jurisdiction over 
the application and the structure until a time as the city obtains judicial 
authorization to demolish the structure. Once the city has obtained judicial 
authorization, then the rehabilitation of the structure may proceed only if the City 
Council consents to withholding its authority to demolish the structure in abeyance 
while the structure is rehabilitated. 

(Ord. 06-50, passed 11-28-2006; Ord. 11-04, passed 1-25-2011) 

§ 1478.20 HANDICAPPED ACCESSmILITY PROVISIONS. 

Nothing in this chapter shall exempt owners from complying with applicable 
federal, state or city laws concerning handicapped accessibility. In providing for 
handicapped accessibility as may be required by laws or desire by an owner, every 
effort shall be make to visually integrate the physical devices as may be necessary 
to accomplish accessibility with the architectural design of the historic landmark or 
building, structure or improvement in a Historic District. Emphasis shall be placed 
on providing readily removable physical accessibility provisions such as ramps or 
chair lifts, with no permanent damage to the historic fabric of the building. 

33 



(Ord. 06-50, passed 11-28-2006) 

§ 1478.21 JUDICIAL REVIEW OF FINAL DECISION. 

Any final decisions rendered by the City Council under this chapter shall be 
subject to judicial review pursuant to the provisions of the Administrative Review 
Law, ILCS Ch. 735, Act 5, §§ 3-101 et seq., as amended, and rules adopted pursuant 
thereto. 

(Ord. 06-50, passed 11-28-2006) 

§ 1478.99 PENALTY. 

(A) It shall be unlawful for any person to alter, relocate, remove or demolish 
any historic landmark or to do construction work on, relocate, remove or demolish 
any building, structure or improvement within a Historic District, or attempt to 
take any of these actions without complying with the provisions of this chapter. 
Persons violating any provision of this chapter other than mandatory advisory 
review shall also be subject to the institution of proceedings by the city to prevent, 
strain, abate or correct the violations of this chapter, including restoration of the 
building or structure and its site to its appearance prior to the violation if the 
appearance is integral to the significance of the site or structure as determined by 
the Commission. Any action to -enforce this section shall be brought by the City 
Attorney, his or her designee or by designated representatives of the Building 
Department. This civil remedy shall be in addition to and not in lieu of any criminal 
prosecution and penalty contained in this section. 

(B) If construction, alteration, relocation, removal or demolition of an eligible 
or designated historic landmark or of any building, structure or improvement 
located in a designated Historic District occurs without a permit or without proper 
authorization as set forth in this chapter, then the city may seek to revoke the 
license of the company, individual, principal owner, or its or his or her successor(s) 
interest in performing construction, alteration, relocation, removal or demolition for 
a period of one year. 

(C) If demolition of a historic landmark occurs without a permit, the person 
causing the demolition shall, upon conviction, be guilty of a misdemeanor offense 
punishable by incarceration in the county jail for a term not to exceed six months. 

(D) Any person violating any provision of this chapter shall, upon conviction, 
be punished by a fine not to exceed $1,500. Each day during which any violation 
hereofis committed shall constitute a separate offense. 

34 



I (Ord. 06-50. passed 11-28-2006) 

Section 3 SEVERABILITY 

If any provision, clause, sentence, paragraph, section or part of this Chapter or application 
thereof to any person or circumstance, shall for any reason be adjudged by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, said judgment shall not affect, impair or invalidate 
the remainder of this Chapter and the application of such provision to other persons or 
circumstances, but shall be confined in its operation to the provision, clause, sentence, paragraph, 
section or part thereof directly involved in the controversy in which such judgment shall have 
been rendered and to the person or circumstances involved. It is hereby declared to be the 
legislative intent of the city council that this chapter would have been adopted had such 
unconstitutional or invalid provisions, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, sections or parts thereof 
not been included. 

Section 4 SAVINGS CLAUSE 

This Chapter shall not affect violations of any other ordinance, code or regulation of the 
jurisdiction existing prior to the effective date hereof, and any such violation shall be governed 
and shall continue to be punishable to the full extent of the law under the provisions of those 
ordinances, codes or regulations in effect at the time the violation was committed. 

Section 5 EFFECTIVE DATE 

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, approval and 
publication as afforded by law. 

35 



ADOPTED this __ day of April 2011. pursuant to a roll call vote us follows: 

YES NO 

Chapman 

Boyajian 

Paul 

Skryd 

Santoy 

Polashek 

Avila 

lAlureto 

(Mayor Lovero) 

TOTAL 

APPROVED by the Mayor on April _____ • 20 II. 

ATTEST: 

Thomas 1. Pavlik 

CITY CLERK 

36 

ABSENT PRESENT 

Robert J. Lovero 

MAYOR 



A Century of Progress with Pride 

April 12.2011 

To: City Council and Mayor Robert Lovero 
From: Brian Pabst, City Administrator 

RE: Insurance Renewal 

Mayor and Council Members: 

Brian L. Pabst 
City Administrator 

Please concur wich the recommendations made by the city's insurance broker per the presentacion at the 

committee of the whole by approving the following: 

I. Surety Bond: $800 

2. Crime insurance: $12,599 for $500,000 coverage. ($1,000,000 coverage would cost $14,179) 

3. Fiduciary for the pol ice pension fund: $5,116 

Total cost of $18,515 

Recommendation to tenninate the following policies: 

I. Boiler and machinery. Savings of $10,980 

2. Builder'S Risk. Savings of $4,508 

3. Current Surety Bond. Savings of $7,175 

Total savings of $4,148 

Respeccfully, 

Brian Pabst 
City Administrator 

6700 West 26'~ Streel Berwyn, Illinois 60402.0701 Telephone: (708) 788·2660 fa~ (708) 788·2567 www.berwyn.il.gov 



Denis O'Hallol"tlll 
Fi,..· ChiLi 

R ic!lIl1 .. 1 Sw "d e 
, hsi.'/(1I11 Fin: C/,"4 

April 20, 2011 

To: Mayor Robert Lovero 

Members of City Council 

From: Fire Chief Denis Q'Halioran 

iOa. 788.2660 (' xl 3281 Mayor Rollcrl J. Lo\'ero 

F',\ X 708.788.30.'39 • Emt' rgellc Y 9- I - 1 

Re: Permission to Contact the Fire & Police Commission to Hire 2 Replacement 

Firefighters/Paramedics & Permission to hire an additional 12 Firefighter/Paramedics. 

Honorable Mayor Lovero and Members of City Council, 

As you know Council has accepted the Proposal in the Collective Bargaining Agreement to 

eliminate Pa ramedic Services of Illinois, our contracted provider for Emergency Medica I Services. The 

Berwyn Fire Department has provided the Emergency Medical services since June of 2010 utilizing the 

Sliver Spanner program and our own Firefighter paramedics. The Fire & Police Commission has 

completed the recruitment and testing process and has established a final hiring list. The candidates are 

In the pre-hiring and medical examinations process. 

I am requesting permission to hire two (2) replacement firefighters due to recent retirements, 

and twelve (12) additional firefighter paramedics to provide personnel for our EMS Services. All 

positions have been planned for in the current budget. The sooner I receive permission to hire the new 

probationary firefighter/paramedics the greater amount of savings realized with the reduction and or 

elimination of the Sliver spanner program. 

In closing I am asking permission to contact the Police & Fire Commission to begin the formal hiring 

process. 

Respectfully submitted, 

IJ~o~ 
Fire Chief Denis Q'Halloran 



DCllilS 0'11,,11.11'''" 
Fire Chit:! 

Rit·hllrcl SWlIIle 
AlI/."/llIt F;rf Chi".! 

April 20, 2011 

To: Mayor Robert Lovero 

EKWYN 
FIRE DEPARTMENT 

6700 \V. 26th Slrrel • Bt-rWYIl, IL 6(}t02-0701 

708. 788.2660 exl 3281 

FAX 70B.781130.39 • Emergellcy 9- I-I 

Members of City Council 

From: Fire Chief Denis O'Halloran 

Re: Purchase of Replacement Fire Department Vehicles 

Honorable Mayor Lavero & Members of City Council, 

Mayol" Rohert J. Lovero 

I am requesting permission to enter Into two separate contracts to purchase one replacement 

vehicle and one additional command vehicle for the Berwyn Fire Department. Deputy Chief Sam 

Molinaro has completed extensive research on these vehicles (His detalled report is attached to this 

communication). We will be using the Joint Purchasing program for Local Government agencies where 

the vehicles have already been sent out for the bid process. 

It would be my recommendatIon that we purchase a 2011 Ford Expedition from Sutton Ford 

(the awarded bIdder) for a cost of $29,959.00. Other dealers were contacted and cannot compete with 

this bid. ThIs vehicle will be used as a command vehicle. The current command vehicle will be passed 

down for use by the FIre Prevention inspectors. The current 1996 Dodge Caravan is available for City 

uses. ThIs bid price will expire on June 30, 2011. 

It would also be my recommendation to purchase the 2011 F-350 pIck-up truck from Freeway 

Ford. Freeway Ford has submitted a bid of $32,174.00. Freeway Fords bid Is $500.00 less that the 

awarded bid through the Joint Purchasing program for local Governments. The pick-up truck will be an 

addition to our fleet. This utility pick-up truck will be used to pull the Fire Safety trailer a nd for other fIre 

depa rtment tasks. Currently we do not have a vehicle In our fleet equipped to pull the safety trailer 

safely. We have been using the graffitI removal truck to tow the trailer. The cutoff date for orderIng the 

pIck-up truck Is May 6, 2011. 



I am requesting permission to purchase both vehicles at the above mentioned prices of . 

$29,959.00 and $32,174.00 before the cutoff dates of May 6,2011 and June 30, 2011. There is an 

extended wait period for delivery due to the Earthquake In Japan. Both Vehicles were planned for and 

approved in the 2011Budget under Capital Outlay LIne Item along with the cost for Emergency lighting 

and lettering. Should you have any questions regarding this matter feel free to contact me. 

Respectfully SUbmitt~i' /J/J 

~~(J~ 
Fire Chief Denis O'Halloran 



To: Denis O'Halloran, Fire Chief 

From: Sam Molinaro, Deputy Fire Chief 

Re: Utility Vehicle Purchases 

Date: April 19, 2011 

During the process of preparing the Fire Department budget for 2011, we discussed the 
possibility of acquiring two new vehicles, one being a replacement for a current vehicle 
(912), and the other being an addItional vehicle added to our fleet. These (capital) 
expenditures were included in the final budget presented to, and approved by City 
Council as part of the 2011 FD budget. 

The first vehicle, a 2011 Ford F-350 Super Cab (seating for six) heavy duty pickup truck 
is the proposed addition to the FD fleet. This vehicle will be used as a multipurpose 
utility vehicle. Some expected uses include; towing the MABAS Division 11 and BFD 
resources currently stored at our facilities, transporting additional personnel and 
equipment in a safe manner to the scene of emergency incidents, and possibly used for 
snow removal at our facilities with the possible future purchase of a plow. The cost of 
this vehIcle is $32,174.00 and Is available through Freeway Ford, Lyons, IL. The cost is 
$500 less than what is available through the Suburban PurchasIng Cooperative (SPC) 
Currie Motors Frankfort, IL (vendor awarded contract) for the exact same vehicle. This 
price is available through May 6, 2011 at which time the price will increase. Letter 
attached from Freeway Ford. 

Currently we use a vehicle that is not designed or meant to transport multiple personnel 
(up to six at times) belted in, with equipment stored in a safe manner, i.e. Unit 912 
(1996 Dodge Caravan), 912 has been used mainly for Fire Prevention, but we have 
been forced to also use it as a utility vehicle. Using this vehicle as a multipurpose 
vehicle also forces Fire Prevention to reschedule appointments for inspections, as we 
don't have a vehicle for Inspectors to use. 

As you are aware, 912 does not have the capability to tow anything. This becomes a 
problem since we either must borrow a vehicle from the BPD if available, or shuffle 
personnel around in vehicles to allow for towing equipment. This does not allow for 
timely responses to emergency incidents. Even with shuffling personnel, we don't 
currently have access to a vehicle which will tow the Division 11 Fire Safety Trailer. Unit 
912 is rapidly approaching the end of its lifespan as an emergency vehicle due to its 
age and condition. 



The second proposed purchase is a 2011 Ford Expedition, which will replace Unit 909 a 
2005 Chevy Impala which currently serves as the Assistant Fire Chiefs car. The 2005 
Impala will be used as the new Fire Prevention vehicle (912), replacing the 1996 Dodge 
Caravan described above. The cost of this vehicle Is $29,959.00 and is available 
through the Suburban Purchasing Cooperative (SPC). The SPC's contract with Sutton 
Ford, Matteson IL (vendor awarded contract) expires June 30, 2011. The cost for a 
2012 ve h i cle is expected to rise, so a d eci s ion mu st ta ke place sho rtl y if we a re to 
proceed with this purchase. See attached letlerfrom Sutton Ford. 

Additional costs to outfit these vehicles (emergency lighting, lettering, and radio's) have 
also been budgeted for in the 2011 FD Budget. 



Denis O'Hullol'lIl1 
Fire Chief 

RichuNI Swutk 
! 1.~,i" '11IJ1 '-i,,' Chid 

April 20, 2011 

To: Mayor Robert Lovero 

Members of City Council 

BERWYN 
FIRE DEPARTMENT 

6700 W. 261h SLrl'l'1 • IJt.nvyn. IL 6()1102-()70 1 

70B.788.2660 t'xl ~281 

FA I( j08.788.30.39 • EmeJ-gellcy 9-1-1 

From: Fire Chief Denis O'Halloran 

Mayor Robert J. Lovero 

John Novacek Director City of Berwyn Department of Homeland Security & Emergency 

Management Agency 

Anthony Bertuca City of Berwyn Law Department 

Re: City of Berwyn Comprehensive Emergency Operation Plan 

Ladies & Gentleman, 

Please be advised that the Berwyn Fire Department and City of Berwyn Department of 

Homeland Security & Emergency Management Agency have completed our review and updates of 

comprehensive emergency Operations Plan. The Berwyn Police Department, IT Department, Public 

Works Department and the Berwyn Township Health Department all have assisted with this review and 

additions to the plan. On the advice of the Law Department this document contains privileged 

information and is therefore declared to be a NCLASSIFIED DOCUMENT." 

This Comprehensive plan will be filed with the Administrator of Cook County - Office of Emergency 

Management and is In conformance with the Title 29, Chapter 1, Subchapter b, Part 205 of the IIJinois 

Revised Statutes, regulating local emergency plans. Before we file this with Cook County the plan must 

be approved by Berwyn City Council. For security purposes, this updated plan will be available for 

review by Elected OffiCials in the Office of Thomas 1. Pavlik, the City Clerk. We are respectfully 

requesting your approval of this updated pia n. 



Please see the attached the Certificate of Acceptance Authentication which will be filed with The 

Plan. 

Should you have any question rega rdlng this commu nlcatlon please feel free to contact the Fire Chief or 

Mr. Bertuca of the Law Department. 

Respectfully submitted, 

lJ~&~ 
Fire Chief Denis O'Halioran 



CITY OF BERWYN 

COMPREHENSIVE EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN 

PREFACE 

This document contains privileged Information and is therefore declared to be a "ClASSIFIED DOCUMENT: 
A'J,Y reproductIon or du plication requires prior approval of the Director of Em ergency Management, 64.20 West 
16 Street, Berwyn IL6040.2, Phone 708-788-3248. 

Copy# __ _ 

Issuedto: ________________________ _ 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

EMERGENCY PLAN CERTIFICATION 

The attached Comprehensive Emergency Operations Plan meets the requirements of 
the Cook County - Office of Emergency Management and Is In conformance with Title 
29, Chapter I, Subchapter b, Part 205 of the lIIino;s Revised Statutes, regulating local 
emergency plans. 

This plan Is hereby approved this _ day of ______ • 2010. 

Emergtncy Operations Pun 

Cicy of Berwyn 

Administrator, Cook County Office of 
Emergency Management 

Main ~aion Page I of 20 Updated. July 20 fO 



CERTIFICATION OF ACCEPTANCE 

We, the undersigned. have read our respective parts ot the City ot Berwyn Emergency Operations Plan. 
We accept the duties and responsibilities assigned to us, and acknowledge the relationships hereIn 
established. We further agree to provide the necessary resources. both persooaJ and materials. to 
perform the assigned tasks Identified in this plan. 

Berwyn AgencIes 

Mayor Date 

Treasurer Date 

Fire Department Date 

PolIce Department Date 

BuJJdlng Commissioner Date 

Public Works Department Date 

Director of Recreation Date 

Director of InformatIon Technologies Date 

Emergency Operations Plan Main Section Page 4 of 20 Updated December 2010 

City of Berwyn 



AUTHENTICATION 

SECTION 1 

If any section, clause, or provision of this plan shall be held invalid, their validity thereof shall not affect 
any other provision of this plan. 

SECTION 2 

All regulations or parts of regulations or ordinances conflicting with any of the provisions of this 
plan, shall be Immediately repealed. 

SECTION 3 

This Comprehensive Emergency Operations Plan shall be in full force and effect from the date of 
Its approval, as provided by law. 

Approved this __ day of _________ , 2010. 

By: 

Mayor 

Emergency Services Coordinator 

Attest: 

City Clerk 

Date 
(City Seal) 

Emergency Opcr.uions Pbn Moin Section Page 3 of 20 Updat~ July 2010 

Ciry of Berwyn 



Richnnl Swnd(' 
11.'.1;""'" /o'ir" Chi'i 

April 19, 2011 

To: Mayor Robert Lovero 

BERWYN 
FIRE DEPARTMENT 

6iOO W. 261h Slret>1 • R~rwYIl. 1 L 6(}!102-U70 1 

708.788.2660 p.xl 3281 

FA\ 708.788 .. 30.19 • EllIergelicy 9-1-1 

Mem bers of City Council 

From: Fire Chief Denis O'Halloran 

Moyor Rohcl"l J. Lovero 

Re: Red Cross Hero Award for Gold Shift 3rd Platoon & Lt. James Wojnarowski & Firefighter William 

Glaser. 

On April 10, 2010 the Berwyn Fire Department was dispatched to a report of a fire in an 

apartment at 1907 S. Euclid Ave Berwyn A multi-unit large apartment complex. With the efforts of the 

entire Gold Shift during the course of the fire a primary search for victims was conducted. Lieutenant 

James Wojnarowski and Firefighter EMT William Glaser assigned to a primary search function. During 

the course of their search they found two victims unconscious and barley breathing. The victims a 

father and his son were removed from the hazardous atmosphere and brought to the on duty 

Emergency Medical unit on the scene. Both victims that were rescued from the fire, recovered from 

their injuries fully. 

The Berwyn Fire Department's Gold Shift which was Included all members work on shift that day 

were submitted for two separate regional award recognition applications, one for the Red Cross and one 

for the one Hundred Club Valor award. Representatives from the Berwyn Fire Department were chosen 

and came In first palce for the American Red Cross of Greater Chicago 2011 Heroes Award in the 

Firefighter category. Lieutenant James Wojnarowski and Firefighter EMT William Glaser were chosen 

for this award. They represented the FIre Department and accepted the award on behalf of the 



Department. The events of this fire are another fine example of the dedication and team work that 

helps accomplished our mission statement of protecting lives and property for the Citizens of Berwyn. 

r would like to thank the Mayor and the members of City Council for supporting our efforts and 

allowing us to obtain our goals and follow our mission statement. Without your support the Berwyn Fire 

Department could not meet our goals. 

Please acceptthis as informational proposes. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Chief Denis Q'Halloran 



R:1!i Midll'n.> J)I';VP Willowbrool" IL 60527 .. 'l~'h'PJ]("1(>: (6:JO) 887-86JO Pili.' (6.'JO) HR7-01:j~ 

CidllCnpinFPJsI 
AblDi ci pill ('0 mOIl /t;m f.<; 

Han. Mayor & City Council 
City of Berwyn 
6700 West 26th Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402 

Re: Roosevelt Road TJ.F. Alley Improvements 

Mesdames & Gentlemen: 

April 21, 2011 

Enclosed is a copy of the "Tabulation of Bids" for the bids that were received and opened 
for the above-captioned project at 10:00 a.m. on April 20, 2011. Ten (10) bids were 
received and checked for accuracy, with only one computational error being found, which 
was corrected. This correction, however. did not affect the resultant low bidder. 

The low bidder was Kings Point, LLC submitting a bid In the amount of $73,550.00, which 
was $19,478.00 (20.94%) below the Engineer's Estimate of $93,028.00. 

Kings Point, LLC has performed well for the City on similar type projects in the past. 
Therefore, we recommend that the Contract be awarded to Kings Point, LLC, 920 
County Line Road, Bensenville, IL 60106 in the amount of $73,550.00. 

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions regarding this matter. 

JEF/kes 
Enclosure 

Sincerely, 

FRANK NOVOTNY & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

if. { ~ 
John E. Fitzgerald. P.E. 

cc: Mr. Robert Schiller, Director of PubliC Works, w/Encl. 
File No. 11052 



DaIo; o!ntI»ll 

OW!(£R; 

J..A1UIJ.AT ION Q.LIU.IUi 

CIIy of BeIIoyn 
PROJI!CT OESCRIPTION; Roosevell ROed T.I.F. Alley Im~rollClJ1erns 

810 

-'*' \ EdI_ 
:r --~ 3 T-'_.~ 

• ~~ 
5 

P .......... -

& ~P--'-
7 p.e eo.-D"-p.-r 
8 P.I:.Coroaw»-, __ r 
g p.c.C<fooIa_r 

10 _.,.~._eo.-. ,. 

11 
_R ___ rp.c.~ 

.......... ,. "_Mlah;lNll$uflaoo 
12 

~ __ .... _c.t 
Il -.; ,. -.u,~ 
,6 'op:I3i.1tJ'ft:." lind Ptrat,.· 

,8 ccntr.oIo<I c.... .... GIII20r ~ 
17 ~CcIncre:t!c.... ... o......T"",~12 

" c...t.R_ 
Ie ~WI>.lYI>oe. ~ 
2D p.e C_G<ng • ....,,.,.. 

21 __ . Tn- l(P\ICBORlll. r 
:Q T-. $tool $ ... S_ 
:tl --,-2.4 

s.eeI __ G""""'i! 

:r5 --.z& P.C.C_-"5· 
'Z1 p.c.e_-.o.s".s_ 
:til _w.~. 
28 SIgnP_ T".. 
)0 ~1IIIsoc-..~e 

" SIooI_1I 
~2 .... Type .. 
)3 C8Id> ........ TpC ,. __ "bo~ 

:16 _"~"""_.r 

it ecwr.."' ..... ~CIIICII_ r-
'Z1 .. _ .,., I ..... l'ype I. Opan ..... 

I.: 
II....., 

eo..-".." Totals .•• 
CMw/U_ · · --

""'-'t ... . 

8. 

Unit ",M ....... 

C.Y. 2~ 
:.Y. 
C.Y. : C.Y. 
S.Y. M 

S.y. O.! 
S.Y. IIli 
S.Y. ': SoY. 
S.V. 21 

S.Y. U 

~ S.Y. 
S .Y. 
$.'(. ,;: S.y. 

fOOT III 
FOOT 111 
POOr : FOOT 
FOOT 5! 

t 

~ FOOT' 
FOOT 
fOOT ,: /'OOT 
$.F. 4IIIl 

5.Y. 480 
ss. '80 
S.f. oa 
S~. ~ 'lOtI 

E.t.CM , 
EACH , 
EACH • 
EACI-I I 
!ACI1 • 
EACH • 
EACH I 

-

EnsI-" 
~ 

lInll -«1.00 
CUlD 
16J1O 
!D.oo 
\2.00 

".110 
42.00 
42.DCI 
05.00 
31.00 -1.25 
10.00 
..00 
5.60 

5.00 
".00 
! .OO 

17.00 
12.00 

som 
u.oo 
l5.oo 
110.00 
z.oo 

uo 
UIO 

30.00 
2&.110 
2S.001 

8).00 

'.5OD.oo 
Z,QOO.GO 

lODAO 
7*».00 

7!iO.IIO 
3&).00 

- - -- ~ 

1IOD.OO 
350.CO 

~\ot 4 

PROJ!CT HO : H052 

'GO.' eoa., 
IlOO. 
1110. 
500.110' 

mI.IIO 
325.00 

rr.'_ 7'1, 

G&M ConIent ~Dn 
58 W. Canmoodol Road 
AddIoon, IL.IIOIO' 

8Id eoN! 

.... 

~ C<rnoIrudIooI 
600 S. CClUI1\Y line Road 
S.--.IL BOI06 
~1I1d 

JIJIJ 

N'(S, III .. 
T801 W. 0MIWDDd Orlvo 
Pal"" "art&. 11 .. _ 

1Nd_ 
Uhlt -

1 

«laD, 
25.00: 
2S.OD: 
,0.00'. 
\s.QI): 

i 
H.GO: 
ce.cD' 
48.001 

41l.C01 
3UID 

a2O().C)Oi 
H5.oo! 

11110.00[ 
I1I1O.c!I1 
301).001 

!;l.lUO.oo 



J A.6..U_LA.TJ_OlLQ..£..JUD_S. Pogo 2 01 4 

OWNER: CIIy 01 Berwyn PROJECT NO : \IO~2 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: ROQS~VOK Road T.I.F. Alley Improvemcn\$ 

............ .-- ... '16_. ,. U U .. I ,uu a,l~l. 

KlflIII PDlnt J. lIonlulll Concrm Robolrt II. Andnou & Sons G&)oII Clrn",,! CanotruclJon D'U>nd Construction MYB.ln"-
ElVIn .... no Co&.wII¥ Un. RDOd as'7 So. 61ItII Court 3YO, s.. &lm Ava""" 69 W. eo",", IIIdaI Road 800 S. Cou~ Un. RoIMI TlOl W. ~ OrIve 
EsIIm .. B._villi\, H_ B&101> CIDllm,ILI08IM CI __ ,IL 8W1D4 Addl-., L.1IIll11 Bo.,utrvill., L 611106 PaIoa Pori<, IL 5Il0l&4 

5% Bid BOnd St._Bid Band 5Of. Bid B_ lie. BId Bond S.,. Rid Bond n:. BId B ~d 
III:m Unit Un. lhIIt Ur>I\ Unit I .!!.~ I Unit 
No """"""'lion Un. Quant/tw Price Amount Prl<:. Amount PrIce Amount PrIce Amount Prl .. M>OUPt Atnolm1 Prlco Amount 
]$ Coo 90 ........... "",.., FJlCH 2 :100.00 \!OO.OC 100.00 IIl!l.IlCI 111l1.00 180.00 300-011 - ~'OOI ' .. ~: =0°1 '~:: 

GS.OO 130..0D 
» -- EACfl 3 100.00 JOO.OC 300.00 OOIU)( 76.00 l2S.oo 160.00 l:!O.oC 1:tO..OO lEO. Z!iO.IlO ,35.00 006.0! 
4U GudP_ EAC~ C soo.oo 2.OOO.<lC 400.00 '.600.110 500.00 z.ooo.oo 360.00 l.lOO.OC IIDD.OO U~ t!$O.oo lMlll.oo IIDO.OO 3.ZIID.O! ., 8'4'_W • ...mg Uh1i 10 ~lJI) $00.00 '00.00 I.OOQ.OD 'O.co 1110.00 '00.00 .~; o.o.! 0." 

'·'::1 
!IOO.Gil ' .Do IIl.(lji 

oil Tide ContiU III\d P""",*," I..S. 1 7.000.00 2.000.00 UIOO.OO 2.MIO.oo 1.000.00 1.000.00 1.000.00 1,000.00 I~: ~= 
2,000.00 2.000.CC 

Q _coPl<l .... ~ L-S. • 2.000.00 2.ooo.Do _00 I10O.OO •. ooa.oo 4JII)O.00 '.1l00.1I0 ::li I.ooa.oo 1.000. • .ooo.co 2.500.00 ~.600.co 

I 

i i 
I 

I 
i I 
I i 
I I 

I 

i 

1 

! 

1 I 
! ! : 

j i I . 
i I I 

I I 

I i . 
! 
t i i 

TotalO: na2UIIJ 
Hid Emir Coml1;tlOn", 

7U5a.IQ BUlI.oG Ii"....-... .. ---:ma:'a Ilea, .... 102..05.11( 

7.!SS.lIC 6 
Po __ ..... 

. " " ,. ' . _ .• , • • . -0 . "'. ' .. •• • ••• _. "".". ____ ••••••.• _ • . .... ., .. , .......... -., .. ,,, .. .. .................... .. ..... ,-~, ...... --. -. _- .. -....... - ........ ..... ,"' ."- -" .. _." -.... , ............ - - .-,-.".-" "" ,., .... - " .... ..... . ,' . 
''*'' - .. " "'", ... . -... - .. " .. .. " ._--... _-, .... .. .. .. .... , ... ... ... " ...... '-" .... , ... . . ---- -..... - ' ... " ......... ~ .,."' .,_ .......... . ... , ,. ,., . ... "-._" ... ,, ......... _. ' ~''''''-'' '' "" .. '. " ...... ... .......... ... .. .. .... -.... _._._._._._,_. __ .. . ... . , .. " . - ~. 117.~",IIj 

C.....-d '-0lIl111 •• , 13 .. _ ..... ,.110 I15,QIQ.O~ 101,,'0,'1 n,n.a..oo ,a2,'OUO 
Ofttf I UndW . • . . -1~.<T8.OC ~,1I7.00 .7,OCII~i 2~ '.*,.1ICi &.0;.00 

~rc.ntr. , . .'Q.1I4 -8._ _7-""1 <lU .75\1 



DI1o: &/2\121)\' 

OWNER: 

lAJ,l.lL~l!JIJl..F---B.lll~ 

aty of BefW)I\ 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Rooseve« Road n.F. Alley ImptOYoments 

,NG: 

118m 
~ Gao"" 
1 

-~" l 
_G_~ .... 

J T_-,c.....-
• ~e_ 
& ...... ....,/lanM1 

• ~-... -""'" s.y. 
7 P.c.~",,-p_r 5.Y. • P.c. CMcmo /tJIrt "-ononI. a- s ..... 
II PC Conano P_ r a.Y. 
1. _~,s.-ec..... J' 8:1'. 

11 P ___ ..... ~II'P." .c_ 

S.Y. i _ .... 7' _____ -

12 c~_ ... -..c.... s:r, 
,~ -.; 5.'1'. 
14 -.g. SjlodoI s.y. 
1£ 

T_r ___ .• , 
s.y. 

,s ~CuIl"'~_" FOOT 
17 ~ Concn!I CIdI """ OUII.-. T_II·~11 f OOl 
'Ie 

C>#1I_ 
fOOT 

19 eo-... CIA. T'/IIO a. ~ FOOT 
zo P.c. COnaeIo GonQo ~_ I'OOT 
l\ _ -. TlI'O 21PVC ~ 1S). '" FOOT 
n T-'S<a:I~s.."..., FOOl 
23 ~- O'OOT 
Z, 

___ GwoodnII 
fOOT 

Z5 -- 6.F, 

:!8 P.C. C<IntnIo _ S" ~. 
V P.c.~~S'.SpodoI 5.F. 
U 0eac:0I0I. _ ..... S., . 
It 6Igo P_ T\'PO 1 &oF. 
3G ~ - C<iotso. )'wo II 10N 

), 5l9>""'- EI<CI1 
:u __ Topo" 

<ACt1 
;u CIIcO>~ T"",C EACH 
:w -"' .. ~ EACH 
U Co._",,,-_tr EACII 

11 c..- .. E>Odoa c..a. -.". EACH 
37 r ...... ond uos. Typo I, Open Ud' <ilCH 

S~b,T"hl. : 
CIIm1etions: 

ConeeIed'Total& ' • • 
o-I~ .. . , -.. . . 

t:ngInee" 
~ 

1'-00 
'U!O 
~2AlO 

45.00 
:!6.OD 

gO.m 

1.2:5 
10.00 
6.IlO 
UIJ 

6.00 
18.(10 

S.oo 
IUD 
12.00 

541AlO 
UJI) 

3S.1IO I 
10,(1) ~ 
2.00i 

<.50 i 
e..ao l 

30.110; 
:!8.00 ! 
l6.00~ 

I 
10.00 

''-.00 
2,000,00 

il5IUlO 
~6Q.IIO 

750.00 
3I!IO.OD 

'5I5.al 
2,73O.llO 

:18_ 
I. I 25.C1D 

7OO.IlD 

....... OCI 

PROJEC'T NO : 

'TrIggI ConoInactIon 
p.o._~ 

_ CbicI9". IL iO'. 
5% Bid 

2D.DO 

So.OO 
!IIl.1IO 
1IQ.00 
10.00 

100.00 

1.11> 
150.00 
~ 

'oro 

s.oo 
ZUO 

5.00 
<5.IlO 

'ILOO 

5O.DO 
lIl.IlO 
'OJ» 
10»0 
UO 

SJIO 
,D-OO 
m.oo 
m.oo 
211.00 

50.00 
GOO.OO 
811P.CIO 
300.00 
500.00 

500.410 
3Z5.11C1 

eoo.oo' 
5OII.OD 
:/5O.CIO 

'1700.co 

--

Page 3 Of , 

11052 

LMd",,",C_ 
"." W. _ 9Inat 

H....a.v. L 10'142 
&ond 

56U 
3,056.D 

]8.270.0 
1.t78.0 

720.0 

,... 

~ 110 SehrDecl8r 
730&c._""", 
~. IL. 11007$ 
~8Id lIond 

1,1 
3 

-

,., "-"'p c..""re/8 
, toO Wt;gIII _ 

....... mtJurg. L 150183 
5'110 BId lion<! 

Unit 
PlIce ::1 

:II!.IlO 

:;;;1 

::1 
~.IlO1 

5.1lOi 

3$.001 
~.oo 

Un" 
Price Amou Amo"'" 



OWIIIEII: 
PROJECT oescRlPllON: 

BID OPENING! 

Item 

T..AB.IU-.AJ..lilJLOJ' _IHJll\ 

cay fA 8etw,tn 
~Road T.I.F.Alley Im~ 

_Al!I!!'ZO._10H tuD; )(La.m. 

2....-.. 
EdmIrte 

I lIodI 
No ~ Unit .... nt1Iy PrIce --:III au_ .. IM>i'<l)ooo:ocl EllQiI 3C!O.0II -39 -- £ACJi , 3 1- 3011.00 
4D 6:1"'_ ~! 4 5110.00 l.OCO.oo 

4' Su!oIf._~ UNI'r 11 - 600.00 
4Z T_.~IIIIIIP'- L.S. I l,@(lO 2.OD:I-OO 
43 -~ I.S, 1 1,0D0.OO l,OCO.DO 

! 
I 
I , 

j 
I 
! 

TDt ••• : n.oa.OI 
Bid e-rTO' CorrectJo ... : 

Conec:Dd Tota" - _. 
ONf/UPCSu. · -- -- .. 

"-4014 

PfWJ£CTNO: ~1~2 

TIIII8I COfIeIrIIC:()on lAndo"""" CorttrIdO .. p.o. BootZ3li 11918 W. loIIoin SlIM! 
Ph$! ChQgo. IL M1M Hunlley, L 61J1t2. 
6".\ !lid Bond 15Y.8Jd eond 

UnI! Unit - ..Amount ~ MIOullt 
\6G.GO :: ,00.00 200.\Jl 
75.00 = I.~~ 50).00 z,ooD.OC 

1 ,IX) 10.DI 
~O:: 503.011 

2,000.110 Z.GOO,OC 4.033.00 
&,aIO.GO 6,OCO.CIC 1.000.01 '.OO:l.IlO 

! 
I 
I 

i i 

I 

,OUGUId ~ 

\IG,AN.OO 1~! 

t,'JTAlC 11I,OD.! 
lCUIl! ~ 

8cI!roedor& s_ A. ..... pCon_ 
7_~Pwk ,_wl1ghtlllvd. 
_ie,Lt0e7. 5chaumbu'll,ll aolt3 

16% Bid Bond I5%SIoI_ 
UnIl = IJniI I Unb 

I _I!!1;.L """ounl Mount Pttoe , 
"""""" I'rtRl -:~~ 3C!O. lS:l.IlO 7IlO~ I = 1$0.(10 cso.tI: 

T5Q.OC ',[lOU ~,OOO,t.G 

2$.OC 3,:': 1.CI 1~ 
~,750.00 s~: 5.GOO.DI 
l"co.oo l, 1DO.CIII 6.GOO. uco.oo 

1 i I 
I 

i 

1 , , 
i
l 

I , 
\IUILIIO "11111,..0 

11..,'1..1. 1\1,,_-
u,'J1.oo lll.l3l.cc 

2$,_ .~ 



\te City of Berwyn Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

I~ 
A Century of Progress with Pride 

6'700 West 26'h Stroot Berwyn, rulnoie 60402-0701 Telephone: ('708) 788-2680 Fax: ('708) 788-26715 
www.berwyn-il.gov 

April 21, 2011 

Dear Mayor and 
Members of the City Council: 

Attached you will find the resolution that we wish to have approved for this year's Bond Cap 
allocation. We were notified by IHDA that they would not be interested in receiving this year's 
allocation. As a resul t, we are going to request the Bond Cap on behalf of the City of Berwyn 
with the anticipation of pooling our bond cap with other similar communities to offer to 
developers for the generation of projects that would be beneficial to all. 
Also attached are the guidelines and procedures as generated by the State of llIinois governing 
this activity. For this year our bond cap is set at $ 4,718,080.00. 

Thank you for your consideration in this matter. 

Very truly yours: 

Robert E Dwan, Director 
Community Development 



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF PRIVATE 

ACTIVITY BOND ALLOCATION 

WHEREAS, there exist within the borders of the City of 
Berwyn, Illinois (the "Municipallty'L a recognized need for decent, safe, 
Sanitary and well-constructed and maintained housing which persons of moderate income can 
afford; and 

WHEREAS, the Municipality is a home rule unit of local government 
Pursuant to Article VII of the Illinois Constitution of 1970 and as such a home 
rule unit, the Municipality receives an annual allocation of private activity bond 
volume cap (" VOLUME CAP") pursuant to Section 146 of the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended from time to time (liThe Code"); and 

WHEREAS, the city of Berwyn currently has projects In the planning stages, 
which projects may require the issuance of the Bonds, including but not limited to 
neighborhood revitalization and affordable housing programs for low and moderate Income 
households. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Berwyn City Council of the Municipality. That 
the City of Berwyn does hereby reserve unto itself its entire annual allocation of Volume Cap 
Allocation for issuance of private activity bonds to be used for neighborhood revitalization and 
affordable housing programs for low and moderate income households. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED as follows: 

(A) That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption;. 

(8) From and after the adoption of this resolution, the proper officials, agents 
and employees of the City are hereby authorized, empowered and directed 
to do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents as may be 
necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of this Resolution or to 
effectuate the purpose hereof. 

ROSERT J. LOVERO, MAYOR 

THOMAS J. PAVUK - CITY CLERK 



STATE OF ILLINOIS 

GUIDELINES AND PROCEDURES 

FOR THE 

ALLOCATION OF PRIVATE ACTMTY BONDING AUTHORITY 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TAX REFORM ACT OF 1986 

AND 30 ILCS 345 

OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR 

Effective January J, 2011 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1. Introduction ... 3 

2. Calendar Year 2011 State Ceiling and Allocations ... 4 

3. Home Rule ... 5 

4. Non-Home Rule ... 8 

5. State Agencies ... 11 

6. Reallocation Provisions ... 13 

7. Appendix A - Standard Fonn of Letters ... 14 

8. Appendix B - Annual Housing Report ... 19 

9. Appendix C - Population Estimates ... 21 

Questions regarding these guidelines and procedures may be directed to the Debt 
Management Unit of the Governor's Office of Management and Budget at (217) 782-
5886. 

2 



INTRODUCTION 

The Federal Tax Reform Act of 1986 (the "Code") as amended, imposes a limit on the aggregate 
amount of "tax exempt private activity" bonds (also know as "'Volume Cap") that can be issued 
by a state.. While the Code provides an allocation scheme for specific issuing authorities, it also 
provides that a state may, by law, provide a different fonnula for allocating the State ceiling 
among the govenunental units in the State having authority to issue such bonds. The State of 
lllinois ("the State") has adopted procedures for the allocation of Volume Cap pursuant to the 
lllinois Private Activity Bond Allocation Act, 30ILCS 345 (the "Illinois Allocation Act"). 

The Governor's Office is the entity charged with authority to allocate Vohune Cap among the 
political subdivisions within the State. In the event of conflict between the Code and Illinois 
Allocation Act and these "2011 Guidelines and Procedures" (the "Guidelines',), the Code and the 
Illinois allocation Act shall control. Any matters not covered by the Code or the Illinois 
Allocation Act or the Guidelines shall be decided by the Governor's Office, and the Governor's 
Office reserves the right to amend the Guidelines at any time. 

These Guidelines are provided by the Governor's Office to assist issuers in understanding how 
the allocation fonnula will be administered. They do not represent a binding legal interpretation 
of either the Code or the lllinois Allocation Act. The Governor's Office will not make a legal 
determination of the applicability of the Code to an issuer nor will it determine an issuer's 
compliance under the Code. Issuers should consult their own legal counsel to make these 
determinations . 

The Guidelines require certain issuers to submit requests to the Governor's Office for al1ocations 
of Volume cap. In addition., they require issuers within the State to report on reallocations and 
their use ofVolurne Cap. 

PLEASE NOTE - ALL REQUESTS AND REPORTING SUBMISSIONS, AS 
DESCRIBED HEREIN, MUST BE SUBMITfED IN BOTH (I) HARD AND (U) 
ELECTRONIC FORMATS (ADOBE ACROBAT "PDF,,} TO THE FOLLOWING 
ADDRESSES: . 

HARD COpy SUBMISSIONS TO: 
Governor's Office of Management and Budget 
Debt Management Unit - Volume Cap Submlsslon 
603 Stratton Building 
Springfield, IL 62706 

ELECTRONIC (PDF) SUBMISSIONS TO: 
OMB. VolumeCapRequesl2011@UllnoIs.gov 

PI_ indicate tile (0 lIalDt, (II) Itablt of your orpalz&tioll (Home RIle, No.-HolIUI Rule or Slue Age.cy) aad (Wl type of 
ubmltllo., (~tber II "REPORT" or a "REQUEST") III !be "SUBJECT" URe of fC*r lubmlflloa e-mail. PltIIt IIIcIade the 
rolla win, InforrnaUotl for II prillUU")' and JeCa-dary COIlt.ct perlo. In tbe body of udI electronic subllllulH (elllaUl: 

Name 
nde 
OeptrtrDnltIDlvtlloa 
I'tIoM Number 
Email addrHI 

IMPORTANT NOTE -TIle dllll! aDd d.alt stamp of tU emall wiD be uJtd ror tbe purpotR of determJalaClbe order III wbkb 
the lubntlllloDI an recelwd lale.1 oiMrw_ Doled herem. 

3 



Calendar Year 2011 State Ceiling and Allocations 

2011 State CeDing - Background and Calculation 

Section 146 of the Code limits the amount of qualified private activity bond debt that may be 
issued in a state during a calendar year ("the State Ceiling"). Section 146(d) of the Code was 
amended by H.R. 5662, the "Community Renewal Tax Relief Act of 2000 (the "CRTF Act")," to 
specify that beginning in calendar year 2002 the limit shall be the greater of $75 multiplied by a 
state's population or $225 million. The CRTF Act further specifies that beginning in calendar 
year 2003 the volume limit may be adjusted annually for inflation. Pursuant to Revenue 
Procedure 2008-66 published by the Internal Revenue Service, the volume limit on qualified 
private activity bonds adjusted for inflation for calendar year 2011 is $95 multiplied by the state's 
population. 

Section 146(;) of the Code further requires that the calculation of the State Ceiling be based on 
the most recent resident population estimate released by the U. S. Bureau of the Census before the 
beginning of the calendar year. On December 29, 2009, the Population Division of the U.S. 
Census Bureau issued "'Table I: Annual Estimates of the Population for the United States, 
Regions, States, and Puerto Rico: April 1, 2000 to July 1, 2009 (NST-EST2009-01)" which 
reports Illinois's estimated population as 12,910,409. 

Illinois 2011 State Ceiling is $1,226,488,856.00 ($95 x. 12,910,409). 

Allocations 

Pursuant to the Statute, the table below denotes the initial allocation of the 2011 State Ceiling. 

Home Rule Units $760,851,390.00 
Non-Home Rule Units 232,818,733.00 

State Agencies! Authorities 232,818,733 .00 
Total $1,226,488,856.00 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

4 



HOME RULE UNITS 

Allocation 

January 1 Benchmark 
As described in "2011 State Ceiling - Background and Calculation" above, each Home Rule 
conununity is allocated an amount equal to $95.00 multiplied by its population and Cook County, 
as a Home Rule county, is allocated an amount equal to $95.00 multiplied by the population of its 
unincorporated area. Based on the most recent US Census estimates the total amount for all 
Home-Rule units has been detennined to be $760,851,390.00. Appendix C attached identifies the 
list of Home Rule units and the population count used by the Governor's Office for the volume 
cap allocation. Special census estimates or other estimates for individual municipalities are not 
recognized by the Governor's Office. 

During the period from January 1, 2011 through May 1, 2011 Home Rule units may not apply to 
the State for an allocation under the Illinois Allocation Act Rather, Home Rule units must 
determine and monitor their own private activity bond limits as provided in the Illinois Allocation 
Act. Please see reporting requirements detailed below in "Home Rule Reporting". 

June 1 Benchmark 
Of the total amount available to each Home Rule unit of government with less than 2,000,000 
inhabitants, the amount that has not been granted, transferred., or reserved by Home Rule units for 
specific projects or purposes as of May 1,2011, shall be reserved to the Governor's Office on 
June 1, 2011 (the "home Rule Pool''). From the period of June 1 through July IS, 2011, one-half 
of the Home rule Pool will be available to all Home Rule units with less than 2,000,000 
inhabitants (the remaining half is available for allocation to the State or State Agencies as herein 
after described). 

The Governor's Office will accept Home Rule units' requests for volume cap from the Home 
Rule Pool beginning on the first State business day on or after June 1, 2011. Requests will be 
accepted, via the methods described on page 3, only on or after 8:30 a.m., June 1, 2011. No 
requests can or will be accepted prior to this date and time. On the first date that applications 
may be received all appUc:adon! received between 8:30am and 5pm on such date shall be 
deemed eqaally first in Une and the Governor's Office shaH grant cap as it may determine. 
If more than one request Is received In a day, other than the tint day that appUcations may 
be submItted, completed requests will be logged In by the time the electronic submission Is 
rttelved, and processed on a first-come, first-granted basis. 

If a detennination is made that there is a sufficient amount of allocation remaining in the Home 
Rule Pool upon a request made, an allocation approval letter will be sent to the applicant The 
approval letter will be mailed by first class U.S. Mail to the signator of the application letter 
Express mail will be used upon request and at the issuer's expense. The allocation is valid for a 
period of 60 calendar days from the date of the letter or December 21 of the year of the allocation. 
This period is set by Illinois Allocation Act and cannot be extended. 

July 15 Benchmark 
On and after July 15,2011, the amount of the unused allocation from the Home Rule Pool shall 
be available to both Home Rule units of government (with less than 2,000,000 inhabitants) and to 
State agencies. Requests submitted prior to July 15 that are not completely fulfilled must be re~ 
filed after July 15 if cap still is requested. 

5 



The Governor's Office will accept Home Rule units' requests for volume cap from the Home 
Rule pool beginning on the first State business day on or after July 15, 2011. Requests will be 
accepted, via the methods described on page 3, only on or after 8:30 a.m., July 15, 2011. No 
requests can or will be accepted prior to this date and time. On the first date that applications 
may be received all applications received between 8:30am and Spm on such date shall be 
deemed equally first In line and the Governor's Office shaH grant cap as it may determine. 
If more than one request is received In a day, other than the first day that applications may 
be submitted, completed requests will be logged in by the time the electronic: submission la 
received, and processed on a flrst...come, first-granted basis. 

Please Note -
• A completed "Allocation Request Letter" (Appendix A) and a copy of an "Official 

action", as defined In the Statute, nm.n accompany .II!! request submissions (June 1 
or July 15). A submusion will not be deemed complete unless a copy of Official 
action is included In the transmittal. 

• No Home Rule unIt may be gran ted more than 10-;. of the amount of total alloca don 
initially available for Home Rule units for a single project. Home Rule units may 
submit ~parate requests for multiple projed!. Requests must be for specific 
projects. not general use. Requests wUJ be processed only for allocation to be used 
directiy by the requesting Home Rule unit. Joint requests from more than one unit 
or requests from ODe unit for allocation that will also be used by other unIts of 
government will not be considered. Once an allocation is gjven to a specific unit, the 
Governor's Office will not object If units pool their allocations and Join together In a 
bond luue as advised by legal counsel. 

• The alloc:atlon approval letter to Home Rule units of government is valid for a 
period of60 calendar days from the date of the letter or through December 31, 2011, 
whichever date comes tint. If an Issuer's allocation has expired, It may apply for a 
new allocation if allocation Is still available. Such application wlll be processed by 
the Governor's Office In the same manner as any other new application. 

• The State, a State agency or Home Rule unit may reallocate all or a portion of its 
ORIGINAL allocation to a Home Rule Unit, the State, a State agency or a Non 
Home Rule Unit of local government. Rome Rule unlt8 may reallocate by official 
action of theIr governing body only as to volume cap reserved prior to May 1, 2011. 
Home Rule units MAY NOT reallocate any allocation granted by the Governor's 
Omce after June 1. Ple~!ee "REALLOCATION PROVISIONS" for further 
detalls. 

6 



Home Role Reporting 

Confirmation of IsslIance 
Pursuant to Section 7 of the Illinois Allocation Act, any Home Rule unit utilizing Volume Cap 
(regardless of its source) is required to report, within 10 calendar days of issuance, the following: 

(a) Name of the Issuer; 
(b) Principal amount of the issue; 
(c) Purpose for which the private activity bonds were issued; 
(d) The amount, if any, used to refund any prior issue of private activity bond; and 
(e) IRS 8038 

A form of the "Confirmation of Bond Issuance"letter is provided in Appendix A 

If the amount of bonds issued as stated in the confinnation letter is less than the amount approved 
for allocation for that project, the amount of unused allocation shall be added to the remaining 
pool allocation available. This "lapsed" volume cap will be offered first to all issuers who have 
requested volume cap whose requests were not completely fulfilled. in the order that such 
requests were initially filed. If more than one request was initially filed at the same time, the 
order of filing will be randomly assigned for purposes of offering lapsed cap. Volume cap is not 
considered lapsed unless the issuer or issuer's representative states in writing that all or a portion 
of the cap will not be used. 

Mid- Year Reporting 
No later than May 10, 2011, each Home Rule unit with less than 2,000,000 inhabitants must 
report to the Governor's Office in writing on volume cap (i) granted, (ii) transferred, or (iii) 
reserved by official action of the unit's governing body prior to May I, 2011 . The form described 
in Appendix A is provided for this purpose - "Report of Allocation Granted by Home Rule". 

Once Volume Cap is properly reserved by a Home Rule unit prior to May 1, 2011, the 
Governor's Office will not object to the subsequent transfer or reallocation of such cap, or filing 
of a carry-forward of such volume cap, and no notice to the Governor's Office of any such 
subsequent action is required. {Please note, however, that Home Rule units must provide notice 
to the Governor's office, as provided in Section 6 of the U1inois Allocation Act, within fourteen 
days of said reallocation.} 

Please Note - Copies of "Official Action". as defined in the Illinois Allocation Act, mult 
accompany this reporting submission. Submlsdon will not be deemed complete unless a 
copy ofOftic:lal Action Is Inc:luded with the submissions. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEIT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

7 



NON-HOME RULE UNITS 

Allocation Requests 

January 1 Benchmark 
The 2011 al1ocation of Volume Cap available on or after January 1,2011 to be issued by Non
Home Rule units of local government is expected to be $232,818,733.00. Non-Home Rule units 
are defined as municipalities or counties, other than Home-Rule units. All other fonns of 
goverrunent. such as local water districts or airport authorities. must apply for Volume Cap as a 
State Agency. 

The Governor's Office will accept Non-Home Rule units' requests for Volume Cap from the 
Local Government Pool beginning on the first State business day on or after January I, 2011 
(January 2, 2011). Requests will be accepted, via the methods described on page 3, only on or 
after 8:30 am., January 2, 2011. No requests can or will be accepted prior to this date and time. 
On the first date that applications may be received all applications received between 8:30am 
and 5pm on sucb date shall be deemed equally nest in line and the Governor's Office shall 
grant cap as It may determIne. If more than one request is received In a day, other than the 
tint day that appUcations may be submitted, completed requests will be logged In by the 
time tbe electronJc submission received, and processed on a 6rst~ome, first-granted basis. 

If a detennination is made that there is a sufficient amount of allocation remaining in the total 
available allocation, an allocation approval letter will be sent to the applicant The approval letter 
will be mailed by first class U.S. Mail to the signator of the application letter. Express mail may 
be used upon request and at the issuer's expense. 

July 15 Benchmark 
Of the total amount allocated to Non-Home Rule units, the amount of remaining allocation as of 
July 14,2011 (the "Non-Home Rule Pool') shall be reserved to the Governor's Office on July 15, 
2011 to be allocated to the State, State agencies or Non-Home Rule units as described in the 
Illinois Allocation Act. Requests submitted prior to July 15 that are not completely fulfilled must 
be re-filed on or after July 15 if volume cap is still requested. 

The Governor'S Office will accept Non-Home Rule units' requests for Volume Cap from the 
Non-Home Rule Pool beginning on the ftrst State business day on or after July IS, 2011. 
Requests will be accepted, via the methods described on page 3, only on or after 8:30 a.m., July 
15,2011. No requests can or will be accepted prior to this date and time. On the first date that 
appHcations may be ruelved aU appHcatioDs received between 8!30am and 5pm on such 
date sball be deemed equally first in Hne and the Governor's Office shall grant cap all it may 
determine. If more than one request Is received in a day, other than the fint day that 
applications may be submJtted, completed requests will be logged in by the time the 
electronic submIssion Is received, and processed on a first-come, fIrst-granted basis. 

Please Note-
• A completed "Allocation Request Letter" (AppendIx A) and a copy of an "Official 

Action", as defined In the lllinois Allocation Act, .m!:!Jt accompany ill request 
submissions (January 1 or July IS). A submission will not be deemed complete 
unless a copy of Official Action is Included In the transmittal. 

• No Non-Home Rule unit may be granted more than 10% of the amount of total 
allocation inJtially available to units of local government for a single proJut Non
Bome Rule unJts may submit separate requests for multiple projects. Requests 
must be for specific projects, not general use. Non-Home Rule units do not have 

8 



power under statute to transfer or reaIloute cap to other Non-Home Rule or Home
Rule unit!!. Request.. may be made only for cap tbat will be used within the Non
Home Rule unit's jurisdiction, as evidenced by such documentation or evidence as 
the Governor's Office shall request. Letters of Intent from lenders shall be deemed 
prima faele evidence. Units planning to pool their allocations must certify tbeir 
Intent to comply with this section In their request letter. 

• The allocation approval letter Is valid for a period of 60 calendar days from the date 
of the letter. This period Is set by the Wnols Allocation Act and cannot be extended. 

• Pursuant to Section 6 of llllnois Allocation Act, a Non-Home Rule unit IS NOT 
AUTHORIZED TO REALLOCATE all or any unused portion of its allocation. 
Direct and indirect reallocations by Non-Home Rule Units aTe strictly prohibited. 
This prohibition is discussed more fully in the "Reallocation Provisions" of these 
Guidelines. 

• The proceeds from bonds utilizing Volume Cap allocated to a Non-Home Rule unit 
pursuant to these Guidelines must be used within the jurisdiction of the Non-Home Rule 
unit 

(REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANKJ 

9 



Non-Home Rule Reporting 

Confirmation of Issuance 
Pursuant to Section 7 of the Illinois Allocation Act, Non-Home Rule units are required to report. 
within 10 calendar days of issuance, the following: 

(a) Name of the Issuer; 
(b) Principal amount of the issue; 
(c) Purpose for which the private activity bonds were issued; 
(d) The amount, if any, used to refund any prior issue of private activity bond; and 
(e) IRS 8038 

A form of the "Confinnation of Bond Issuance" letter is provided in Appendix A. 

If the amount of bonds issued as stated in the confirmation letter is less than the amount approved 
for allocation for that project, the amount of unused allocation shall be added to the remaining 
pool allocation available. This "lapsed" volume cap will be offered first to all issuers who have 
requested volume cap whose requests were not completely fulfilled, in the order that such 
requests were initially filed. [f more than one request was initially filed at the same time, the 
order of filing will be randomly assigned for PWJloses of offering lapsed cap. Volume cap is not 
considered lapsed unless the issuer or issuer's representative states in writing that all or a portion 
of the cap will not be used. 

Annual Reporting of Housing Projects 
The Illinois Allocation Act requires Non-Home Rule units to provide an annual report of all 
private activity bonds issued for any housing purposes which utilizes volume cap allocated by the 
State. Details on the reporting requirement can be located in the Section 7.5 of the Ulinois 
Allocation Act. A form to aid reporting has been provided in Appendix B to these Guidelines. 
Calendar Year 2011 submissions are to be sent via the instructions set forth on page 3 of these 
Guidelines by February 1,2011. An additional copy of this report only must also be submitted to 
the Illinois Housing Development Authority ("IHOA', at the following address: 

Illinois Housing Development Authority 
Attention: General Counsel 
401 North Michigan Avenue 
Chicago, IL 60611 

Please Note - Excel version of this form is available for download on our webpage 
(http://www.state.il.uslbudgetl) for your convenience. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANKI 

10 



STATE AGENCIES 

Allocation Requests 

For calendar year 2011 there is expected to be $232,818,733.00 for use by State Agencies, (the 
"State Agency Pool"), deftned as any State agency, commission, board, authority, or body politic 
and corporate of the State authorized by law to issue Private Activity Bonds, other than a Non
Home Rule or Home-Rule unit 

The Governor's Office may allocate among all State agencies from the State Allocation Pool 
available after January 1, 2011 (January 2, 2011). In addition, State agencies may apply 
beginning on or after the first State business day after June 1,2011 for the allocation retained by 
the Governor's Office from the Home-Rule Pool and beginning on or on July 15, 2011 for the 
allocation retained, if any, from the Non-Home Rule Pool. Requests submitted prior to June 1 
which are not completely fulfilled and requests submitted prior to July 15 which are not 
completely fulfilled must be re-filed after July 15 if cap from the Non-Home Rule pool is 
requested. Please see "HOME RULE" and "NON-HOME RULE" sections for submission 
procedures. 

Please Note-
• Requests will be processed only for allocation to be used directly by the requesting 

State agency. Requests may be requested and granted on a lump-sum by private 
activity bond category or individual project basis as the Governor's Office may 
determine. Joint requests from more than one State agency or units of government 
or requests from one State agency for an allocation that will be used by other units 
of government will not be considered. Once an allocation Is given to a specific State 
agency, the Governor's Office will not object If units pool their allocations and Join 
together In a bond Issue as advised by legal counsel 

• State agencies may submit requests for allocations of any amount The 10°/. Umlt 
does not apply to State Agencies 

• The Governor's Office may consult with State agencies prior to submission of their 
allocation requests and determine the amount of allocation that shall be requested 
and approved. The allocation shall be vaUd through the end of the calendar year. 

• State agencies may reallocate their unused allocation In the maDDer described In 
"REALLOCATION PROVISIONS" with the approval of the Governor's Office. A 
State agency that Issues bonds after receiving a reallocation from a Home-Rule unlt 
or another State agency shall submIt the Information described in the "Reporting" 
section below. 

• State agendes also may me a carry-forward of an allocation remaining at the end of 
one calendar year to the next under certain circumstances, with the approval of the 
Governor's Offtce. hsuers should consult their legal counsel with respect to the 
appllcabWty oftbis provision to their circumstances 

11 



State Agency Reporting 

Confirmation of Issuance 
Pursuant to Section 7 of the Illinois Allocation Act. State Agencies are required to report, within 
10 calendar days of issuance, the following: 

(a) Name of the Issuer; 
(b) Principal amount of the issue; 
(c) Purpose for which the private activity bonds were issued; 
(d) The amount, if any, used to refund any prior issue of private activity bond; and 
(e) IRS 8038 

A form of the "Confirmation of Bond Issuance" letter is provided in Appendix A 

If the amount of tbe bonds issued as stated in the confirmation letter is less than the amount 
approved for allocation for that project, the unused allocation amount shall be retained by the 
State Agency unless otherwise directed by the Governor's Office. 

Annllal Reporting of HOI/sing Projects 
Pursuant to the Illinois Allocation Act, State Agencies are required to provide an annual report of 
all private activity bonds issued for any housing pwposes which utilizes volume cap allocated by 
the State. Details on the reporting requirement can be located in Section 7.5 of the Illinois 
allocation Act and a fonn has been provided in Appendix B for submission. Calendar Year 2011 
Submissions are to be sent via the instruction set forth on page 3 of these guidelines by February 
1,2011. An additional copy of this report only must also be submitted to the Illinois Housing 
Development Authority ("IHDA") at the following address: 

Illinois Housing Development Authority 
Attention: General Counsel 
401 North Michigan Avenue 
Chicago, IL 60611 

Please Note - Excel version of this fonn is available for download on our webpage 
(http://www.state.i1.us/budget/) for your convenience. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK) 

12 



REALLOCATION PROVISIONS 

Reallocations by the State, a State Agency or a Home Rule Unit 

Tbe State, any State Agency or Home Rule unit may voluntarily reallocate to any Non-Home 
Rule unit of local govenunent, Home-Rule unit, the State or any State agency all or any portion 
of its unused allocation. {The State Agency or Home Rule unit reallocating all or a portion of its 
unused allocation must provide notice to the Governor's office within fourteen days of said 
reallocation. } 

Consistent with the Illinois Allocation Act and these guidelines, entities that issue private activity 
bonds on the basis of reallocations must submit to the Governor's Office written evidence of such 
reallocation and a confirmation of bond issuance letter within ten calendar days from the date the 
bonds are issued.. 

Reallocations by a Non-Home Rule Unit Are Prohibited 

Non-Home Rule units may not reallocate to any issuer. This prohibition applies to direct 
reallocations and to reallocations attempted via an intergovenunental or other agreement. 
Allocations made to Non-Home Rule units pursuant to the Illinois Allocation Act and these 
Guidelines may not be used in an issuance by another governmental entity on behalf of the Non
Home Rule unit or as a surrogate for the Non-Home Rule unit via an intergovernmental or other 
agreement. 

(REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

IJ 



APPENDIX A 

STANDARD FORM OF LETTERS 

14 



Office of the Governor 

(Letterhead of Signator) 

ALLOCATION REQUEST LETTER 
FROM ALL ISSUERS 

(Date) 

Governor's Office of Management and Budget 
603 Stratton Building 
Springfield, Illinois 62706 

ATTENTION: Debt Management Unit 

RE: I~uer. ~ ____ ~ ______ ~ ________ ~ ______ ~ 

Type: (Home-Rule, Non-Home Rule or State agency) 
Maximum Principal Amount: _~~~ __ -:-____ ~ __ 
Bond Description: (project, beneficiary, location, type/category of bonds) 

Dear Governor QuiIUl: 

In accordance with the Tax Refonn Act of 1986 as passed by 99th Congress 2nd Session 
(1986), as amended, and 30 ILCS 345, the (name of issuer) respectfully requests an allocation for 
the above-<=aptioned. private activity bonds. In preparation for this bond issue to date, all 
applicable Federal and State requirements have been complied with. A copy of the inducement 
resolution or sintilar official action for this issue bas been attached herewith. 

[(1be following is required only of Non-Home Rule units which expect to join other units 
in a single bond issue as described. in the guidelines): I hereby certify that (name of issuer) 
intends to comply with requirements set forth in the Governor's Office guidelines and will not 
transfer or reallocate any cap received from the Govemots Office to other Non-Home Rule or 
Home-Rule units and will use the cap only within our jurisdiction.) 

I hereby certify under penalty of perjury, that to the best of my knowledge, the issuance 
of the Private Activity Bond was or will not be made in consideration of any bribe, gift, gratuity 
or direct or indirect contribution to any political campaign. 

Please forward the allocation approval letter to the undersigned. [or to: J. 
Bond counsel for these bonds [is expected to be , who may be reached at [phone 
number]] {bas not yet been selected]. 

Sincerely, 

(name of issuer) 

(signature of authorized public official) 
(title) 
(phone number) 

[Note: The Bond description cannot be materially changed. after submission.] 

15 



(Governor's Letterhead) 

BOND ALLOCATION APPROVAL LElTER 
(Date) 

Allocation Number (our assigned number) 

(name of issuer) 

Attention; (Name of Official) 

Re: Issuer: 
Type: (Home-Rule, Non-Horne Rule or State agency) 
Maximum Principal Amount: 
Bond Description: (project, beneficiary, location, typeIcategory of bonds) 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

In accordance with the Tax Reform Act of 1986, as amended, and 30 ILCS 345, the 
above-captioned Issuer has requested an allocation for Private Activity Bonds with respect to the 
above-captioned bonds. In support of this request, I have been presented with the resolution duly 
adopted by the Issuer or similar official action with respect to the above-captioned bonds. 

I hereby allocate $ ____ of the State's 2011 maximum limit on private activity bonds 
to the above-captioned Issuer. 

PW'Suant to Section 6 of the Illinois Private Activity Bond Allocation Act~ this allocation 
is only valid if: 

(1) the proceeds from the bonds (the "Bonds") utilizing the bond volume cap are to 
originate single family mortgages to finance the purchase of homes located within the 
jurisdiction of the unit local government applying for the bond volume cap, or the 
costs associated therewith, or, if not so used, applied to redeem the Bonds; and 

(2) the unit of local government is the Issuer of the Bonds. 

"Issuer" as used herein is the entity named on the Bonds and obligated for the repayment of 
the Bonds and does not include an entity for whom bonds have been issued by another party 
via an intergovernmental or other agreement. 

This allocation is valid through and including . If the above-
captioned bonds have not been issued ,by said date this allocation automatically expires and is 
available for reallocation. 

Sincerely, 
PAT QUINN 

Governor 

16 



(Letterhead of Signator) 

CONFIRMATION OF BOND ISSUANCE 
TO BE PROVIDED BY ISSUER 

(Date) [Within 10 calendar days of issuance] 

Allocation Number: (assigned by us in the allocation approval letter) 

Office of the Governor 
Governor's Office of Management and Budget 
603 Stratton Building 
Springfield, Illinois 62706 

ATIENTION: Debt Management Unit 

Re: Issuer: -------------------------------------Type: (non Home-Rule, Home-Rule or State agency) 
Date of Issuance: ------------------------------Principal Amount Issued: ______________________ _ 
Bond Description: (project, beneficiary, location, type/category of bonds) 

Dear ____ __ 

In accordance with the Tax Reform Act of 1986, as amended, and 30 ILCS 345, 
the above-captioned Issuer is giving notice that the above-captioned private activity 
bonds have been issued With regard to the issuance of these bonds, all applicable 
federal and state requirements have been complied with. The total allocation provided 
for this bond issue in the Allocation Approval Letter dated was 
$ . The total principal amount actually issued was 
$ and, therefore, the amount of $ ______ _ 
is unused allocation that may be added to the total available allocation. 

Sincerely. 

(name of issuer) 

(signature of authorized public official) 
(title) 

Attachments 

[Note: If the bonds were issued on the basis of a voluntary reallocation of unused 
allocation or as a result of a carry-forward of allocation from a prior year, this fact 
should he so stated in this confirmation letter and a copy of the written evidence 
of such reallocation or carry-forward should be attached.] 

17 



(Letterhead of Signator) 

REPORT OF ALLOCA nON GRANTED 
BY HOME-RULE UNITS 

(Date) [Due Thursday, May 10,2011] 

Office of the Governor 
Governor's Office of Management and Budget 
603 Stratton Building 
Springfield, Illinois 62706 

ATTENTION: Debt Management Unit 

Re: Issuer: (Home·Rule unit) 
Total 2011 Volume Cap Allocation: [see list attached to guidelines for 
PQPulation. multiplied by $95.00] 

Volume Cap allocations granted. transferred, or reserved by Issuer resolution 
prior to May I, 2011: 

1. Principal Amount 0 f Issue: 
Bond Description: (Type of bond) 
(Repeat as necessary identify all specific allocations) 
If reallocated to another issuer. state name of issuer: _________ _ 

Copies of allocation resolutions or ordinances are attached. [Note: 
Memorandums of agreements with businesses need not be attached.] 

Total Allocation Granted or Reallocated $ ___________ _ 

Sincerely, 

(name of issuer) 

(signature of authorized public official) 
(title) 
(phone number) 

18 



APPENDIXB 

ANNUAL HOUSING REPORT 

SAMPLE FORM 

(Excel venion available for download on GOMB website - bttp:llmnutate.U.ullbndget/) 

19 



Bond lau ... Annual Rtportlnll Form 

::il8naory KBqUlr1lrneIlI (JO ILQ; a4:!r,'.a) ( 1/1&81'1 "DCl'lIrea ImorrnBlIOO 

Infonnatlon RII01J Irlld for All Bond 1_ 
IBond I1iauer I:/III't (SlUing BOfocIS: 
P8J80n comOlalino Rem LIJ1IIIIIr Name: 
Orafter Conlad Informatloo ComP.nv: 

Addre .. 
ACICIIlI88. 

CIv, Siale zw. 
Pholle: 

E-fIIBi Addn!aa: 
IRlHlIIrtlna Period calen!l8r Va«: 
Dale 01 Flepar1 UlI1It. (no lesa man 40 a~ 

prlor 10 erIC! 01 RepartI~ 
Pertod~ 

800d Procood8 Uaed for ProIec:Ia end P IIt1l8I1iage 01 Tot1I 
lLuIRII ~ IRIIUAIIM: 
T olal Cost of IsllU8l1C8 Amount: 

Bond Proceedl Used 10 Refund PIlot 
IBondi 

Amoont 

UnuMld Pr00Q008 at TIme of ReDOll Amount 
Plan lot Use of Ally Unused Proe.eda Alladl NIlfTB/Ive and Supf)(T/Ing Oawmenlallon ShowInQ 

Comm.fmetJO 10 Ulllze Proc.etU, /ncIrJdIng ~eIH far 
use. 

[For Multlfamlly Rental Unlill OnN 
Total NUiIllbtw or OeveIoomanta Total: 
Tole N'tmh .... <>f linn. ToIa!: 
l.-.:orne l.eIIeIa ler All UntJ (using AreI! NO. unns at ";IU'lII AMI 01 

IMlwllan I"""", ... ot "AMn leu: 
ND, Unlbl 14(1% AUI' 
No. Unlbl IW%AMI 

NO 1E: The ~ (J/ ClJJT8IIJ AMI figures NIl. Unfta 60% AMI 

10 be used In «Jmpl/lng /his lnIormBtion NII. lJnH& I8G%AMI: 

msy be found et No. of Oiher RetIrlctec 
[llfIn'I'--/~ lA""" Unlit %AMIl' 

(HBIdI 'I~ Um[q? 01 by calling No. 01 Otllat RnIrICI8c 
UnHei % AMII' 

/he II/tIoi3 Hou4ing ~ No. 01 01her R I!Sb1Qe( 
jAuthorlty s/ J 12-838-6200. Unlbl / % AMII 

UI'rMIrIctad (Mar1teI Rate) 

Annual Comprehenelva HOtI8In\I Plan Attach doIs/llhtNilng /he nlm'lbfr unlla IlIfViIIg lhe pricrlIy 
PrIoriIIea (_ below fer priority key) popuIs/ton. det;t;rlbed btIbt. &Iortg with dowm&nlatlon 

~ eHot1, to _ Prlotfty I'cJpu/stJcJm. IOtIan 

aWJllu.. 
[For Sinai. FamilY Unllll Only 
Loans and ,..,Ith~hI~. Nu_of~E 

Loans' 
Numbetof 

Loan AmounII. AdlJa! and EIfectIve AtllICh LW 01 IttdMduall..oIHJ Amounts. d61aIIng lhe IICbI8I 
I~Ralee and eIfeetJvs 1nI8te&t fIIIe far each IoBn. 
Annual Co"1lrehBll8lYtl HOI.IIIIng Plen AttllCh delell shawIng lIIe number unilS .....,u,g the priority 
PrIorItIes (Me below lor priorty l<ey) popuI8I1on8 ~ baloN, eIotJg willi dol;.u".n/lrilon 

sJrawIng tIIfo1. 10 _ Prlot1ty Popllltrt/olul, when 
eveReble. 

Flrsl-tlme HomabuVAl'll Humber: 
Homeownarahlp Cotmseilng No. or lI8eI8IIIC: 

IIorneowneR who recelvec 
any homeownerehl 

oouneeIl~ 

K..., to Prlorltln 
Di$al:Jled • No. Un113 Serving P80jlIe wtlh Oisebllllae (a. dellned In Ihe IlImM Co"1ll1lheoailre 
Houslrrg Plan. found at ~ IbIII B choOlNl "Houslng Paley and Plunnlng' In theiaft marvin) 
ElIIremaly Low Income • No. U .... SerWIg Very lDw-lncome (Ie8& !han 30'lI0 AMI) Hou&ehc1d8 and 
F,naee 

Homeless • No. UnllB SeMng HomeIes, People and Fa ..... and Those AI-Risk or Homele&anasa 

LIYe Neer WOtI< - No. UnHe SeMng Low and Mod8l8liHnc:ome Fe rrjllla and PeoPe Unable 10 Find 
Affordable Hou.lng Near Employment 01 TllIIl8pcJts1lon 

PreIer.Ialion - No. or Units for Low-Income Famllal and People LIving In El<IsIIng AlfortIaIlIe Housing 
lhat 18 In Daoger of 8eeooq Unaffordeble 

'Very Low Incomll - No. Unit. Servk1g V&:,/l..Qw.IllCOfIIe (3110 50% AMI) Households and F_lllee 

QUESTlONS?7777 

Any questions on how 10 ~ tH8 farm should be directed to cneOOll8 FlIckinger lithe .noIa 
~OI.Islng OevaIopmem Authorlty al 312-836-6200 or TTl) 312-838~222. 

20 



APPENDIXC 

POPULATION ESTIMATES 

21 



Hot!:!! Byll !.lilli' PODyiatlon2 
Home Bul. Unit' PogYlml2~ 

Addison Villose 36,918 Des PlaIne:! City 56,810 

Alsip Village 18..580 Dolton Village 23,758 

Alton City 29,264 DOWlICl'1 Grove Village 49,143 

Arl inston Hei ghu Vi Iloge 73,153 Du Quol" City 6,303 

AI/rora City 172,950 East Dunckc Village 3,149 
EQI HazcI Crest 

Bannockburn Villaae 1,886 Village 1,527 

BnningtOn Hills Villaae 4,375 East SL Loui3 City 28,753 

BIlnlcu V Illilge 42,770 Edwardsvine City 24,475 

Banonville Vilinge 6,217 Elain City 107,519 
Elk Grove ViUuae 

Batavia 27,700 Vii. 33,124 

Bedford Park ViUa~ 530 EI mbursl City 46,314 

Bclh:vi lie Ci ty 41,285 Elmwood Park VillaiC 23,926 

Bellwood Villaae 18,853 Elwood Vii. 2.357 
Benton Cily 6,910 E vl\l\Slon Ci ty 77,857 

Berl<cley Vi llaae 4,885 Evetgrcctl Park Vi IIqe 19,237 

BCfW)'Tl City 49,664 Fairview Heii/lts City 16,706 

Bloomingdale Villap 21,858 Rora City 4,680 

Bloomlni\on City 74,184 Fo~ View Villaae 713 

Bolinibrook V iIIuse 70.881 Freeport City 24,699 

Sridaeview Village 15.006 Galesburg City 31,006 
Glendale H eiihls 

Bryanl ViUaae 242 Villaga 31,877 

BuiTalo Grove Village 42.852 Glen Ellyn Village 27,236 

Burbank City 27,467 Glenview VlIlJlgc 46.207 

Burnham Village 3,954 Glenwood Village 8,453 

Cahokia VIlIllF 15,103 GolfVillagc 442 

Calumet Cily City 36,619 Granitc City City 30,695 

Calwnet Park Village 7,953 Gurnee Villaic 30,571 

Carbon Cliff Village 1.646 Honover Park Village 36,703 

ClUbondaIe City 26,235 HarveyClly 27,946 
Harwood Heiahls 

Carlock Village 503 ViUlI8c 8,009 

Cam I SIreDm Village 40.041 Hazel Crest Village 13,996 

CaJpenlCfSvi!le Vill_ae 38,020 HemnCIty 12,450 

5,518 Hiibland Park City 31,516 

80,286 Highwood City 5,382 

14,048 Hillside Village 8,265 

2,851,268 Hodgkins Vi I Iage 2,040 
Ho Ifrnlll Estates 

Chicago Heiihts City 30,412 VillaiC ~3,655 

Chicaao Ridge VillAge 13,310 Horner Glen VillAae 26, ISO 

Christopher City 2,798 HopIcinJ Parlt. Vi llage 847 

Cicero Town 80,100 Invaness Village 7,649 

CollinsviUc City 26,016 Jackson vi lie City 19,214 
Cook County, Unincorp 97,713 Joliet City 147,648 

Country Club Hills City 16,605 Kankakee City 26,840 

Countryside City 5,785 We Benin8lon Vii Jaae 4,973 

Crainville Village 1,362 Lake BlutTVillagc 6,123 

Crystal Lake City 42,180 lake f orcst City 20,991 
lake 10 the Hills 

Danville City 32,467 Village 29,704 

Darien City 22,389 Lanting Village 26,524 

[)ecanuCity 76.199 1...aSaIle City 9,497 

Deerfield Village 19,636 Lincolmhire VilLagc 7,956 

OeKalbCity 45,734 Lincolnwood Villaae 11,742 

DePue I,ns Manhattan Villaae 7,345 

22 



23 



K. Consent Agenda 



The City of Berwyn Nona N. Chapman 
1 at Ward Alderman 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26 'h Street Berwyn, lllinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 749-8401 Fax: (708) 7~2675 

www .berwyn-il.gov 

April 21 ,2011 

Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
Members of the City Council 
City of Berwyn 

SUBJECT: Payroll April 13. 2011 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

The current payroll has been prepared for review by the finance department and is ready for approval at 
the April 26. 2011 meeting. 

Payroll: April 13. 2011 in the amount of $1,000,010.58. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Nona N. Chapman 
Budget Committee Chairman 



Ife l.i of Berwyn Nona N. Chapman 
1st Ward Alderman 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26th Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 749-6401 Fax: (708) 788-2675 

www.berwyn-il.gov 

April 21 t 2011 

Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
Members of the City Council 
City of Berwyn 

SUBJECT: PayablesApril26, 2011 meeting 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

The current payables were prepared for review by the finance department and are ready for approval at 
the April 26, 2011 meeting. 

Total Payables: April 26, 2011 in the amount of $407.737.75. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Nona N. Chapman 
Budget Committee Chairman 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 4/2212010 - To Payment Date: 4127/2011 

Number Date Status Void Reason ReconclJedI Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Difference 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

01 • General Cash 
~ 
1\972 04/1312011 Open Accounts Payable NicorGas $3,553.32 

11973 041\312011 Open Accounts Payable Abraham Uncoln Presiclenlial librai)' $103.24 

11974 0411312011 Open Aocounts Payable Aflac Corporation $139.88 

11975 041131201 \ Open Accounts Payable AmAuclit $866.39 

11976 04/13/2011 Open Accounts Payable JNC CONSUL TING. INC $\,553.04 

1\977 04/1312011 Open Accounts Payable R.D.V. ELECTRIC INC. $150.00 

11978 041\312011 Open Accounts Payable KATHLEEN BEHRENDT $59.00 

11979 04/1312011 Open Accounts Payable MEADE ELECTRIC COMPANY, INC. $478.77 

11980 04/141201\ Open Accounts Payable Secretary of Stale $120.00 

1198\ 04/14/2011 Open Accounts Payable Secretary of Slale $120.00 

11982 04/1412011 Open Accounts Payable Secrelary of Slate $120.00 
11984 04/1512011 Open Accounts Payable MARTIN·AIRE HEATING & COOLING $8,342.50 

INC. 
11985 04/181201 \ Open Accounts Payable Robert J. Lovero $204 .35 

11966 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable 19th Street Condo Association $120.00 
11967 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable 1st Source Amerlce $546.B3 

11988 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable AAA Masonary & TuckpoinUng Co. 524,363.00 
11989 04/27/2011 Open Accounts Payable ABC Automotive Electronics $294.99 

11990 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable ABC Commercial Maintenance $5,253.00 
SeNices, Inc. 

11991 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable ADT Security Services $54.00 

11992 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable Air One Equipment, Inc. $135.00 

11993 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable Airgas North Central $94.62 

1\994 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable AI Warren 011 Company $53,246.62 

11995 04/27/2011 Open Accounts Payable Alcan HeaUng & Cooling $7,590.00 

11996 04/27/2011 Open Accounts Payable An American Elderior Solutions $450.00 
11997 04/27/2011 Open Accounts Payable Anied Asphalt $599.25 

11998 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable Ancel, Glink, Diamond. Bush, Dicianni $5,782.41 
& Krefthefer 

11999 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable Aqua ChiD of Chicago fI 22 5180.00 
12000 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable AT&T $2,669.64 
12001 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable AT& T $226.00 
12002 04/2712011 Open Accounts Payable AT & T Internet Services 5947.00 
12003 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable AuclloGo $100.01 
12004 04/27/2011 Open Accounts Payable Baker & Taylor, Inc. $644.49 
\2005 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable BARGE TERMINAL & TRUCKING $1 .069.55 
12006 041271201 \ Open Accounts Payable Berwyn Development Corporation 5250.00 
12007 04/27/2011 Open Accounts Payable Bill's and Son Clarence Ave SeMce $351 .22 

Station, Inc. 
12008 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable Blackstone Audiobooks $1B1 .00 
12009 04/2712011 Open Accounts Payable Bob's Lawn Cere, Inc. $845.00 
12010 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable BOURBONNAIS SUPPLY CO, INC. $1,379.71 

user: lovinelJi , Luna Pages: 1 of 6 Thursday, April 21 . 2011 



CITY Df BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 41Z212010 - To Payment Date: 4/27/2011 

Number Date Status Void Reasoo Reconciled! Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Difference 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

12011 04/27/2011 Open Accounts Payable Brancato Landscaping 51.853.12 
12012 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable Brendan O'Connor 51,475.00 
12013 04I27f2011 Open Accounts Payable CASSIDY TIRE $173.50 
12014 04/27/2011 Open Acoounts Payable Catholic Charities of Chicago $4,421 .85 

Archdiocese 
12015 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable COW Govemment. Inc. $467.82 
12016 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable Cerma)( Animal Clinic $78.00 
12017 04/2712011 Open Accounts Pay8ble CHICAGO BADGE COMPANY $217.60 
12018 04/27/2011 Open Accounts Payable Chicago Office Technology Group $26.14 
12019 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable Chicagoland Trucking, Inc. $7,240.00 
12020 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable CITADEL 5452.00 
12021 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable COMCAST CABLE $11 .94 
12022 04/27/2011 Open Accounts Payable CornEd 5432.11 
12023 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable CornEd $24,894.51 
12024 04I27{2011 Open Accounts Payable COMPLETE TEMPERATURE 5335.00 

SYSTEMS,INC. 
12025 04/2712011 Open Accounts Payable Cook County Clene $10.00 
12026 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable Cl)'Stal Overhead Door,lnc. $85.00 
12027 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable Del Galdo Law Group,LLC $12,150.71 
12028 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable Dell M8l1<ellng, lP $1,155.48 
12029 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable Dell Maneeting, LP $875.44 
12030 04/2712011 Open Accounts Payable DEMCO EDUCATIONAL CORP $175.48 
12031 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable Diamond Graphics, Inc. $1,484.00 
12032 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable Don Morris Architects, PC $10,155.00 
12033 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable OVA.COM $69.99 
12034 04/27f2011 Open Accounts Payable ED MARK VISUAL $192.14 
12035 04/2712011 Open Accounts Payable Edward Gierut $200.00 
12036 04/2712011 Open Accounts Payable Elite Deposition Services $252.90 
12037 04l27f2011 Open Accounts Payable EMPIRE COOLER SERVICE,INC. $92.00 
12038 04f27f2011 Open Accounts Payable Federal Express Corporation $34.87 
12039 04/2712011 Open Accounts Payable Felco Vending, Inc. $414 .50 
12040 04/27/2011 Open Accounts Payable Fire Safely Consultants, Inc. $11,155.10 
12041 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable FREEWAY FORD TRUCK SALES $884.49 

INC 
12042 04/27f2011 Open Accounts Payable GABRIEL SALES $596.18 
12043 04/27/2011 Open Accounts Payable GAlE $1,923.32 
12044 04f27/2011 OP9fl Accounts Payable GAYLORD BROS INC $122.95 
12045 04l27f2011 Open Accounts Payable GEM BUSINESS FORMS, INC. 52,316.40 
12046 04/2712011 Open Accounts Payable Global Connect $9,816.67 
12047 04/27/2011 Open Accounts Payable Gould & Ratner, LLP $814.47 
12048 04/27/2011 Open Accounts Payable GRAINGER $75.71 
12049 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable GREAT WEST ELECTRIC SUPPLY $3.30 

CO 
12050 04/2712011 Open Accounts Payable Gurtner Plumbing, Inc. $1,241.00 

user: lovinelli , luna Pages: 2 of 6 Thursday, April 21 , 2011 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 412212010 • To Payment Date: 4/27{2011 

Number Date Status Void Reason Reconciledl Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Difference 
VDlded Date Amount Amount 

12051 0412712011 Open Acoounts Payable H J MOHR & SONS CO $787.52 
12052 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable H.W.WILSON CO. $192.00 
12053 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable HARTIGAN & O'CONNOR P.C. $1,107.00 
12054 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable Harvey Place Condo Association $551 .26 
12055 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable HO SUPPLY WATERWORKS,LTD $3.252.60 
12056 04127f2011 Open Accounts Payable Home Depot Credit Services $40.98 
12057 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable Horizon Screening 53,366.00 
12058 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable Hugh O'Brien Youth Leadership $150.00 

lI~nois-North 
12059 04l27f2011 Open Accounts Payable Ininois Office of the State Fire $100.00 

Ma~hall 
12060 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable Imnois Paper & Copier Company 513.09 
12061 04/27/2011 Open Accounts Payable Illinois State Toll Highway Authority $418.45 
12062 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable In The Swim $35.93 
12053 04127f2011 Open Accounts Payable Ingram libraI)' Services $1 ,080.13 
12064 04/27f2011 Open Acoounts Payable INTOXIMETERS $421 .45 
12065 04/2712011 Open Accounts Payable Jactc's Rental, Inc. $3,814.90 
12066 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable James Frank $110.10 
12067 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable JAN WAY CO.USA,INC. $698.72 
12068 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable Jason Brock $100.00 
12069 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable Joshua Jones & Jon StactleWiez 51,475.00 
12070 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable JULIE,INC. $2,633.93 
12071 04/27/2011 Open Accounts Payable K's Quality Construction, Inc. $3,556.00 
12072 0412712011 OP9fl Accounts Payable Key Government Finance,lnc. $7,078.26 
12073 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable KIEFT BROS,INC. $3,532.50 
12074 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable Laner Muchln Dombrow Bectcer levin $7,405.10 

& Tech, ltd 
12075 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable laVerne Kleszczewski $12.96 
12076 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable lawndale News $474.48 
12077 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable LEXISNEXIS $467.00 
12078 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable LITTLE VILLAGE PRINTING $224.00 
12079 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable login! IACP Net $100.00 
12080 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable Louis Rainone $20.00 
12081 04I27{2011 Open Accounts Payable MacNeal Phy Group (OCCMED) $285.00 
12082 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable MARIE LROGERS $399.50 
12083 04127f2011 Open Accounts Payable MARLIN LEASING $391 .41 
12084 04/27f2011 Open Accounts Payable McDonald Modular Solutions, Inc. $95.00 
12085 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable McDonough Mechanical Services, Inc. $807.SO 
12086 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable McGuire's II, L.LC. $321 .00 
12087 0412712011 OP9fl Accounts Payable Menards $127.17 
12088 04I27f2011 Open Accounts Payable Meoarc:ls $42.89 
12089 04/2712011 Open Accounts Payable Men arc:l s $101 .43 
12090 04/2712011 Open Accounts Payable MES • IDlnois $365.19 
12091 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable Metro Clerldng,lnc. $20.00 

user: lovmell i, Luna Pages; 3 of 6 Thursday, April 21, 2011 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 412212010 - To Payment Date: 412712011 

Number Date Status Void Reason Reconciledl Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Difference 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

12092 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable METRO GARAGE INC 525.00 

12093 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable MICHELE O.SKRYO $420.50 
12094 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable MICRO MARKETING,LLC 5125.03 
12095 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable Midwest Tape $118.93 
12096 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable Miguel A.Sanliago Consulling.lnc $5.000.00 
12097 04/27/2011 Open Accounts Payable Mike & Sons $7.nO.39 
12098 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable MLB FINANCIAL SERVICES.L TO $85.00 
12099 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable NAEIR $1B6.96 

12100 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable NATIONAL SEED $1.720.00 
12101 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable Newsweb Radio Company $4.500.00 
12102 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable Nextel Cornnunications $551 .72 
12103 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable Nioo( Gas 53,213.23 
12104 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable Nloor Gas $6,2B2.67 
12105 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable Northeastern IDinois Public Safety $400.00 

Training Acad 
12106 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable NORTHERN ILLINOIS POLICE $4,505.00 

ALARM SYSTEM 
12107 04/27/2011 Open Accounts Payable NU WIRELESS $141.25 
1210B 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable Odelson & Sterk, L TO 528.015.90 
12109 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable Office Depot $594.12 
12110 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable Office Depot 5149.90 
12111 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable PILLARS COMMUNITY SERVICES $2,956.19 
12112 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable PIONEER PRESS $32.00 
12113 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable Pitney Bowes $2.313.00 
12114 04/27/2011 Open Accounts Payable Pitney Bowes $150.00 
12115 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable PNC Equlptment Finance $4,388.00 
12116 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable RAY O'HERRON CO.INC. 5604.35 
12117 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable Rizza Ford $1.152.52 
12118 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable ROBERTDWAN 567.04 
12119 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable Roscoe Company $664.73 
12120 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable S·P·O·INCORPORATEO 5269.90 
12121 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable S. Jantelezio Insurance Company $30.00 
12122 04/27/2011 Open Accounts Payable SANTO SPORT STORE 51.545.00 
12123 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable Scott & Mariela Anderson $1.475.00 
12124 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable SCOUT ELECTRIC SUPF'L Y $5.151.58 
12125 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable Secretary of Stale 599.00 
12126 04/2712011 Open Accounts Payable Secretary of State $10.00 
12127 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable SeCJetary of Slate $198.00 
12128 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable SHARON LORENZI $55.58 
12129 04/2712011 Open Accounts Payable SHERWIN WILLIAMS $119.95 
12130 04/27/2011 Open Accounts Payable Showcases $163.08 
12131 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable SIERRA CLUB $25.00 
12132 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable SIMMONS PEST CONTROL $150.00 
12133 0412712011 Open Aooounts Payable Snappy Convenience Center #12 $308.50 

user: lovinelli , luna Pages; 4 of 6 Thursday, April 21 ,2011 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 4/2212010 • To Payment Date: 4127{2011 

Number Date Status Void Reason Reconclledl Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Differance 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

12134 04/2712011 Open Acoounts Payable SPECIALTY STORE UNLIMITED $34 .00 
12135 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable SPORTSFIELDS, INC. $595.00 
12136 04/27f2011 Open Accounts Payable Sprint $1,368.87 
12137 04l27f2011 Op&n Accounts Payable Standard Equipment Company $1 .663.40 
12138 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable Storin~, Ramello & Durkin $12,356.03 
12139 04/2712011 Open Accounts Payable STREICHER'S $266.00 
12140 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable Slrfctt y Sewers $1 ,200.00 
12141 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable Suburban Laboratories, Inc. $160.00 
12142 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable SULLIVAN'S LAW DIRECTORY $75.93 
12143 04/27/2011 Open Acoounts Payable Sunbelt Rentals $1,134.90 
12144 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable SWAN $9,899.01 
12145 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable TAMERLING INC. $321 .00 
12146 04/2712011 Open Accounts Payable Tantor Media 5194.36 
12147 04127/2011 Open Aooounts Payable TARGET AUTO PARTS $13.76 
12148 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payabje Tale-Tron Ace Hardware 566.93 
12149 04/27f2011 Open Accounts Payable Tele-Tron Ace Hardware $98.25 
12150 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable THE AVCAFE $264.43 
12151 04f27/2011 Open Accounts Payable The Elmwood Condo Association $515.73 
12152 04127/2011 Open Aocounts Payable The Library Store $65.03 
12153 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable Thomas J . Pavlik $140.88 
12154 04/2712011 Open Accounts Payable THOMPSON ELEVATOR $100.00 

INSPECTION SERVICE INC. 
12155 04/2712011 Open Accounts Payable TIGER DIRECT $89.93 
12156 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable Traffic Control & Protection Inc. $1,552.00 
12157 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable Tryad Automolive $638.89 
12158 04127/2011 Open Aocounts Payable U.S. Cellular $681.28 
12159 04/2712011 Open Accounts Payable UNIQUE MANAGEMENT $187.95 

SERVICES,INC. 
12160 04/2712011 Open Accounts Payable United Parcel SeMce $27.02 
12161 04/2712011 Open Accounts Payabje us Gas $142.60 
12162 04/2712011 Open Accounts Payable VIDEO AND SOUND SERVICE,INC. $746.14 
12163 04127f2011 Open Accounts Payable VIOLET FLOWER SHOP $115.00 
12164 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable Voltexx. Inc. $513.17 
12165 04127/2011 Open AocounlS Payable WALGREENS CO. $11 .99 
12160 0412712011 Open Accounts Payable WEIMER MACHINE 58,449.13 
12167 04127/2011 Open Aocounts Payable Wescon Underground Inc. $5,000.00 
12168 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable WEST SUBURBAN SENIOR $4,473.00 

SERVICES 
12169 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payabje William Pack $300.00 
12170 04127/2011 Open Accounts Payable WORLD FUEL SERVICES $546.63 
12171 04127/2011 Open Aocounts Payable Zee Medical. Inc. $239.54 

Type Check Totals: 199 Transactions $407,737.75 
01 - General Cash Totals 

Checks Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount 

user: lovinelJi, Luna Pages: 5 of 6 Thursday, April 21 , 2011 



em' of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 4(2212010 - To Payment Date: 4127/2011 

Number Dala Status Void Reason Reconciled! Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Difference 
Voided Data Amount Amount 

Open 199 $4()7. 737. 75 
Total 199 $407,737.75 $0.00 

All Slatus Counl Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount 
Open 199 $407,737.75 
Total 199 $407,737.75 $0.00 

Grand Totals: 
Checks Status Count Transaction Amount Reconclled Amount 

Open 199 $41)7,737.75 
Total 199 $407,737.75 $0.00 

All Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount 
Open 199 $407,737.75 
Total 199 $407,737.75 $0.00 

user: lovinelli, Luna Pages: 6or6 Thursday. April 21, 2011 



T:j itY of Berwyn Jeffrey G. Boyajian 
2nd ~ardAlder~ 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, Dllnole 60402-0701 Telephone; (708) 749-6402 Fax: (708) 788-26'715 

www.be.rwyn-U.gov 

April 19, 2011 

Honorable Mayor Robert J. Levero and 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Re: Handicap Sign Request #729 

Mayor and City Council Members: 

Michael O'Connell 
3206 S. Lombard Ave. 

I concur with the recommendations of the investigating officer in the attached application and 
ask that this request be Approved. 

Respectfully, 

Jeffrey Boyajian 
2nd Ward Alderman 



13erwyn 
Pofice 'Department 

MOl We,f ."" Sf reef 
lJerwyn.llllrllli.\ 11(141\2·07.\3 

Plume (7nlH 795-560U 
(Fax) 71J5·5627 ~ml'rg~nc)' 9-1-1 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR ROBERT J. LOVERO AND 
MEMBERS OF THE BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

BERWYN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
LOCAL ORDINANCE DIVISION 

April 7, 2011 

HANDICAPPED SIGN FOR: Michael O'Connell #729 

ATTACHED IS A REQUEST FOR A HANDICAPPED SIGN TO BE 

ERECTED IN THE CITY OF BERWYN PARKWAY IN FRONT OF: 

3206 S. Lombard Ave. 

PLEASE REVIEW THE ATTACHED PAPERWORK AND ADVISE. 

cc: ALDERMAN Boyajian 



64/)) Wl!RtJ I" Stnel 
DffW)'l'. illinois 60481-(7).1 

Phon .. (708) 795-5600 

(Fax) 71)5-)027 Emo:rg':Ilcy 'll I 

Handicapped Parking Sign Request & Report 

To: Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
And Members of City Council 

Date: 04-02-2011 

Name of Applicant: Michael O'Connell 

Address: 3206 S. Lombard Ave, Berwyn. IL 60402 

Telephone: 

Nature of Disability: 

Information YES NQ 

Doctor'S Note! Affidavit: ~ 0 

Owner's Support Letter: ~ 0 

Garage: ~ 0 

Driveway: 0 ~ 

Off Street: 0 ~ 

On Street: 181 0 

Meets Requirements: C8J 0 

Recommendation: APPROVE 121 DENY 0 

Conunents: 

Alderman: 

From: Berwyn Police Department 
Community Service Division 

Application: 729 

Information YES NO 

Interviewed: ~ 0 

Handicap Plates: rgJ 0 

Wheelchair: 

Walker: 

Cane: 

Oxygen: 

Report Number: 11-03 723 

Reporting Officer: Raimondi #192 

Ward: ) 
". 



f}3eTW!Jn poria f})epartment 
6401 West 31" SlJ'ffi 

Berwyn. llllnobi M1402·07JJ 
Pholle (7011) 795·5600 

(Fa.> 795·5627 Emer~tncy 911 

HANDICAPPED PARKING INTERVIEW FORM 
Name of Handicapped Person: Michael O'Connell 

Applicant Address: 3206 S. Lombard Ave, Berwyn, IL 60402 

Applicant Phone #: 

Applicant OIL or ID#: _____ _ 0.0.8: 

Caregivers No.me: Nt A 

Caregivers DIL#: N/A 

Vehicle Mo.ke: Toyota Vehicle Model: RA V 4 Vehicle Year: 2002 Vehicle Color: Blue 

License Plate: Handic;lpped Pluco.rd#: AG28861 

Does Applicant Use: 

Wheelchair Walkel Co.ne Oxyg~n _ 

Parking Availubi lity: 

Driveway: 0 Gurage: I:8l On Street: 0 Off Street: 0 

Notes: Michael O'Connell. who resides at 3206 S. Lombard A ve, Berwyn [L. 60402. is 
requesting the renewal of his Handicapped Parking signs, in front of his residence. There is a 
two car garage on the premises. Mr O'Connell has a .... l.-=an~d~_~-= 

....which limits his mobility on a daily basis. 

Michael O'ConneH meets' the City and Stote requirements for being handicapped. ' :! 

Date: 04-02~20 11 
DOole: 
Date: 
Date: 

Date: 

Time: 
Time: 
Time: 
Time: 

Completion Date: 04-05-2011 

Logged In Book: 04-05·2011 

Applicant Interview 
Time: 1200 Re,~ults : Approved (Recommendation) 

Result~: 

Re.'\ults: 
Results: 
Results: 

Applic;ltinn Nu mber: 729 



::l 
~ STATIONCO~UC~ 

9 = . 9041 (Applicant File) 
j : IW'ORT"TYPf: 

~ Incidenl Report 
U - ~"'OIlTEII 

,! 04105120 II 08:07 
I ,.. OF oeCUA-' 
I 

04/0S120 II 08:07 

INVOLI/ED ENTlTEB -: O'CONNELL. MICHAEL a 
: III!lI . JIAa 

;M 
: CLO_ 

UCR 

Berwyn Police Department 
6401 Wett 31st Street Berwyn, IL 60402 

lIa.AftSI CAli' 

CII-OI5323 

I)(SC RII'TlON 

Applicanl Fill! 

L()C.ICI1QN Of IIt"FEHSe (!tou .. NO .• ! TRe!T MMU!) 

._' _3206 S J.:QM,!:1A_RD ~v .Berwyn, IL (.0402 
STATU. CODa 

DOB AODAua 

DOT. 

(708) 795-5600 

INCIDI!IfT I 

11-03723 
KOWIII!C&IVID 

On View-Officer 

3206 S LOMBARD AV Berwyn. IL 60402 
\lOT WOT 

5' 10" 150 
SIO. 

H.lIII 

Brown 

TYPI! 

01.' 

Ilazel 
fal. 

9041 (Applicant File) - 0 c:ount(s) Reponing Party 

INVOLVED VEHICLU 

: vetlPU.T&. I aTJ;Te 

: IL 
I YUJt ' MAXI 

, 2002 : ToyOla 

O·CONNELL. MICHAEL a 
NARRATlVU 

i - IWlllAlTIIII 

In Summary: 

. ""'I! 
Sedlln. 4-door 

IoIOOf!L 

RAV4 

COLOlt 

Blut 

--

Michael O'Connell, . 'ho resides at 3206 S. Lombard Ave, Berwyn. IL 60402. is requesting the renewal 

of his handicapped parlcing signs, in front of his residence. Mr O'Connell has a . which limits his 

; mobility on a daily basis. There is a two car garage on the premises. however. Mr O'Connell frequently utilizes a 

• which causes difficulty maneuvering in his garngc. 

Mr O'Connell meets tbe city and slate requirements for being nandicApped. 

For the above listed reasons. this ofticer feels that this application ~hould be consiucreu for approval at this time. 
A!rOfmHG OFfICeR 

RAIMONDI. MARGO J 
aTAI .. 

192 

lIiVI!MA I1AIIII 

AS8ISTWO OFI'ICER8 

IlEI'ORTlNO OFFICeR 

RAIMONDI. MARGOJ 

OFFICI!RS 

STAll. 

192 

STAR. 

II·O)?:!) Page I of I 



. .. 
Robert J. Lovero 

Mavor 
Jamf~BJ.~f 
Chief of Police 

A Century 01 Prop-esa with Pride 

AFFIDAVIT fOR HANQICAPPIJ) PAllING SIGN 

You IDIIIt IuIWI • HlIIMIfcap StaR ,.... 01' u • ......, Card 
to park oy.ebk:Ie Ia ........... R ........ PukIq spKe 

)AICH,4~L Ctl,,v,\/f:LL 5206 5,Lo~,~) 
(Name of lJanckapped ApplicaDt) (Address) 

(Name of caregiver. if applicable) 
! ~\ 
1T~Number) 

z " 1 9 20(0 -"2'" ~ \ 
(City Vebicle Stick" Number aDd Year) 

A4 28'6 {PI 
(IUiDoia Hegdicap Placard Number) 

D,41p mrS." bY Pd'd'" bcItw. 1M •• ." of tIM ..... , he"klp 

I hereby ccrIi.fy that the physical cnodirioaa of the above Mowl "'JIwvIicapped Penon" COIIItitutea himIber as a 
handit:apped penoa aa defined UDdt.:r me staoJcnry provisioD"'. 1-159 (PbyIicaIly HIJICtirapped Penon -
BY«)' IWUrIl pa1IOD who baa pr.nD8IIaI!1y lost the UIe of_lea or both IqI QI' aa ann QI' bodIlIlIDI or my 
comhinarioa theDof or any penoD who is 110 severely diaabIcd II to be IIII8bIe to move wiIbout [be aid of 
crutcheI_ or a wbeelcbair.) 

(Physician's Sign_) . 
I 

(Print Physician's Name, Address and TeJqmoDe Number) 

Retam t.be completed fOl'Dl to tile ParIdDa DhfIIaa at tile lea -I. PDIIee Department 
6481 Welt 31- Street. Bet -1D, 01 ..... 



City of Berwyn Nora Laureto 
8 th Ward Alderman 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
8700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, llUnois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 749-8408 Fax: (708) 788-28715 

www.berwyn-U.gov 

April 19,2011 

Honorable Mayor Robert J. Lovero and 
Members of City Council 

Re: Handicap Sign Request No. 733 - Anna M. Cirilo 
1217 S. Home Ave. 

Mayor and City Council Members; 

I concur with the investigating officer's recommendation in the attached handicap sign 
application to Approve the request. 

Respectfu II y, 

Nora Laureto 
8th Ward Alderman 



tBerwyn 
Pofice 'Department 

6JU I W ~.~I J I" Sl r{'~l 
!lcn\") II. IIIinlll\ IIOJQ2-1I7.H 

Phune l7()llI7!l:'·."MIO 
(I'a.'] 79 .~·SIl27 Emergell' .' IJ. J-I 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR ROBERT J. LOVERO AND 
MEMBERS OF THE BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: 

DATE: 

BERWYN POLICE DEPARTMENT 

LOCAL ORDINANCE DIVISION 

April 18, 2011 

RE: HANDICAPPED SIGN FOR: Anna M. Cirilo #733 

ATTACHED IS A REQUEST FOR A HANDICAPPED SIGN TO BE 
ERECTED IN THE CITY OF BERWYN PARKWAY IN FRONT OF: 

1217 S. Home Ave. 

PLEASE REVIEW THE ATTACHED PAPERWORK AND ADVISE. 

CC: ALDERMAN Laureto 



tBerwgn 
Po(ice 'Department 

6401 W~IJI~ Sind 
HHwyn, illinois 60402-0733 

PluUle (7011) 795-S6DO 

(Fol() 795-5fl27 EmCr~L'flcy 911 

II '. ( . J) • ~ - I ._ 

J i rl' ~ ~' I ' .. \ I: I.' 

Handicapped Parking Sign Request &'Reporf':) :~ :':c: 

To: Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
And Members of City Council 

Date: 04- 13-20 J I 

Name of Applicant: Anna M. Cirilo 

Address: 1217 S. Home Ave. Berwyn, IL. 60402 

Telephone: -:--

Nature of Disability 

Information YES NO 

Doctor'~ Note! Affidavit: 181 0 

Owner's Support Letter: ~ 0 

Garage: ~ 0 
Driveway: 0 ~ 

Off Street: 0 181 

On Street: I2J 0 

Meet .. Requirements: IZI 0 

Recommendation: APPROVE [8] DENY 0 

Comments: 

Alderman: l.a.u..~ 

From: Berwyn Police Department 
Community Service Division 

Application: 733 

Information YES NO 

Interviewed: ~ 0 

Handicap Plates: 181 0 

Wheelchair: 

Walker: 

Cane: 

Oxygen: 

Report Number: 11-04065 

Reporting Officer: Raimondi #192 

Ward: e 



fJ3erwyn poria 'Department 
64111 Wc.~l 31" Sired 

Hem,),n, Illinois (,04{)2-0733 
I'bon!.' (7011) 795-5600 

(}lUX) 795-5627 1':mH~ency 'J 11 

HANDICAPPED PARKING INTERVIEW FORM 
Name (II' H,mdkarrcd Per.~on : Anna M. Cirilo 

Applicant Address: 1217 S. Home Ave. Berwyn, IL. 60402 

Applicuni Phone #: _ 

Applicant OIL or iD#: N/ A O.O.B: 

Caregivers Name: __ 

Careg.ivers OIL #: __ 

Vehicle Make: Vehicle Model: Vehicle Year: Vehicle Color: 

License Plate: Handicapped Placard #: BD85459 

Ooe.~ Applicant Use : 

Wheelchair Walker: Cane: Oxygen: 

Parking Availability: 

Drive wily: 0 Garage: ~ On Street: ~ Ofr Street 0 

Notes: Anna M. Ciriio, who resides at 1217 S. Home Ave, Berwyn, IL 60402, is requesting 
handicapped parking signs in front of her residence. Ms Cirilo has _ ad has only 
£ , which severely limits her mobility on a daily basis. On-street parking is very limited. 
Ms Cirilo meets the City and State requirements for being handicapped. 

Date : 04/13/2011 
Dale: 
Dllte: 
Date; 

Date: 

Time: 
Time: 

Time: 
Time: 

Completion Date: 04/1312011 

Logged In Book: 04/1312011 

Applicant Interview 
Time: 0900 Results: Approve (Recommendation) 

Results: 
Results : 
Result~ : 

Results: 

Application Number: 733 



." 
\Q 
o ..,. 
o . -

STATION COMPLAINT UCR 

I)fl-ll (Applicallt File) 
RI!f>DIITl'tPE 

Inc ideot Rcporl 
WHEII REP~ttO 

04J1 :1120 II 12:54 
TII4E OF OCCURRt:NCE 

fl4/1J12011 12:54 

INVOLVEO ENTmES 
!lAME 

(,IRIl.O. ANNA M 
sex RACE 

f 
, e LOTlil/fG 

UCR 

Berwyn Police Department 
6401 West 31st Street Berwyn, IL 60402 (708) 795-5600 

O1<SCIUPTIOH INCIDENT II 

Applicant File 11-04065 
R£LA~DCAD' , DOH HOW R!CIIIVED 

CII-OI6H 13 Telephone 
LOCATION OF OFFENSE (HOUSE' /f0. STReeT NAIoIE) 

1217110MEAV BClWyn.IL60402 .. - - -, .. - '-I' STATU5COOE - ---.. STA11J8 DATE 

, 008 AG£ , AJIOftI!8S 

1217 IIOME AV Berwyn. tL 60402 
I HOT WGT , tWR EV1!S PHDHE 

5' 5" I 190 Brown Brown 
SlDJ DL. All' 

l'tPE 

9041 (Applicant File) - 0 Coullt(S) Reporting Party 

NARRATIVES 

PRiMAAY 1WtRA1WI! 

In Summary: 

Anna M. Cirilo " who resides at 1217 S. Home Avcnue, Berwyn. IL 60402. is requesting handicapped 

parking signs to be placed in front of her residence. Ms Cirilo suffers fran and has only onc 

!, which severely impedes her ability to walk long distances and climb stairs. There is a garage on the premises (sec 

attached exhibit A) in which mobility is limited. There is a long Slairway at the rear entrance to the residence, as shown in 

exhibit B. however there are no stairs at the front entrance (as shown in exhibit C) which makes access to the rront easier. 

Ms Cirilo meets the City and Stale requirements for being handicapped. 

For the above listed reasons, this officer feels that this application should be considered for approval at this time. 
R!!Pt:lRTWG OffICeR 

RAIMONDI. MARGO J 

ASSISTING OFFICERS 

R90RTtlG OffICER 

RAIMONOI. MARGO J 

OFfICeRS 

STAR. 

192 

STAR. 

STARt 

DATEmME INCIDEJIT. 

Q4j 1)/10 II 12:54 11-04065 Page 1 of J 



CITY OF BERWYN - AFFIDAVIT FOR HANDICAPPED SIGN 

I hereby affirm that the infmmation provided is 1me and -correct, and it shall be pro1uDited and unlawful ?7 ~ to file. 9W~t which,..;d _ - to be fIIlsc or betiev;' to be fiolse. 

~ 71· ~ / ' ·,-11 
(SlgDature of A~liCalrt) (Date) 

PLEASE PRINT 
•• ~~******.**** 

:PHYSICIAN MUST m..I,. OUT 'J1IE NATURE OF PATIENT'S HANDICAP 

-r- - - --- ~/----------~------~ 

I HEREBY CERTIFY_~--T-----lHE--PHYSiCAL --=co~Nn=m::::=O~NS:-:=--:::O=P-=l=HE~ABO~:-=-¥E=-=N-=-AMES--=-~----
"HANDICAPPED PERSON" CONSTlTUTBS HIMIBER A HANDICAPPED PERSON AS DEFlNED 
UNDER THE SAWTORY PROVISION PAR. 1-159.1 (PHYSICALLY HANICAPPED PERSON
Every Natmal person who bas permanently lost the use of a leg or both legs or an arm or bo1b arms or any 
combinantion thereof or any person who is so severely disabled as to be unable to move without the aid of 
cnrtc~beelc~ 

(Date) 

(pU:A.sE PRlNT "T"~HYSICIAN'S Name and liYIIAAt'500 tt'hone) ... :'-' ' 

, - , 

HANDICAPPEh STATE ~LATE .. - ' ------- ~~TAO# YR ------
REGULAR ST~TE'PLA:r¥ # ______ _ HANDICAP STATE 'CARD # 'B 0 X,=) 45 '1 

YOU MUST SA VEA HANDICAP STATE PLATE OR CARD TO PARK VEmCLE IN A 
HANDICAPPED sPOT. 



1.104 I 3_00 l.j pg - Gmnil Page 1 of I 

-r 

https:llmail.google.comlmaill?ui::2&ik=cd8aa I c6f9&view=att&th= 12f4fb224c7f827a&att... 4/l3/20 11 



1104I3_002.jpg - Gmail Page 1 of 1 
. , 

https://mail.google.comlmaill?ui=2&ik=cd8aa] c6f9&view=att&th= 12f4fb41 a44a512f&att... 4/13/2011 



1 10 413_003.jpg - Gmail Page 1 of 1 
. \ . . 

https :llmail.goo~de .comJmail/?ui=2&ik=cd8aa I c6f9&view=att&th= 12f4fb87 f4dd25ae&att... 4/13/2011 



t· 

Robert J. Lovero/ " 
• Mayor / S 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
et Berwyn, illlnols 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2860 Fax; (708) 788-2875 

www.berwyn-ll.gov 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

Date: 'i - J -,.., (f 

Mayor Lovero & Members 
Of the Berwyn City Council 

Re: Block Party _-----':b~'1.~U.:.....:()Io<:._ __ block of 

Honorable Mayor Lovero & Members of City Council: 

Attached, please find a petition for a block party on the __ --6~~:h ...... .....>....WU'--""Q'---__ block 

Of (<<CO Ie f\ lie 

The residents request permission to hold the event on 

With a rain date of __ L...A~'1=¥--~"'l,..;b,J...T":'-"'--Ir_t+-__ , We are aware of the ordinance 

regarding block parties and will abide by all of them, 

Thank you for your consideration, 

Yours truly, 

---t~ 1.. 4I+¥ 
Contact person is : __ ·--IoJ2""'r-LQ",""f\.~{)LoLol ....:....:1 d""-l' \---....r:;L~---'/'--Y----=l'-'-j -.:......1 E",,-,' u ..... ' ...... r~c...c...J _ 

Address is: - '< .. 

Phone number is: 

u:tc*PLEASE RETURN 3·4 WEEKS PRIOR TO DATE REQUESTED**** 



WE THE UNDERSIGNED RESIDENTS OF THE a f1.() 0 BLOCK OF &rD If e Atte 
DO HEREBY REQUEST PERMISSION TO CONDUCT A BLOCK PARTY ON ,A,Afhh± (b; :)...0 I I 

BETWEEN THE HOURS OF 9 A /Y\ AND 9 PM . OUR RAIN DATE IS 'lj11j,L /I 
-' . --- .. , ~'"'')PER CONTAINERS FOR PICKUP BY CLEARING DISPOSAL·· 

ADDRESS 

...... b.~'?:-.(l .. {!r.. C .a.I.'.e .... A.((~ ...................... . 
zz. z-7 G ruJ 1:::,- /+-v~ , 

,~~~ ~ ~i~~~~ ~j~~~~(~~~~~g ~~~~~ ~ ~~~ ~~~~~~~~~~~~~ ~ ~~ ~ ~~~~~~~~~~ ~~~~~ ~~ ~~ 
.... .. h.!..} 1 .... lr.!..c!.f!..E;. .... ..It!!.~ .............................. . 
..... .2...~)...J. .... ..4.G-d.\-<.L. ..... CC.aM- I .. ..••••••..••.•.••••• 

..... . l1~ .1 ...... ~ ......... ~ .......................... . 
(---J. A f1-----0 [~:1-:!!~ ----.. -----------------------

Z
zt .. c . ~).;}.k.S.. G:-?: o.v..e.. .. f. dt .. ~ ......................... . 
' ........ 3 ."1.1.':-1 ... . ~l. .~?f?. ~I;. ... Lf.. ~~ ........................ . 
... ..... ~ ~.(~3.Q ... t::-4.~~.~ ...... ,.t::tl.-:£.:-....................... . 

... . 2..~.1.'1. .... {~(.!.:~ .~ ....... ::'1 ~.~ ......................... "'" ., . 

.... ~ .. }. ':I. 2 ..... { i..1. r;; .~.'.~ ....................................... . 
. c;(;;z + 7 A::::;r~ ~-. 

~~~~~~~i.~~~~{~~ (;f~~~~~(i. ~ ~ ~~A~~~ L~ ~~~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~~~~~~~ ~~~ ~ 
~ ............ , .. d~ Y .. ~(!Y.~ ... !4:lf~ .. ; ..................... . 
ll·~ ....... ?? .??.c.?. (4).':-£ .... (;1.~ ..................... . 
...... -......... ~.<:.~~ ... ~.~~~~ .... ~: ..................... . 



Board of Directors 

Executive Officers 

Dan Lane, 
PresIdent 

Debl Suchy, 
Vice PresIdent 

Kathy O'Connor, 
Secretary 

Dolly Konopka, 
Recording Secretary 

AI Kveton, 
Treasurer 
• • ••••• 

Board Members 

Judi Biagi 

Bob fejt 

Stan Aelds 

Jim Innis 

Mary Karasek 

Jamie Kucera 

Joan Maul 

Rosann Nlcholsoo 

Jose Ramirez 

Amy Trejo 

Darlene Yoder 

Denise Zabojnik 

Joanne Zendol 

er du a· F 
3401 S. Gunderson, Berwyn, IL 

708-795-2300 
www.bsdlOO.org/foundation 

n 
60402 

Dear Mayor Lovero and Berwyn City Council Members, 

The South Berwyn Education foundation would like to thank you very 
much for the past years that you have approved the use of Janura Park 
for the Kelly Miller C1rcus, 

Due to the success of this drcus, The SBEF would like to plan the date for 
the arcus for this fall. We would like to ask permIssion to hold the Circus 
on September 8,2011. 

Thank you in advance for your consideration In approving this event. We 
appreciate the cooperation of the City of Berwyn and Its services. 

Sincerely, 

The South Berwyn Educatlon Foundation Members 
and Dan Lane, President 

April 20, 2011 


	part-1
	part-2
	part-3
	part-4

